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24%

Outstanding contributions
from international
operations and continued
growth in the U.S. and
Canadian operations led to
an impressive 24% increase
in income from continuing
operations over 2005.
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Another Record Year
RG A posted excellent results in 2006,
as the company approached a milestone
of $2.0 trillion of life reinsurance in
force. Outstanding contributions from
international operations and continued
growth in the more established U. S . and
Canadian operations led RG A to achieve
income of $293.3 million – an impressive
24% increase over 2005.
Asia Pacific Momentum
NMG Financial Services Consulting
surveyed key decision-makers and
influencers of approximately 150 insurance companies in 15 Asia Pacific countries in 2005. The results of their study,
published in 2006, indicated that RG A
is the leading life reinsurer in the Asia
Pacific region in terms of assumed
new business.
These results are even more remarkable, given that it is only a little over a
decade since RGA established its first

representative office in the region. Asia
Pacific ceding companies considered
RGA to be superior to other reinsurers
in several areas, including proactive
relationship management, fair terms of
trade, competitive pricing, creativity and
problem-solving ability.
European Expansion
Expansion in Europe continued in
2006 with the signing of first-time treaties in France, Belgium and Germany.
During the year, RGA’s infrastructure in
Western Europe was further developed
with local staff additions in Cologne
and Milan.
Recognizing the potential of the life
insurance market in Central and Eastern
Europe, RG A opened a representative
office in Warsaw in September. Among
other services, RG A will assist ceding
companies in coping with the effects of
regulatory changes within the European
insurance environment.

in c o m e f ro m
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2006

$4,346.0

2005

$3,866.8

2004
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$3,347.4
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$1,980.7

2006

$293.3

2005

$235.6
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2002
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$1,980.3
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$1,736.0
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$1,252.2
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Finan c ial highlights
For the years ended December 31,
Net premiums (in millions) (1)
Income from continuing operations (in millions)
Diluted earnings per share (1)
Operating data (in billions)
Assumed ordinary life reinsurance in force
Assumed new business production
(1) Reflects

2006
      $ 4,346.0
293.3
4.65

      $ 1,980.3
370.4

2005

2004

2003

2002

     $ 3,866.8      $ 3,347.4      $  2,643.2      $ 1,980.7
235.6
245.3
178.3
128.5
3.70

3.90

3.46

2.59

     $ 1,736.6      $  1,458.9      $   1,252.2      $   758.9
354.1
279.1
544.4
230.0

results from continuing operations.

Triple X Securitization
In June, RG A announced that its
subsidiary, Timberlake Financial, L.L.C.,
completed an offering of $850.0 million
of 30-year notes. This transaction,
along with other reinsurance solutions,
provides long-term, well-matched
collateral support for RG A ’s portfolio
of Regulation Triple X business. The
notes were well-received by the capital
markets and are rated “AAA” by
Standard & Poor’s and “Aaa” by
Moody’s Investor Service.

Globalization of IT Infrastructure
Expansion throughout RG A ’s global
operations in recent years required
improved accessibility and responsiveness. During 2006, RG A responded to
this increasing demand by establishing
the Global Help Desk, with new IT
support teams launched in Sydney and
Mumbai to assist RG A associates across
all time zones. RG A offices now have
instant access to RG A IT staff and managers who are fluent in RG A ’s specialized
IT architecture, direction and strategy.

RGA Named “Best Overall
Life Reinsurer”
For the second consecutive time,
RG A ’s main operating subsidiary, RG A
Reinsurance Company, has been named
“Best Overall Life Reinsurer” in the 2007
Flaspöhler Cedant Survey (Life – North
America). The biennial survey, conducted
in 2006, asks ceding companies to rank
life reinsurers in several key service
categories. RG A Reinsurance Company
was ranked first by cedants in six of
ten categories.

HIGHLIGHTS 2006
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urity
ience.
RGA’s client relationships are built with

confidence and security. Our global experts
provide the knowledge, ideas and solutions
required for future prosperity. It is from our
culture of learning, collaboration and prudent
decision-making that trust and the benefits
of experience are fully realized.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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er
ation.
RGA understands and values the power of fresh

thinking and innovative solutions to help our
clients prosper and grow. Our knowledgeable
teams listen to our clients, and continually
strive to develop new ideas and better ways of
doing business. We are committed to providing
innovation in every market in which we operate.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS



A. Greig Woodring
President and Chief Executive Officer

A year of strong
performance born
of experience and
innovation.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

A. Greig Woodring, President and C.E.O.
life reinsurance
appears simple: a transfer of mortality
risk using long-established, time-tested
rules and standards. Though the business may seem to present few barriers
to entry, many hidden obstacles exist,
as life reinsurance requires complicated
structures guaranteeing coverage of
continuously fluctuating risk decades
into the future. The keys to our success
in effectively navigating through this
complicated business lie in our depth
of experience, our breadth of expertise,
and our ability to innovate.
RG A ’s team includes accomplished
professionals with extensive experience and success in life reinsurance.
Their expertise as well as the bench
strength within the organization provide
our customers with considerable confidence in the quality and the consistency
A t f i r s t g l a n ce ,

of the solutions they can depend upon
from RG A . The security of experience
also manifests itself in the wealth of
data and the analytic tools we use in
the decision-making process. We have
worked hard to develop our information
capabilities into an important competitive advantage.
While steady in the application of its
expertise, RG A also ranks as a leader
in innovation within the life reinsurance
industry. In 2006, we developed unique
products for clients in Japan and South
Korea; we used our automated underwriting system, AUR A , in new and
interesting ways; and we continually
evolved structures and adapted reinsurance techniques to solve client problems. The financial services consulting
firm NMG , in surveying the Asian life
reinsurance market in 2006, said: “ RG A
in particular is clearly distinguished
in that its relationship managers were
consistently cited, across almost every

market, as leading in terms of their
creative problem-solving and ability to
generate new business opportunities
for their clients.”
RGA posted strong results in 2006,
with earnings per share of $4.65. This
represented a large percentage increase
over 2005, when a spike of large claims
in the second quarter depressed results;
more significantly, the 2006 result is
impressive in view of our overall longterm trend line of double-digit EPS
growth. Total revenues exceeded
$5 billion and increased by a respectable 13% during 2006.
In our largest business segment,
U.S. Operations, premiums increased
9% in 2006 over the previous year. The
amount of new reinsurance ceded in the
U.S. market has been shrinking, after
reaching its peak level in 2004. Clearly,
new business volume affects our
premium growth rates, as does the mix
of business and the level of premium

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS



“ In a business requiring a
long-term perspective, RGA’s
actuaries and underwriters
produced solid results.”

growth from the in-force block. While
we are unlikely to see the rapid growth
of earlier years continue in our large
U.S. mortality business, we do expect
solid growth similar to that of 2006 over
the next several years.
In Canada, although bottom-line
results in 2006 fell below 2005’s record
levels, premium growth exceeded 25%
when translated into U.S. currency. The
leadership team in Canada continues to
build strong customer relationships and
strengthen RG A ’s position in one of our
key markets.
Strong growth in chosen markets
RG A ’s International Operations experienced a truly outstanding year, contributing more than 25% of our pre-tax
net income. Much of this growth came
from better-than-expected mortality
results during the year, while some
came as a consequence of strong
growth in several of our chosen

10
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markets, particularly those in Asia. Our
growth in the U.K. has been slowed by
what we consider to be overly aggressive pricing in the market. As we have
done in other markets in the past, RG A
prefers to wait for pricing to return to
adequate levels.
Results from RG A mortality businesses in different world markets have,
so far, shown no correlation in any
particular year. The geographic diversity
of RG A ’s operations has had a measurable stabilizing effect on overall results,
an effect that has grown with time. Our
asset-intensive and financial reinsurance businesses, which also enjoyed
solid results in 2006, help diversify
RG A ’s operating earnings as well. We
indicated at the close of 2005 that the
Argentina A FJP business had been
commuted, with only a very small remnant which would have no meaningful
impact going forward; that was indeed
the case for 2006, and we can reiterate

that assertion. Our discontinued A&H
special risk business saw relatively little
activity in 2006 and continues to wind
down slowly.
Long-term perspective
Looking back on 2006, RG A produced
results near or better than expected in
every quarter. Our business of accepting
and managing mortality risk, however, is
inherently statistically volatile. Even with
a book of business as large as RG A ’s,
with more than 20 million policies reinsured and nearly $2 trillion at risk in
force, we expect volatility on a quarterly
and an annual basis. In that sense, 2006
was a “lucky” year. Mortality, however,
becomes highly predictable over longer
periods of time, and producing strong
long-term results takes a lot more than
luck. At RG A , we constantly monitor
emerging experience and develop
additional sources of data to improve
our understanding of long-term and

14%

RGA’s book value per
share has grown at a
14%* compounded annual
rate for our entire public
history. We have enjoyed
remarkably consistent
long-term results.

short-term mortality trends. In a business requiring a long-term perspective,
RG A ’s actuaries and underwriters have
produced solid results.
Long-term growth in book value
per share is an excellent way to gauge
long-term value creation. Excluding
“accumulated other comprehensive
income”, RGA’s book value per share
increased by 14%* in 2006 over 2005.
More importantly, looking at longer
periods, RGA’s book value per share has
grown at a 14%* compounded annual
rate over the last five years. In fact,
since RGA went public in 1993, we have
grown at that same 14%* compounded
annual rate for the full 13-year public
history of RGA . We have enjoyed remarkably consistent long-term results.
During 2006, RGA securitized a
substantial block of Triple X reserves
through a capital markets offering.
This attractively priced, long-term
arrangement provides regulatory capital

required for redundant reserves under
these contracts. While this marked
RGA’s first public securitization, we have
been diligent in securing long-term
financing for our Triple X obligations
through vehicles that seem to be the
most efficient and effective at the
time. In 2006, much care went into
the Timberlake securitization, which
represents the largest single financing
transaction we have done to date.
Opportunities ahead
As we look forward, we continue to
see substantial growth opportunities
for RG A . Although RG A ’s international
business now exceeds $1.2 billion in
annual premiums, in many ways our
international expansion is in its early
stages. Our strongest-growing markets,
South Korea and Japan, will see both
an increasing use of reinsurance and
an increasing sophistication in the
application of reinsurance to improve

direct insurers’ performance. RG A has
solid operations and strong relationships
in these and other growth markets.
New capital methodologies and
regulations will be instituted in life
insurance markets around the world.
Reinsurers will play a strong role in
helping direct life companies adapt
to these new regimes. Accounting
changes and capital requirement
changes in the life insurance industry
will introduce significant reinsurance
opportunities. RG A ’s professionals have
the experience and the innovativeness
to take advantage of these opportunities by helping our customers through
these changing times.

A. Greig Woodring
President and Chief Executive Officer

* See footnote (4) on page 27 for information on non-GAAP financial measures.
LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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Operations

RGA operations posted
outstanding performances
across the board in 2006, as
total revenues increased by
13% over 2005 to more than
$5 billion, and net income from
continuing operations grew
by more than 24%. Net
premiums increased 12% to
$4.3 billion, building upon
RGA’s long record of doubledigit premium growth.
In 2006, RGA’s largest
operating segment, U.S.
traditional mortality
reinsurance division, reported
more than $2.6 billion in net
premiums, and led the market
in assumed new business.
Canadian operations continued
to post strong premium growth,
with an increase of more than
25% over 2005’s result. RGA’s
International division reached
$1.3 billion in revenue while
expanding its presence in
Europe and in Asia Pacific.
12
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U . S . operations

U.S. Traditional Mortality
RG A ’s U.S. Traditional Mortality operations delivered solid growth in 2006,
reporting an increase of 9% in net
premiums over the previous year.
Cession rates in the U.S. market
declined for the second year in 2006,
resulting in a tighter market for life
reinsurers. Nevertheless, RG A led the
U.S. life reinsurance market in new
business assumed, achieving solid
results by signing treaties with several
new clients.
Over the last two years, the U.S.
operations have offered special underwriting support to clients that are unable
to handle unanticipated increases in life
insurance applications. Such unexpected
increases place enormous pressure
on underwriting staffs, and can cause
significant delays as well as a greater
possibility of underwriting errors. RG A
has developed a process called SUP
(Special Underwriting Program) which
alleviates these challenges, and reflects
RG A ’s continued emphasis on providing
solutions to underwriting problems

and demonstrating leadership in facultative underwriting and in customized
client services.
Life Product Services ( LP S )
provides term insurance product
development services to life insurance
companies in the United States. LP S
has grown to become one of the nation’s
leading developers of specialized term
products. Approximately 3% of all term
insurance expected to be sold in 2007
in the U.S. has been developed by LP S ,
reflecting life insurers’ confidence in
RG A ’s ability to deliver appropriate
product solutions.
RGA Financial Markets
RG A Financial Markets recorded
another successful year in 2006. The
asset-intensive business now provides
reinsurance for all of the major spreadbased products, including fixed deferred
annuities, fixed indexed annuities,
variable annuities, and universal life,
and will soon be providing immediate
annuities.
Working with the International Division, Financial Markets also completed
its first international non-traditional

U.S. NET PREMIUMS
(IN MILLIONS)

2006

$2,654

2005

$2,434

2004

$2,213

2003
2002

$1,802
$1,412

Paul A. Schuster
Senior Executive Vice President,
U.S. Division

is responsible for all
U.S. business development functions,
including underwriting, pricing, sales
and marketing. Under his leadership,
the division has strengthened its
position in the U.S. market, and was
named “Best Overall Life Reinsurer”
in 2005 and 2007 by ceding companies in the Flaspöhler Cedant Survey
(Life – North America). Paul states
“this recognizes our commitment
to providing outstanding value to our
clients, at a fair yet responsible price.”
We firmly believe that RGA will
continue to be held in high regard
by focusing on the fundamentals of
our business:
P aul S c huster

• Assembling and supporting a team
of the most experienced, diligent
and knowledgeable underwriters,
actuaries, medical directors and risk
management experts;

• Providing industry-leading
underwriting support to our clients;
• Developing supplemental valueadded services to benefit our
clients, thereby contributing to their
continued success;
•	Supplying timely, candid and
professional responses, recognizing
that trust and reliability are integral
to our corporate culture;
• Prudently managing our expenses,
internal structures and risks; and
•	Focusing on the unique needs of our

clients and delivering solutions that
help them function more efficiently
and more profitably.
Paul observes “the reason RGA is
now the leading U.S. life reinsurer in
assumed new business is due largely
to the quality of our people. Their
consistent level of dedication, depth of
expertise, and strong customer service
ethic have helped to establish RGA
as the best overall life reinsurer in the
United States.”

O P E R AT I O N S

13

“Commitment to providing
outstanding value to
our clients, at a fair yet
responsible price.”

transaction, a product development effort
expected to be replicated globally in
the future. The company continued
to expand its international financial
reinsurance portfolio, while maintaining
its strong position in the U.S. market.
Both the asset-intensive and financial
reinsurance lines of business serve to
diversify RG A ’s sources of earnings,
which have historically been concentrated in mortality risk.
At the end of 2006, Financial Markets
managed $1.8 billion of statutory surplus
provided through financial reinsurance,
compared with $1.9 billion at the end
of 2005. Fund value related to assetintensive reinsurance grew to $5.5 billion,
up from $4.4 billion in 2005, while pre-tax
net income increased to $35.2 million,
up from $31.4 million in 2005.
RGA Financial Markets plans to
further expand its reach in 2007, demonstrating the value of financial and assetintensive reinsurance to international
markets and increasing the company’s
ability to help multinational clients
achieve capital and other strategic goals
on a global scale, forging alliances when
appropriate.

14
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RGA Technology Partners
RG A Technology Partners, Inc., a whollyowned subsidiary of RG A , develops and
implements technology-based solutions
for the life insurance industry worldwide.
Its AUR A Suite is a comprehensive set of
customizable software components that
help life insurers streamline the new
business and underwriting process.
AUR A is used successfully in traditional
life insurance settings, in banks and in
call centers, and can be accessed by
underwriters, agents, brokers and customer service representatives.
RG A Technology Partners completed
its fifth full year of operations in 2006,
continuing to focus on financial growth
and on delivering a complete range
of competitive service offerings to its
clients. During the year, RG A Technology
Partners further expanded the functionality of the AUR A Suite, and launched
AUR A Underwriting Services, which
provides clients with an advanced teleunderwriting services solution using
expertly trained interviewers, the AUR A
Suite of products, and proven underwriting rules based on RG A ’s more than
30 years of underwriting experience.

Trends in ERM
and Capital Frameworks
is
adopting and improving Enterprise
Risk Management ( ERM ) frameworks
at a rapidly increasing pace. ERM
helps to reduce earnings volatility,
enhance controls, increase transparency and address rating agency and
regulatory pressures. Companies
look to ERM to protect, strengthen
and build their business; demonstrate
capital adequacy; and inspire industry
confidence. A common goal of these
ERM endeavors is significant improvements to various capital models.
In particular, there is a movement
toward principles-based capital
frameworks that provide a more
dynamic and robust assessment
of required capital.
Company-owned economic capital
modeling is a good example of these
enhanced capital models. It incorporates risk assessment, mitigants, and
capital and risk management tools
T he li f e insuran c e in d ustr y

Cana d a N E T P R E M I U M S
(IN MILLIONS)

2006

$429

2005

$343

2004

$254

2003
2002

$215
$181

Cana d a operations

to better reflect the true risk profile of
a company. Such capital models are
required to fully assess the benefits of
diversification. These internal risk measurement tools typically drive pricing,
capital management, risk management
and performance measurement.
Many current factor-based frameworks, with their limited risk measurement and pricing accuracy, can lead
to inefficient decision-making.
Principles-based capital frameworks
improve decision-making by better
assessing risk, risk mitigants such as
diversification, and are gradually being
endorsed by rating agencies and
regulatory bodies.
Over the last 18 months, rating
agencies began stressing the value of
ERM frameworks, providing motivation
for increased controls and decreased
earnings volatility. Standard & Poor’s,
for example, recently added ERM
assessments as one of their eight
rating categories. Some rating agencies are moving toward development
of their own principles-based capital

models and some are creating processes to assess company-owned
capital models.
Regulators around the world are
also placing more emphasis on ERM
and enhanced capital modeling. As
with rating agencies and the companies themselves, regulators’ objectives
include reduced volatility, improved risk
management and greater transparency.
Capital markets, which fully support the economic capital concept,
have been key drivers for more sound
risk assessment and capital modeling.
Embedded value and Triple X securitizations could only be successful in the
capital markets with the use of underlying economic capital models.
Development, adoption and maintenance of economic capital frameworks
require a commitment of significant
resources by insurers. However, a shift
to these frameworks will provide companies with greater accuracy, transparency and consistency in ERM , improve
capital management, and should lead
to improved earnings with less volatility.

RGA Life Reinsurance
Company of Canada
RGA Canada performed well in 2006,
demonstrating impressive premium
growth of 25% and solid bottom-line
results following a very strong 2005.
The company generated $45.8 million
of pre-tax net income, reflecting a 9%
decrease from 2005’s result when
mortality experience was very good. It
expanded its product offerings to include
group life and health and creditor lines,
which now make up 21% of the premiums, an increase of 98% over 2005.
Direct insurers in Canada continue
to make significant use of reinsurance,
ceding approximately 75% of all new
business written during the year. The
company also positioned itself favorably
following prior years’ industry consolidation. RGA Canada saw its assumed new
reinsurance business climb to $39.8 billion,
an increase of 24% over 2005 and a
three-year compounded increase of 54%.
Underwriters processed more than
32,400 facultative applications for clients,
an increase of 19% over the previous year.

O P E R AT I O N S
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“ RGA’s international business
now exceeds $1.2 billion
in annual premiums,
although its expansion
is in its early stages.”

I N T E R N AT I O N A L O perations

detailed survey conducted by NMG , an
independent international consulting firm.

oping new standards and guidelines
for underwriters in Japan.

Japan
RG A Japan’s aggressive marketing
and innovative product development led
to strong results in its twelfth year of
operation and third year as a full-service
reinsurer. Despite a decline in life insurance sales in Japan in 2006, RG A
increased net premiums by 44% over
the previous year, and processed close
to 30,000 facultative applications. As the
Japanese life insurance market evolves
and insurers consider alternatives such
as bancassurance, RG A Japan supports
the industry’s growth and development
through unique initiatives. For example,
in July 2006, an underwriting club
founded by RG A Japan in 2003 was
officially recognized as the Underwriting
Association of Japan, a sanctioned entity
of 17 companies that supports the
industry and strengthens its influence.
Originally designed to increase and
promote the visibility of the underwriting
profession in the Japanese life insurance
market, the Association has grown in
both membership and authority, devel-

South Korea
The RG A business model in South Korea
continues to work well in its second year
of full operations. In 2006, net premiums
reached $172.4 million, a 70% increase
over the previous year. RG A South
Korea’s expert consulting services
continue to attract a growing number of
clients, leading to the signing of ten new
treaties during the year, while the office
maintained its participation level on
existing treaties.

A S I A P A C I F I C O P E R AT I O N S

The Asia Pacific operating segment,
comprised of offices in Australia, Japan,
South Korea, Taiwan, Hong Kong,
Malaysia and China, reported $707.4
million in revenue and $58.6 million in
pre-tax net income in 2006, increases
of 26% and 87%, respectively, over
2005. RG A led the region in assumed
new business, and anticipates continued
growth as opportunities expand within
the Asia Pacific life insurance market.
Australia and New Zealand
RG A manages its business in both
Australia and New Zealand through its
experienced team based in Sydney. In
2006, the office produced net premiums
of $295.7 million in 2006, a 7% increase
over the previous year. Growth in the
underlying market in Australia on both
group and retail business appears
to be trending upward. The Australian
office was recognized for the second
year in a row as the highest quality
reinsurer in the market based on a

16
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Taiwan
RG A Taiwan continued to grow at
an impressive rate in 2006, with a
48% increase in net premiums over
the previous year to $37.7 million. The
office initiated the process of securing
a branch license for its operations. RG A
Taiwan’s continued strong growth, combined with the completion of its branch
licensing process, will provide an excellent foundation from which to extend
its reach into this important emerging
reinsurance market.

international d i v ision N E T P R E M I U M S
(IN MILLIONS)

2006

$1,261

2005

$1,088

2004

$878

2003
2002

$623
$387

Graham S. Watson
Senior Executive Vice President, International,
and Chief Marketing Officer.
Chief Executive Officer,
RGA International Corporation

is responsible for
all of RGA’s business outside North
America, and has overseen the growth
of RGA’s international reinsurance
business from start-up to more than
G raha m W atson

$1.2 billion in annual premiums. Graham
explains the simple, but disciplined,
approach RGA adopted to achieve
that presence in just over a decade:
• Pushing decisions down to where
the knowledge is;
•	Leveraging expertise and best
practices across the enterprise
for the benefit of our clients and
ourselves;

• Maintaining a flexible value-based
strategic outlook;
• Minimizing infrastructure, overhead
and duplication of effort;
• Concentrating on our core
competencies, while remaining
flexible enough to consider the
development of new ones;
• Bringing in partners that can add
value when it makes sense;
• Differentiating ourselves through
efficiency and innovation, not simply
through price;
• Constantly rethinking our positions in
light of circumstance and experience;
•	Identifying, attracting and
developing the best people; and
•	Staying close to our business.

By adhering to these principles,
Graham states “we have and will
continue to bring value to our clients.
Our vision is to be the leading global
life reinsurer considered essential by
our clients for their future prosperity.
We believe that we will be successful
as we help our clients succeed.”

O P E R AT I O N S
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26%

RGA’s Asia Pacific
operating segment
reported an increase of
26% in revenue over 2005.

Hong Kong
RG A Hong Kong continued to serve local
Hong Kong life insurance companies’
and multinational companies’ operations
throughout Southeast Asia. In 2006, the
company again increased market share
and significantly increased the number of

The Rise of Bancassurance
attractive
opportunities in both emerging and
mature markets, for different reasons.
Banks possess vast databases of
clients, many of whom are yet untapped for life insurance sales. These
‘unsold’ consumers are prime targets
for bancassurance sales. Many banks
have either bought or built insurance
companies, or they have co-branded
with third-party insurers, thereby
gaining access to profitable bancassurance business that complements
their loan and mortgage products.
In many mature markets, bancassurance is strongly entrenched as
banks have developed ways to
B an c assuran c e presents

18
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its clients, to become one of the leading
reinsurers throughout the region.
Malaysia
Malaysian Life Reinsurance Group
Berhad ( MLR e ) is a joint venture
between RG A and the Life Insurance

leverage their existing banking customer base into increased revenues,
so bank distribution of life and health
insurance has become an important insurance distribution channel.
Western European markets have
extremely high participation rates on
individual credit insurance products.
In emerging markets like Asia, bancassurance is rapidly gaining ground as a
major growth engine in the sale of life
and health products.
Banks offer insurance products
through face-to-face sales, call centers, direct mail and the Internet.
Credit insurance products are by far
the most popular products sold. These
products are attached to underlying
bank products such as personal

Association of Malaysia. MLR e, founded
in 1997, is the first local life reinsurance
company incorporated in Malaysia. MLR e
conducts business with all Malaysian
life insurance companies and is also
exporting its services to local companies
in neighboring countries. During 2006,

loans, mortgages or credit cards.
Bancassurers are also working hard
to improve sales of stand-alone insurance products through financial advisors, who can recommend insurance
for income replacement and/or debt
retirement as part of the estate planning process.
Successful bancassurers view
the sale of life and health insurance
through the bank branch as a ‘core’
product offering. Best results are
achieved when underwriting processes
are designed to make the application
procedure as smooth as possible, so
applications for credit life insurance
products are simple, and bank staffs
are trained to make the process fast
and effortless for the customer.

global presen c e

Serving clients across six continents,
in more than 45 countries from 21 offices:
Australia
Barbados
Bermuda
Canada
China
France
Germany

MLR e’s facultative business grew by 6%,

demonstrating recognition of MLR e’s
level of underwriting support.

Hong Kong
India
Ireland
Italy
Japan
Malaysia
Mexico

Poland
South Africa
South Korea
Spain
Taiwan
United Kingdom
United States

million, reflecting its steady expansion in
both established and emerging markets.

an d L atin A m eri c a O perations

United Kingdom
RG A ’s U.K. operations had a very profitable 2006 due to positive mortality, which
was further enhanced by a strengthening
pound sterling. Premium growth of 8%
was not as strong as in recent history,
due to increased competition and a
relatively flat primary protection market.
However, RG A continued its progress in
innovative product developments and
new ways to underwrite business. The
U.K. office continued to expand its client
base by adding two large new clients
toward the close of 2006, and successfully implemented a new computer
administration system that will further
enhance client service capabilities.

With a new representative office opening
in Warsaw, expanded operations in
Western Europe, and improved infrastructure to support its growth, RG A ’s
Europe, South Africa, India and Latin
America segment experienced impressive growth in 2006. Net premiums
increased by 6% over 2005 to $587.9

Spain and Portugal
In 2006, RG A consolidated its position
as one of the leading reinsurance providers in the Spanish and Portuguese
insurance industry. The region, like the
rest of Southern Europe, is primarily
dominated by bancassurance and multinational insurers; consequently, RG A

China
During 2006, RG A conducted underwriting
and claims-related seminars and actuarial
seminars tailored for Chinese clients
inside and outside China. The office
shared its specialized experience, skills
and ideas, garnering positive responses.
RG A has also cooperated with the
Insurance Institute of China ( IIC) and the
China Insurance Regulatory Commission
( CI RC) in various initiatives aimed at
developing China’s insurance industry.

E urope , S outh A f ri c a , I n d ia

developed specific pricing approaches
tailored to the unique needs of clients
in this segment.
In an extremely competitive milieu, with
stagnant revenues in traditional business,
very large capacities and a new environment overshadowed by large mergers
among the major reinsurers, RGA achieved
a client base of over 40 ceding companies,
and strengthened its treaty participations
with the top ten, most recently signing a
treaty with the leading insurance group in
the Iberian Peninsula market.
Central and Eastern Europe
In September 2006, RG A opened its
first representative office in Central and
Eastern Europe, to support its multinational clients operating in this growing
market. The office, located in Warsaw,
will market traditional automatic and
facultative life reinsurance services,
product development and training to
clients in the region.
By the end of the year, RG A Central
and Eastern Europe had treaties in
Bulgaria, Hungary, Poland, Romania and
Slovakia and is continually expanding the
list. Although life insurance penetration
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“Leveraging expertise and best
practices across the enterprise
for the benefit of our clients
and ourselves.”

is still relatively low compared with
more mature life insurance markets, this
promising market has demonstrated fast
growth in the past few years.

Other European Operations
During 2006, development in the rest
of Europe focused on four key markets –
Italy, France, the Netherlands and
Germany. In Italy, where RG A has 18
treaty clients, the unit began building
its local infrastructure and will set up
a representative office in Milan early
in 2007. Similar initiatives are planned
in France, where staffing is underway.
In the Netherlands and Germany, RG A
continues to monitor local developments
and focus on key accounts.
South Africa
In a very competitive reinsurance market,
RG A South Africa achieved record
profitability, largely due to excellent
results in its individual facultative business, where it now holds a leading
position. 2006 was a year of consolidation in the group business, which has
been restored to acceptable levels
of profitability.
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Although net premium income
in 2006 in terms of local currency
increased by 4% over 2005, net premiums in U.S. dollars declined by 3%
from the previous year to $57.7 million.
The direct life insurance market in
South Africa faced many challenges,
primarily due to ever-increasing regulatory and consumer pressures. These led
to a watershed agreement between the
Life Offices Association and the National
Treasury providing for minimum termination values on investment contracts by
life insurers. Changes in the commission
structure for investment contracts proposed by the National Treasury for 2007
are also likely to have an impact on the
intermediary market in the years ahead.
Consolidation among direct life
insurers has intensified competitive pressures, particularly in the upper income
and professional market. Insurers are
devising strategies to compete in the
new customer base for financial services
products resulting from the economic
empowerment of previously disadvantaged demographic groups. New distribution channels, such as bancassurance,
are attracting this emerging buying class.

India
RG A India further capitalized on the
country’s emergence as a leading
provider of technology expertise by
establishing RG A Services India Private
Limited in March. This company is
comprised of two units, Reinsurance
Services and IT Services.
Reinsurance Services’ strong local
team of actuarial, underwriting and client
services supports RG A ’s business in
India. During 2006, new business among
life insurance companies in India grew by
more than 70% . Despite a challenging
Indian reinsurance pricing environment,
RG A won key new accounts by providing
superior support to clients. RG A India’s
premium growth achieved the same
levels as the previous year.
The IT Services team is an integral
part of RG A ’s global IT team, supplying
software development and technology
support for its business operations. This
unit complements IT operations in North
America, tapping the depth of the Indian
technology market for developers and
technicians, and providing project management services for packaged, outsourced work in India.

64%

The newest of RGA’s
business segments,
comprising Europe,
South Africa, India and
Latin America, achieved
impressive growth
of 64% in pre-tax net
income over 2005.

Latin America
RG A serves the Latin American
region from its office in Mexico City,
with a primary focus on Mexico.
2006 presented challenges due
to major political changes in the

Underwriting Smarter:
Doing More with Less
continue
to grow and become more complex.
Pressure has intensified to issue
policies faster and cheaper, while
preserving bottom-line profitability.
This is occurring at the same time
that the ‘right to underwrite’ is being
challenged; in some jurisdictions,
applicants cannot be declined. There
is a growing emphasis on evidencebased risk selection around the world.
Industry trends have resulted in
more extensive use of underwriting
methods such as tele-underwriting
and age-specific risk selection
tools, and have increased demand
for preferred- and morbidity-type
U n d erwriting d e m an d s

largest regional economies. Despite
economic uncertainties, RG A ’s
group life reinsurance business
generated considerable growth.
During the year, the company placed
special emphasis on reinsurance

products. Medical advances have
raised the underwriting bar while new
tests have been developed that help
risk selection.
On the financial underwriting side,
policies are becoming larger, while
there is an increasing reluctance
on the part of applicants to provide
adequate financial information.
Working with clients to find alternative sources of credible financial
information has been an important
initiative.
In an environment where more
is expected with less information,
companies must underwrite ‘smarter’.
Effective underwriting requires
access to mortality expertise either
in-house or through outsourcing,
while understanding the risk, based

products in non-traditional distribution
channels. RG A ’s Latin American
business unit reported good technical
results and an increase in profits, despite
aggressive regional competition in life
reinsurance.

on country, product, age group and
the individual applicant. Companies
must be selective with their requirements; they must be attuned to the
environment, and appreciate that the
quality and volume of information
varies by marketplace, as does the
impairment profile. They should also
understand that a minor change in an
application form may have a significant
impact on anti-selection and claims.
Successful companies adapt to
change and are continually assessing
new underwriting tools and techniques
for their use or non-use. Underwriting
‘smarter’ means understanding the
science behind what is happening to
more accurately assess risk and offer
more insurance to more people at
more competitive rates.
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Selected Consolidated Financial and Operating Data
Years Ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share and operating data)
Income Statement Data (1)
r e v enues :
Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains (losses), net
Change in value of embedded derivatives (2)
Other revenues

2006

       $

Total revenues

4,346.0
779.7
(4.0)
6.5
65.5

2005

2004

2003

2002

     $ 3,866.8      $ 3,347.4      $ 2,643.2      $ 1,980.7
639.2
580.5
465.6
374.5
13.6
29.5
5.3
(14.6)
7.4
26.1
43.6
–
57.7
55.4
47.3
41.4

5,193.7

4,584.7

4,038.9

3,205.0

2,382.0

Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other
insurance expenses
Change in deferred acquisition costs associated
with change in value of embedded derivatives (2)
Other operating expenses
Interest expense
Collateral finance facility expense (3)

3,488.4
244.8

3,187.9
208.4

2,678.5
198.9

2,108.4
179.7

1,539.5
126.7

712.6

629.3

591.0

458.2

391.5

3.7
204.4
62.0
26.4

7.0
154.4
41.4
–

22.9
140.0
38.4
–

30.7
119.6
36.8
–

–
94.8
35.5
–

Total benefits and expenses

4,742.3

4,228.4

3,669.7

2,933.4

2,188.0

451.4
158.1

356.3
120.7

369.2
123.9

271.6
93.3

194.0
65.5

293.3

235.6

245.3

178.3

128.5

b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

   

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued accident and
health operations, net of income taxes
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of income taxes
Net income
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(5.1)

(11.4)

–
       $

288.2

–
     $

224.2      $

(23.0)
(0.4)
221.9      $

(5.7)
0.5
173.1      $

(5.7)
–
122.8

Selected Consolidated Financial and Operating Data (continued)
Years Ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share and operating data)

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

bas i c e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e (1)

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Accounting change

       $

4.79
(0.08)
–

     $

3.77      $
(0.19)
–

3.94      $
(0.37)
(0.01)

3.47      $
(0.11)
0.01

2.60
(0.11)
–

Net income

       $

4.71

     $

3.58      $

3.56      $

3.37      $

2.49

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Accounting change

       $

4.65
(0.08)
–

     $

3.70      $
(0.18)
–

3.90      $
(0.37)
(0.01)

3.46      $
(0.11)
0.01

2.59
(0.12)
–

Net income

       $

4.57

     $

3.52      $

3.52      $

3.36      $

2.47

d i lu t ed e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e (1)

Weighted average diluted shares, in thousands
Dividends per share on common stock

63,062
       $

0.36

63,724
     $

0.36      $

62,964
0.27      $

51,598

49,648

0.24      $

0.24

ba l a n ce s h ee t data (1)

Total investments
       $ 14,612.9
Total assets
19,036.8
Policy liabilities
13,354.5
Long-term debt
676.2
Collateral finance facility (3)
850.4
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable
preferred securities of subsidiary trust
holding solely junior subordinated debentures
of the Company
158.7
Total stockholders’ equity
2,815.4
Total stockholders’ equity per share (4)
       $
45.85
( i n b i lli o ns ) (1)
Assumed ordinary life reinsurance in force
Assumed new business production

     $ 12,331.5      $ 10,564.2      $ 8,883.4      $ 6,650.2
16,193.9
14,048.1
12,113.4
8,892.6
11,726.3
10,314.5
8,811.8
6,603.7
674.4
349.7
398.1
327.8
–
–
–
–

     $

158.6
2,527.5
41.38      $

158.4
2,279.0
36.50      $

158.3
1,947.7
31.33      $

158.2
1,222.5
24.72

1,736.6      $
354.1

1,458.9      $
279.1

1,252.2      $
544.4

758.9
230.0

o p er at i n g data

       $

1,980.3
370.4

     $

During December 2003, the Company completed a large coinsurance agreement with Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America.
 In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board cleared Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 Interpretation Issue No. B36, “Embedded Derivatives:
Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and Debt Instruments that Incorporate Credit Risk Exposures are Unrelated or only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the
Obligor under Those instruments,” (“Issue B36”). The Company adopted that the provisions of Issue B36 during the fourth quarter of 2003. For more information, see Note 2 –
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3)
 During 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, Timberlake Financial, issued $850.0 million floating rate insured notes. See Note 15 – “Collateral Finance Facility” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
(4)
The Company believes that its total stockholders’ equity (book value) per share, calculated by dividing total stockholder’s equity by shares outstanding, may be difficult to
    analyze without disclosing the effects of recording accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of total stockholders’ equity disclosed in the consolidated balance     
    sheets.  Therefore, the Company believes book value per share excluding accumulated other comprehensive income is a meaningful non-GAAP financial measure.  Book value
    per share was $45.85, $41.38, $20.30, and $7.15 as of December 31, 2006, 2005, 2001, and 1993, respectively.  These figures include $7.06, $7.32, $(0.13), and $(0.07) per
    share, respectively, related to accumulated other comprehensive income.  Book value per share excluding accumulated other comprehensive income was $38.79, $34.06,
    $20.43, and $7.22 as of December 31, 2006, 2005, 2001, and 1993, respectively, resulting in one-, five-, and thirteen-year compound average growth rates of 14%.
(1)

(2)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements
This report contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 including, among others, statements relating to projections of the strategies, earnings, revenues, income or loss,
ratios, future financial performance, and growth potential
of the Company. The words “intend,” “expect,” “project,”
“estimate,” “predict,” “anticipate,” “should,” “believe,” and other
similar expressions also are intended to identify forwardlooking statements. Forward-looking statements are
inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which
cannot be predicted or quantified. Future events and actual
results, performance, and achievements could differ materially
from those set forth in, contemplated by, or underlying the
forward-looking statements.
Numerous important factors could cause actual results and
events to differ materially from those expressed or implied by
forward-looking statements including, without limitation,
(1) adverse changes in mortality, morbidity, lapsation or claims
experience, (2) changes in the Company’s financial strength
and credit ratings or those of MetLife, Inc. (“MetLife”), the
beneficial owner of a majority of the Company’s common
shares, or its subsidiaries, and the effect of such changes on
the Company’s future results of operations and financial condition, (3) inadequate risk analysis and underwriting, (4) general
economic conditions or a prolonged economic downturn
affecting the demand for insurance and reinsurance in the
Company’s current and planned markets, (5) the availability
and cost of collateral necessary for regulatory reserves and
capital, (6) market or economic conditions that adversely
affect the Company’s ability to make timely sales of
investment securities, (7) risks inherent in the Company’s risk
management and investment strategy, including changes in
investment portfolio yields due to interest rate or credit quality
changes, (8) fluctuations in U.S. or foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates, or securities and real estate markets,
(9) adverse litigation or arbitration results, (10) the adequacy of
reserves, resources and accurate information relating to settlements, awards and terminated and discontinued lines of
business, (11) the stability of and actions by governments and
economies in the markets in which the Company operates,
(12) competitive factors and competitors’ responses to the
Company’s initiatives, (13) the success of the Company’s
clients, (14) successful execution of the Company’s entry
into new markets, (15) successful development and introduction of new products and distribution opportunities, (16) the
Company’s ability to successfully integrate and operate reinsurance business that the Company acquires, (17) regulatory
action that may be taken by state Departments of Insurance
with respect to the Company, MetLife, or its subsidiaries,
(18) the Company’s dependence on third parties, including
those insurance companies and reinsurers to which the
Company cedes some reinsurance, third-party investment
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managers and others, (19) the threat of natural disasters,
catastrophes, terrorist attacks, epidemics or pandemics
anywhere in the world where the Company or its clients do
business, (20) changes in laws, regulations, and accounting
standards applicable to the Company, its subsidiaries, or its
business, (21) the effect of the Company’s status as an insurance holding company and regulatory restrictions on its ability
to pay principal of and interest on its debt obligations, and
(22) other risks and uncertainties described in this document
and in the Company’s other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Forward-looking statements should be evaluated
together with the many risks and uncertainties that affect the
Company’s business, including those mentioned in this document and the cautionary statements described in the periodic
reports the Company files with the SEC. These forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date on which they are made.
The Company does not undertake any obligations to update
these forward-looking statements, even though the Company’s
situation may change in the future. The Company qualifies all
of its forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements. For a discussion of these risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contained in the forward-looking statements, you are advised
to see Item 1A – “Risk Factors” in the Company’s 2006 Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 26, 2007.
Overview
Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated (“RGA”) is an
insurance holding company that was formed on December 31,
1992. As of December 31, 2006, General American Life
Insurance Company (“General American”), a Missouri life
insurance company, directly owned approximately 52.5% of the
outstanding shares of common stock of RGA. General American
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of MetLife, a New York-based
insurance and financial services holding company.
The consolidated financial statements include the assets,
liabilities, and results of operations of RGA, RGA Reinsurance
Company (“RGA Reinsurance”), RGA Reinsurance Company
(Barbados) Ltd. (“RGA Barbados”), RGA Life Reinsurance
Company of Canada (“RGA Canada”), RGA Americas
Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (“RGA Americas”), RGA
Reinsurance Company of Australia, Limited (“RGA Australia”)
and RGA Reinsurance UK Limited (“RGA UK”) as well as
several other subsidiaries subject to an ownership position
of greater than fifty percent (collectively, the “Company”).
The Company is primarily engaged in traditional individual
life, asset-intensive, critical illness and financial reinsurance.
rga and its predecessor, the Reinsurance Division of
General American, have been engaged in the business of life
reinsurance since 1973. Approximately 71.0% of the Company’s
2006 net premiums were from its more established operations in
North America, which include its U.S. and Canada segments.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The Company believes it is one of the leading life reinsurers
in North America based on premiums and the amount of life
reinsurance in force. The Company believes, based on an
industry survey prepared by Munich American at the request of
the Society of Actuaries Reinsurance Section (“SOA survey”),
that it has the second largest market share in North America
as measured by life insurance in force. The Company’s
approach to the North American market has been to:
• focus on large, high quality life insurers as clients;
• provide quality facultative underwriting and automatic
reinsurance capacity; and
• deliver responsive and flexible service to its clients.
In 1994, the Company began using its North American
underwriting expertise and industry knowledge to expand into
international markets and now has subsidiaries, branches or
representative offices in Australia, Barbados, Bermuda, China,
Hong Kong, India, Ireland, Japan, Mexico, Poland, South Africa,
South Korea, Spain, Taiwan and the United Kingdom. These
operations are included in either the Company’s Asia Pacific
segment or its Europe & South Africa segment. The Company
generally starts new operations from the ground up in these
markets as opposed to acquiring existing operations, and it
often enters these markets to support its North American
clients as they expand internationally. Based on Standard &
Poor’s Global Reinsurance Highlights, 2006 Edition, the
Company believes it is the third largest life reinsurer in the
world based on 2005 gross life reinsurance premiums. While
the Company believes information published by Standard &
Poor’s is generally reliable, the Company has not independently
verified the data. Standard & Poor’s does not guarantee the
accuracy and completeness of the information. The Company
conducts business with the majority of the largest U.S. and
international life insurance companies. The Company has also
developed its capacity and expertise in the reinsurance of
asset-intensive products (primarily annuities and corporateowned life insurance) and financial reinsurance.
Industry Trends
The Company believes that the following trends in the life
insurance industry will continue to create demand for life
reinsurance.
Outsourcing of Mortality. The SOA survey indicates that
U.S. life reinsurance in force has more than doubled
from $3.2 trillion in 1999 to $7.0 trillion at year-end 2005.
The Company believes this trend reflects the continued
utilization by life insurance companies of reinsurance to
manage capital and mortality risk and to develop competitive
products. However, the survey results indicate a smaller
percentage of new business was reinsured in 2005 than previous years, which has caused premium growth rates in the
U.S. life reinsurance market to moderate from previous years.

The Company believes the decline in new business being
reinsured is likely a reaction by ceding companies to a broadbased increase in reinsurance rates in the market. However,
the Company believes reinsurers will continue to be an integral
part of the life insurance market due to their ability to efficiently aggregate a significant volume of life insurance in force,
creating economies of scale and greater diversification of risk.
As a result of having larger amounts of data at their disposal
compared to primary life insurance companies, reinsurers tend
to have better insights into mortality trends, creating more
efficient pricing for mortality risk.
Increased Capital Sensitivity. Regulatory environments,
rating agencies and competitive business pressures are
causing life insurers to reinsure as a means to:
• manage risk-based capital by shifting mortality and other
risks to reinsurers, thereby reducing amounts of reserves
and capital they need to maintain;
• release capital to pursue new business initiatives; and
• unlock the capital supporting, and value embedded in,
non-core product lines.
Consolidation and Reorganization Within the Life
Reinsurance and Life Insurance Industry. As a result of
consolidations in recent years within the life reinsurance
industry, there are fewer competitors. According to the SOA
survey, as of December 31, 2005, the top five companies held
approximately 77.6% of the market share in North America
based on life reinsurance in force, whereas in 1999, the top five
companies held approximately 56.8% of the market share.
As a consequence, the Company believes the life reinsurance
pricing environment will remain attractive for the remaining life
reinsurers, particularly those with a significant market presence and strong ratings.
The SOA surveys indicate that the authors obtained information from participating or responding companies and do not
guarantee the accuracy and completeness of their information.
Additionally, the surveys do not survey all reinsurance companies, but the Company believes most of its principal competitors
are included. While the Company believes these surveys to be
generally reliable, the Company has not independently verified
their data.
Additionally, the number of merger and acquisition transactions within the life insurance industry has increased in recent
years. The Company believes that reorganizations and consolidations of life insurers will continue. As reinsurance products
are increasingly used to facilitate these transactions and
manage risk, the Company expects demand for its products
to continue.
Changing Demographics of Insured Populations.
The aging of the population in North America is increasing
demand for financial products among “baby boomers” who are
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concerned about protecting their peak income stream and are
considering retirement and estate planning. The Company
believes that this trend is likely to result in continuing demand
for annuity products and life insurance policies, larger face
amounts of life insurance policies and higher mortality risk
taken by life insurers, all of which should fuel the need for
insurers to seek reinsurance coverage.
The Company continues to follow a two-part business
strategy to capitalize on industry trends.
Continue Growth of Core North American Business.
The Company’s strategy includes continuing to grow each of
the following components of its North American operations:
• Facultative Reinsurance. Based on discussions with the
Company’s clients, an industry survey and informal knowledge about the industry, the Company believes it is a leader
in facultative underwriting in North America. The Company
intends to maintain that status by emphasizing its underwriting standards, prompt response on quotes, competitive
pricing, capacity and flexibility in meeting customer needs.
The Company believes its facultative business has allowed
it to develop close, long-standing client relationships
and generate additional business opportunities with its
facultative clients.
• Automatic Reinsurance. The Company intends to expand
its presence in the North American automatic reinsurance
market by using its mortality expertise and breadth of
products and services to gain additional market share.
• In Force Block Reinsurance. The Company anticipates
additional opportunities to grow its business by reinsuring
“in force block” insurance, as insurers and reinsurers seek
to exit various non-core businesses and increase financial
flexibility in order to, among other things, redeploy capital
and pursue merger and acquisition activity. The Company
took advantage of one such opportunity in 2003 when it
assumed the traditional life reinsurance business of Allianz
Life Insurance Company of North America (“Allianz Life”).
Continue Expansion Into Selected Markets and Products.
The Company’s strategy includes building upon the expertise
and relationships developed in its core North American business platform to continue its expansion into selected markets
and products, including:
• International Markets. Management believes that inter
national markets offer opportunities for growth, and the
Company intends to capitalize on these opportunities by
establishing a presence in selected markets. Since 1994,
the Company has entered new markets internationally,
including, in the mid-to-late 1990’s, Australia, Hong Kong,
Japan, Malaysia, New Zealand, South Africa, Spain, Taiwan
and the United Kingdom (“UK”), and beginning in 2002,
China, India and South Korea. The Company’s most recent
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expansions took place in 2005, when the Company received
regulatory approval to open a representative office in
China, and in 2006 when the Company opened a representative office in Poland. Before entering new markets, the
Company evaluates several factors including:
– the size of the insured population,
– competition,
– the level of reinsurance penetration,
– regulation,
– existing clients with a presence in the market, and
– the economic, social and political environment.
As previously indicated, the Company generally starts new
operations in these markets from the ground up as opposed
to acquiring existing operations, and it often enters these
markets to support its large international clients as they
expand into additional markets. Many of the markets that
the Company has entered since 1994, or may enter in the
future, are not utilizing life reinsurance, including facultative
life reinsurance, at the same levels as the North American
market, and therefore, the Company believes represent
opportunities for increasing reinsurance penetration.
Additionally, the Company believes that in certain markets,
ceding companies may want to reduce counterparty exposure to their existing life reinsurers, creating opportunities
for the Company.
• Asset-intensive and Other Products . The Company
intends to continue leveraging its existing client relationships and reinsurance expertise to create customized
reinsurance products and solutions. Industry trends, particularly the increased pace of consolidation and reorganization
among life insurance companies and changes in products
and product distribution, are expected to enhance existing
opportunities for asset-intensive and other products.
To date, most of the Company’s asset-intensive business
and other products have been written in the U.S.; however,
the Company believes opportunities outside of the U.S.
may further develop in the near future.
Financial Objectives
The Company sets various consolidated financial and
operating goals for the intermediate period (next three to
five years) including:
• Achieving a return on stockholders’ equity of 12%; and
• Achieving annual earnings per share growth of 12% .
Additionally, the Company has financial growth expectations
for various operating segments for the intermediate period
(next three to five years). In its U.S. and Canada operations,
the Company expects growth rates for premium and income
before income taxes of 8% to 10% . The Company’s newer
international operations, which include Europe & South Africa,
and Asia Pacific, are subject to more volatility. For these newer
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international operations, the Company anticipates growth in
premium and income before income taxes of 12% to 15% over
the intermediate term (next three to five years).
These goals and expectations are aspirational and you
should not rely on them. The Company can give no assurance
that it will be able to approach or meet any of these goals, and
it may fall short of any or all of them. See “Forward-Looking
and Cautionary Statements” above.
Results of Operations
The Company derives revenues primarily from renewal premiums from existing reinsurance treaties, new business
premiums from existing or new reinsurance treaties, income
earned on invested assets, and fees earned from financial
reinsurance transactions.
The Company’s primary business is life reinsurance, which
involves reinsuring life insurance policies that are often in force
for the remaining lifetime of the underlying individuals insured,
with premiums earned typically over a period of 10 to 30 years.
Each year, however, a portion of the business under existing
treaties terminates due to, among other things, lapses or
voluntary surrenders of underlying policies, deaths of insureds,
and the exercise of recapture options by ceding companies.
Consolidated assumed insurance in force increased
from $1.7 trillion for the year ended December 31, 2005 to
$2.0 trillion for the year ended December 31, 2006. Assumed
new business production for 2006 totaled $370.4 billion
compared to $354.1 billion in 2005 and $279.1 billion in 2004.
As is customary in the reinsurance business, life insurance
clients continually update, refine, and revise reinsurance information provided to the Company. Such revised information is
used by the Company in preparation of its financial statements
and the financial effects resulting from the incorporation of
revised data are reflected currently.
The Company’s profitability primarily depends on the
volume and amount of death claims incurred and the ability
to adequately price the risks it assumes. While death claims
are reasonably predictable over a period of many years,
claims become less predictable over shorter periods and
are subject to significant fluctuation from quarter to quarter
and year to year.
Since December 31, 1998, the Company has formally
reported its accident and health division as a discontinued
operation. The accident and health business was placed into
run-off, and all treaties were terminated at the earliest possible
date. Notice was given to all cedants and retrocessionaires
that all treaties were being cancelled at the expiration of their
terms. The nature of the underlying risks is such that the
claims may take several years to reach the reinsurers involved.
Thus, the Company expects to pay claims over a number of
years as the level of business diminishes. The Company will
report a loss to the extent claims and related expenses exceed
established reserves. During 2004, the accident and health

division reported a net loss of $23.0 million, due to claim
payments in excess of established reserves, an arbitration
settlement and legal fees. See Note 20 – “Discontinued
Operations” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Company has five main operational segments, each
of which is a distinct reportable segment: U.S., Canada, Europe
& South Africa, Asia Pacific and Corporate and Other. The U.S.
operations provide traditional life, asset-intensive, and financial
reinsurance primarily to domestic clients. The Canada operations provide insurers with reinsurance of traditional life products
as well as creditor reinsurance, group life and health reinsurance
and non-guaranteed critical illness products. Europe & South
Africa operations include traditional life reinsurance and critical
illness business from Europe & South Africa, in addition to other
markets the Company is developing. Asia Pacific operations
provide primarily traditional life reinsurance, critical illness and,
to a lesser extent, financial reinsurance. The Corporate and
Other segment results include the corporate investment activity,
general corporate expenses, interest expense of RGA, operations of RGA Technology Partners, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary that develops and markets technology solutions,
Argentine business in run-off, and the investment income and
expense associated with the Company’s collateral finance
facility. The Company’s discontinued accident and health business is excluded from continuing operations. The Company
measures segment performance based on profit or loss from
operations before income taxes.
Effective January 1, 2006 the Company changed its method
of allocating capital to its segments from a method based upon
regulatory capital requirements to one based on underlying
economic capital levels. The economic capital model is an
internally developed risk capital model, the purpose of which is
to measure the risk in the business and to provide a basis upon
which capital is deployed. The economic capital model considers
the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in RGA’s
businesses. This is in contrast to the standardized regulatory
risk based capital formula, which is not as refined in its risk
calculations with respect to each of the Company’s businesses.
As a result of the economic capital allocation process, a portion
of investment income and investment related gains (losses)
is credited to the segments based on the level of allocated
equity. In addition, the segments are charged for excess
capital utilized above the allocated economic capital basis.
This charge is included in policy acquisition costs and other
insurance expenses. The prior period segment results have
been adjusted to conform to the new allocation methodology.
Consolidated income from continuing operations increased
24.5% in 2006 to $293.3 million and decreased 4.0% in 2005
to $235.6 million. Diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations were $4.65 for 2006 compared to $3.70 for 2005
and $3.90 for 2004. A majority of the Company’s earnings
during these years were attributed primarily to traditional
reinsurance results in the U.S.
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Consolidated investment income increased 22.0% and 10.1%
during 2006 and 2005, respectively. These increases related to a
growing invested asset base due to positive cash flows from the
Company’s mortality operations and deposits from several
annuity reinsurance treaties, offset, in part, by slightly declining
invested asset yields primarily due to a decline in prevailing
interest rates. The cost basis of invested assets increased by
$2.3 billion, or 19.7%, in 2006 and increased $1.6 billion, or
15.9%, in 2005. A significant portion of the increase in invested
assets in 2006 is related to the Company’s investment of the net
proceeds from its collateral finance facility in June 2006 (See
“Liquidity and Capital Resources – Collateral Finance Facility”)
and the issuance of $400 million of Junior Subordinated
Debentures in December 2005. The average yield earned on
investments, excluding funds withheld, was 5.81% in 2006,
compared with 5.89% in 2005 and 5.91% in 2004. The Company
expects the average yield to vary from year to year depending
on a number of variables, including the prevailing interest rate
environment, and changes in the mix of the underlying investments. Funds withheld assets are primarily associated with the
reinsurance of annuity contracts on which the Company earns a
spread. Fluctuations in the yield on funds withheld assets are
generally offset by a corresponding adjustment to the interest
credited on the liabilities. Investment income and investment
related gains and losses are allocated to the operating segments based upon average assets and related capital levels
deemed appropriate to support the segment business volumes.
The consolidated provision for income taxes from continuing operations represents approximately 35.0%, 33.9%,
and 33.6% of pre-tax income for 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. The Company generally expects the consolidated
effective tax rate to be between 34% and 35% . The Company
calculated tax benefits related to its discontinued operations
of $2.7 million for 2006, $6.2 million for 2005, and $12.4 million
for 2004. The effective tax rate on discontinued operations is
approximately 35% for each of the three years.
Critical Accounting Policies
The Company’s accounting policies are described in Note 2 –
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company believes its
most critical accounting policies include the capitalization and
amortization of deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”), the establishment of liabilities for future policy benefits, other policy
claims and benefits, including incurred but not reported
claims, the valuation of investment impairments, and the
establishment of arbitration or litigation reserves. The balances of these accounts are significant to the Company’s
financial position and require extensive use of assumptions
and estimates, particularly related to the future performance
of the underlying business.
Additionally, for each of its reinsurance contracts,
the Company must determine if the contract provides
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indemnification against loss or liability relating to insurance
risk, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The Company must review all contractual features, particularly
those that may limit the amount of insurance risk to which the
Company is subject or features that delay the timely reimbursement of claims. If the Company determines that the
possibility of a significant loss from insurance risk will occur
only under remote circumstances, it records the contract under
a deposit method of accounting with the net amount payable/
receivable reflected in other reinsurance assets or liabilities on
the consolidated balance sheets. Fees earned on the contracts
are reflected as other revenues, as opposed to premiums, on
the consolidated statements of income.
Costs of acquiring new business, which vary with and are
primarily related to the production of new business, have been
deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable
from future premiums or gross profits. DAC amounts reflect the
Company’s expectations about the future experience of the
business in force and include commissions and allowances as
well as certain costs of policy issuance and underwriting.
Some of the factors that can affect the carrying value of DAC
include mortality assumptions, interest spreads and policy
lapse rates. For traditional life and related coverages, the
Company performs periodic tests to determine whether DAC
remains recoverable, and if experience significantly deteriorates to the point where a premium deficiency exists, a
cumulative charge to current operations will be recorded.
No such adjustments were made during 2006, 2005 or 2004.
For its asset intensive business, the Company updates the
estimated gross profits with actual gross profits each reporting
period, resulting in an increase or decrease to DAC to reflect
the difference in the actual gross profits versus the previously
estimated gross profits. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company estimates that approximately 78.9% of its DAC
balance is collateralized by surrender fees due to the Company
and the reduction of policy liabilities, in excess of termination
values, upon surrender or lapse of a policy.
Liabilities for future policy benefits under long-term life
insurance policies (policy reserves) are computed based upon
expected investment yields, mortality and withdrawal (lapse)
rates, and other assumptions, including a provision for adverse
deviation from expected claim levels. The Company primarily
relies on its own valuation and administration systems to
establish policy reserves. The policy reserves established by
the Company may differ from those established by its ceding
companies (clients) due to the use of different mortality and
other assumptions. However, the Company relies on its clients
to provide accurate data, including policy-level information,
premiums and claims, which is the primary information used to
establish reserves. The Company’s administration departments
work directly with clients to help ensure information is submitted by them in accordance with the reinsurance contracts.
Additionally, the Company performs periodic audits of the
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information provided by ceding companies. The Company
establishes reserves for processing backlogs with a goal of
clearing all backlogs within a ninety-day period. The backlogs
are usually due to data errors the Company discovers or computer file compatibility issues, since much of the data reported
to the Company is in electronic format and is uploaded to its
computer systems.
The Company periodically reviews actual historical experience and relative anticipated experience compared to the
assumptions used to establish policy reserves. Further, the
Company determines whether actual and anticipated experience indicates that existing policy reserves together with the
present value of future gross premiums are sufficient to cover
the present value of future benefits, settlement and maintenance costs and to recover unamortized acquisition costs.
This loss recognition testing is performed at the segment level
and, if necessary, net liabilities are increased along with a
charge to income. Because of the many assumptions and
estimates used in establishing reserves and the long-term
nature of reinsurance contracts, the reserving process, while
based on actuarial science, is inherently uncertain.
Claims payable for incurred but not reported claims are
determined using case basis estimates and lag studies of past
experience. These estimates are periodically reviewed, and any
adjustments to such estimates, if necessary, are reflected in
current operations.
The Company primarily invests in fixed maturity securities.
The Company monitors its fixed maturity securities to determine potential impairments in value. The Company evaluates
factors such as the financial condition of the issuer, payment
performance, the extent to which the market value has been
below amortized cost, compliance with covenants, general
market and industry sector conditions, the intent and ability

to hold securities, and various other subjective factors.
Securities, based on management’s judgments, with an
other-than-temporary impairment in value are written down
to management’s estimate of fair value.
Differences in actual experience compared with the
assumptions and estimates utilized in the justification of the
recoverability of DAC, in establishing reserves for future policy
benefits and claim liabilities, or in the determination of otherthan-temporary impairments to investment securities can have
a material effect on the Company’s results of operations and
financial condition.
The Company is currently a party to various litigation and
arbitrations. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the
ultimate outcome of the pending litigation or arbitrations or
even provide reasonable ranges of potential losses, it is the
opinion of management, after consultation with counsel, that
the outcomes of such litigation and arbitrations, after consideration of the provisions made in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, would not have a material adverse effect
on its consolidated financial position. However, it is possible
that an adverse outcome could, from time to time, have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated net
income or cash flows in particular quarterly or annual periods.
See Note 13 – “Commitments and Contingent Liabilities” and
Note 20 – “Discontinued Operations” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Further discussion and analysis of the results for 2006
compared to 2005 and 2004 are presented by segment.
Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the current year presentation. References to income before
income taxes exclude the effects of discontinued operations
and the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles.
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U . S . O P E R AT I O N S

U.S. operations consist of two major sub-segments: Traditional and Non-Traditional. The Traditional sub-segment primarily
specializes in mortality-risk reinsurance. The Non-Traditional sub-segment consists of Asset-Intensive and Financial Reinsurance.
For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Traditional

Non-Traditional
Asset-Intensive

r e v enues :
Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains (losses), net
Change in value of embedded derivatives
Other revenues

    $ 2,647,322     $
305,221
(4,077)
–
269

Total revenues
b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :
Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Change in DAC associated with change in value of embedded derivatives
Other operating expenses

Total benefits and expenses
Income before income taxes

For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands)

    $

6,190     $
267,111
(8,706)
6,543
20,031

–     $ 2,653,512
(213)
572,119
4
(12,779)
–
6,543
29,868
50,168

2,948,735

291,169

29,659

3,269,563

2,174,142
50,059
395,531
–
41,881

581
192,092
67,461
3,735
7,113

5
–
9,284
–
5,331

2,174,728
242,151
472,276
3,735
54,325

2,661,613

270,982

14,620

2,947,215

287,122     $

20,187     $

15,039     $

Non-Traditional

Traditional

Asset-Intensive
r e v enues :
Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related losses, net
Change in value of embedded derivatives
Other revenues

Total U.S.
Financial
Reinsurance

    $ 2,428,890     $
268,531
(8,603)
–
1,318

322,348

Total U.S.
Financial
Reinsurance

4,670     $
214,941
(1,059)
7,444
8,621

–     $ 2,433,560
467
483,939
(21)
(9,683)
–
7,444
28,393
38,332

Total revenues

2,690,136

234,617

28,839

2,953,592

b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :
Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Change in DAC associated with change in value of embedded derivatives
Other operating expenses

2,008,537
53,958
354,981
–
40,289

4,870
151,966
49,436
6,972
5,056

6
–
8,358
–
5,411

2,013,413
205,924
412,775
6,972
50,756

2,457,765

218,300

13,775

2,689,840

Total benefits and expenses
Income before income taxes
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    $

232,371     $

16 , 317     $

15,064     $

263,752

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
U . S . O P E R AT I O N S ( continued )

For The Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands)

Traditional

Non-Traditional
Asset-Intensive

Total U.S.
Financial
Reinsurance

r e v enues :

Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains (losses), net
Change in value of embedded derivatives
Other revenues

    $ 2,207,717     $
237,272
18,117
–
3,216

Total revenues

4,833     $
211,948
(7,232)
26,104
9,735

–     $ 2,212,550
589
449,809
46
10,931
–
26,104
26,261
39,212

2,466,322

245,388

26,896

2,738,606

1,761,544
50,290
341,265
–
43,947

9,751
146,480
49,837
22,896
4,714

2
–
8,292
–
5,466

1,771,297
196,770
399,394
22,896
54,127

2,197,046

233,678

13,760

2,444,484

b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :

Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Change in DAC associated with change in value of embedded derivatives
Other operating expenses
Total benefits and expenses
Income before income taxes

Income before income taxes for the U.S. operations totaled
$322.3 million in 2006, compared to $263.8 million for 2005
and $294.1 million in 2004. Continued growth in the total
U.S. business in force as well as improved mortality results
contributed to the overall growth in income for 2006. The drop
in income in 2005 occurred in the Traditional sub-segment
and can be attributed largely to the unfavorable mortality
experience in 2005.
Traditional Reinsurance
The U.S. traditional sub-segment provides life reinsurance to
domestic clients for a variety of life products through yearly
renewable term agreements, coinsurance and modified coinsurance agreements. These reinsurance arrangements may
be either facultative or automatic agreements. During 2006,
production totaled $172.1 billion of face amount of new business, compared to $186.7 billion in 2005 and $168.8 billion in
2004. Management believes industry consolidation and the
established practice of reinsuring mortality risks should continue to provide reinsurance opportunities.
Income before income taxes for U.S. traditional reinsurance
increased 23.6%, or $54.8 million in 2006. Improved mortality
experience together with increased premiums and higher
investment income were the main contributors to the total
increase in net income for the year. Income before taxes in
2005 decreased $36.9 million. As mentioned above, the mortality experience in 2005 was unfavorable. This coupled with
the favorable mortality experience in 2004 was the primary
reason for the 13.7% decrease.
Net premiums for U.S. traditional reinsurance increased
$218.4 million in 2006, or 9.0% and $221.2 million in 2005,

    $

269,276     $

11,710     $

13,136     $

294,122

or 10.0% . Premium levels are driven primarily by the
growth of total U.S. business in force, which increased to
$1,159.8 billion in 2006, an increase of 7.0% over the 2005
in force of $1,083.7 billion. Total in force at year-end 2004
was $996.7 billion.
Net investment income increased $36.7 million, or 13.7% ,
and $31.3 million, or 13.2% , in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The increase in both years is primarily due to growth in the
invested asset base, due to increased operating cash flows on
traditional reinsurance. Investment income and investment
related gains and losses are allocated to the various operating
segments based on average assets and related capital levels
deemed appropriate to support the segment business volumes. Investment performance varies with the composition
of investments and the relative allocation of capital to the
operating segments.
Claims and other policy benefits, as a percentage of net
premiums (loss ratios), were 82.1%, 82.7%, and 79.8% in 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively. Mortality experience in 2006
improved to be generally in line with expectations while 2005
was higher than expected and 2004 was favorable. The first
six months of 2005 showed an increase in the severity of
claims, which was the primary contributor to the higher loss
ratio in 2005. Death claims are reasonably predictable over a
period of many years, but are less predictable over shorter
periods and are subject to significant fluctuation.
Interest credited relates to amounts credited on the
Company’s cash value products in this segment, which have a
significant mortality component. This amount fluctuates with
the changes in deposit levels, cash surrender values and
investment performance. Income before income taxes is
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affected by the spread between the investment income and
the interest credited on the underlying products. Interest
credited expense in 2006 totaled $50.1 million compared to
$54.0 million at year-end 2005. This decrease relates primarily
to one treaty in which the credited loan rate decreased from
5.7% in 2005 to 4.6% in 2006.
The amount of policy acquisition costs and other insurance
expenses, as a percentage of net premiums, was 14.9%, 14.6%,
and 15.5% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Overall, these
percentages will fluctuate due to varying allowance levels
within coinsurance-type arrangements, the timing of amounts
due to and from ceding companies, as well as the amortization
pattern of previously capitalized amounts, which are based
on the form of the reinsurance agreement and the underlying
insurance policies. Additionally, the mix of first year coinsurance versus yearly renewable term can cause the percentage
to fluctuate from period to period.
Other operating expenses, as a percentage of net premiums, were 1.6% , 1.7% and 2.0% in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The expense ratio is expected to fluctuate
slightly from period to period, however, the size and maturity
of the U.S. operations segment indicates it should remain
relatively constant over the long term. The slightly higher ratio
in 2004 can be attributed to expenses associated with the
2003 coinsurance agreement with Allianz Life.
Asset-Intensive Reinsurance
The U.S. Asset-Intensive sub-segment concentrates on the
investment risk within underlying annuities and corporateowned life insurance policies. Most of these agreements are
coinsurance, coinsurance funds withheld or modified coinsurance of non-mortality risks such that the Company recognizes
profits or losses primarily from the spread between the investment earnings and the interest credited on the underlying
deposit liabilities.
In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133 Implementation Issue
No. B36, “Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance
Arrangements and Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit
Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Related
to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor under Those Instruments”
(“Issue B36”), the Company recorded a change in value of
embedded derivatives during 2006, 2005 and 2004 of
$6.5 million, $7.4 million and $26.1 million within revenues
and $3.7 million, $7.0 million and $22.9 million of related
deferred acquisition costs, respectively. Significant fluctuations
may occur as the fair value of the embedded derivatives is tied
primarily to the movements in credit spreads. These fluctuations
have no impact on cash flows or interest spreads on the underlying treaties. Therefore, Company management believes it is
helpful to distinguish between the effects of Issue B36 and the
primary factors that drive profitability of the underlying treaties,
namely investment income, fee income, and interest credited.
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Additionally, over the expected life of the underlying treaties,
management expects the cumulative effect of Issue B36 to
be immaterial.
Income before income taxes increased in 2006 to
$20.2 million compared to $16.3 million in 2005 and $11.7 million
in 2004. Issue B36 contributed $2.3 million of the increase over
2005. The remaining $1.6 million increase over 2005 is primarily
due to the growth in the asset base and improved spreads
earned on those assets. Income from a new variable annuity
transaction also contributed to the increase year over year.
Income before tax in 2005 increased $4.6 million compared to
2004. This increase can be primarily attributed to a decrease in
investment related losses of $6.2 million somewhat offset by a
reduction of $2.7 million in the gain realized from Issue B36.
Total revenues, which are comprised primarily of investment
income, increased 24.1% from 2005 to 2006. This increase
can be primarily attributed to an increase in investment income
as a result of a growing asset base and an increase in other
revenues resulting from mortality and expense charges earned
on a new variable annuity contract. Offsetting this increase is a
$7.6 million increase in investment related losses. These losses
were mainly the result of an increased rate environment which
allowed the Company to sell bonds at low book yields and
reinvest in higher book yielding securities. Total revenues in
2005 increased $1.7 million over 2004, excluding the impact of
investment related losses and Issue B36. This can be attributed
primarily higher investment income due to a larger asset base.
The average invested asset balance was $4.3 billion,
$3.9 billion and $3.3 billion for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Invested assets outstanding as of December 31, 2006
and 2005 were $4.6 billion and $4.0 billion, of which
$3.1 billion and $2.4 billion were funds withheld at interest,
respectively. Of the $3.1 billion total funds withheld balance
as of December 31, 2006, 90.2% of the balance is associated
with one client.
Total expenses, which are comprised primarily of interest
credited, policy benefits, and acquisition costs, increased 24.1%
in 2006. Interest credited increased 26.4% which correlates to
the increase in investment income mentioned above. Also contributing to the increase were policy acquisition costs related to
new business. Total expenses declined $15.4 million in 2005
from 2004 due to a $15.9 million decrease in the change in DAC
associated with change in value of embedded derivatives.
Financial Reinsurance
The U.S. Financial Reinsurance sub-segment income consists
primarily of net fees earned on financial reinsurance trans
actions. The majority of the financial reinsurance risks are
assumed by the Company and retroceded to other insurance
companies or brokered business in which the company does not
participate in the assumption of risk. The fees earned from the
assumption of the financial reinsurance contracts are reflected
in other revenues, and the fees paid to retrocessionaires are
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reflected in policy acquisition costs and other insurance
expenses. Fees earned on brokered business are reflected
in other revenues.
Income before income taxes remained flat for 2006 as
compared to 2005 and increased 14.7% for 2005 as compared to 2004. While income before income taxes remained
flat in 2006, total revenues for 2006 increased $0.8 million,
as a full year of fees were recognized on transactions signed
in 2005. Offsetting this was a decrease in investment income
as well as an increase in expenses associated with fees paid
to retrocessionaires. The increase in 2005 income over 2004
relates to new financial reinsurance transactions in 2005.

At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the amount of
reinsurance assumed from client companies, as measured
by pre-tax statutory surplus, was $1.8 billion, $1.9 billion and
$1.5 billion, respectively. While the total amount of reinsurance
assumed from client companies decreased in 2006, revenue
increased due to the receipt of a full year of fees in 2006.
The pre-tax statutory surplus includes all business assumed
by the Company. Fees resulting from this business can be
affected by large transactions and the timing of completion
of new transactions and therefore can fluctuate from period
to period.

C A N A D A O P E R AT I O N S

The Company conducts reinsurance business in Canada through RGA Canada, a wholly-owned subsidiary. RGA Canada assists
clients with capital management and mortality risk management, and is primarily engaged in traditional individual life reinsurance,
as well as creditor reinsurance, group life and health reinsurance and non-guaranteed critical illness products.
For The Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
r e v enues :
Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains, net
Other revenues (losses)

2006

       $ 429,438
106,973
5,506
160

Total revenues

2005

       $ 343,131
93,009
3,497
(279)

2004

      $ 253,853
78,763
8,099
32

542,077

439,358

340,747

386,221
831
92,936
16,323

307,959
1,105
64,921
15,174

250,542
1,840
37,939
11,160

b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :

Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Other operating expenses
Total benefits and expenses

496,311
45,766

389,159
       $

50,199

301,481

Income before income taxes

       $

      $

39,266

RGA Canada’s reinsurance in force totaled approximately $155.4
billion, $127.4 billion and $105.2 billion at December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.
Income before income taxes decreased 8.8% and increased
27.8% in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in 2006
was primarily the result of unfavorable mortality experience
in the current year as compared to more favorable experience
in the prior year, offset by an increase in investment related
gains of $2.0 million. Additionally, the Canadian dollar strengthened against the U.S. dollar during 2006, and contributed
$3.5 million to income before income taxes. The increase in
2005 was primarily the result of more favorable mortality
experience, offset by a decrease in investment related gains
of $4.6 million. Additionally, the Canadian dollar strengthened
against the U.S. dollar during 2005 and contributed $3.4 million
to income before income taxes in 2005.
Net premiums increased 25.2% to $429.4 million in 2006,
and increased 35.2% to $343.1 million in 2005. An increase in

premium from creditor treaties contributed $39.2 million
and $38.7 million of the 2006 and 2005 premium increase
respectively. Creditor insurance covers the outstanding balance on personal, mortgage or commercial loans in the event
of death, disability or critical illness and is generally shorter in
duration than traditional life insurance. Creditor and group life
and health premiums represented 20.6% of net premiums in
2006 and 14.4% in 2005. Additionally, a stronger Canadian
dollar contributed $25.2 million and $22.6 million to net
premiums reported in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Premium
levels are significantly influenced by large transactions, mix
of business and reporting practices of ceding companies,
and therefore can fluctuate from period to period.
Net investment income increased 15.0% and 18.1%
during 2006 and 2005, respectively. A stronger Canadian
dollar resulted in an increase in net investment income of
$6.8 million and $5.8 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Interest on an increasing amount of funds withheld at interest
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primarily related to one treaty contributed $2.4 million and
$2.5 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Investment income
and investment related gains and losses are allocated to the
segments based upon average assets and related capital
levels deemed appropriate to support business volumes.
Investment performance varies with the composition of investments and the relative allocation of capital to the operating
segments. The increase in investment income was mainly the
result of an increase in the allocated asset base due to growth
in the underlying business volume.
Loss ratios for this segment were 89.9% in 2006, 89.7% in
2005, and 98.7% in 2004. During 2006 and 2005, the Company
entered into three significant creditor reinsurance treaties. The
loss ratios on this type of business are normally lower than
traditional reinsurance, however allowances are normally higher
as a percentage of premiums. Excluding creditor business, the
loss ratios for this segment were 102.2% in 2006, 97.7% in
2005, and 101.0% in 2004. The higher loss ratio for 2006 is
primarily due to unfavorable mortality experience compared to
the prior year. Historically, the loss ratio has been influenced by
several large permanent level premium in force blocks
assumed in 1998 and 1997. These represent mature blocks of
permanent level premium business in which mortality as a
percentage of premiums is expected to be higher than the
historical ratios. The nature of level premium permanent policies requires the Company to set up actuarial liabilities and
invest the amounts received in excess of early-year mortality

costs to fund claims in the later years when premiums, by
design, continue to be level as compared to expected
increasing mortality or claim costs. Claims and other policy
benefits, as a percentage of net premiums and investment
income, were 72.0% during 2006 compared to 70.6% in 2005
and 75.3% in 2004. Death claims are reasonably predictable
over a period of many years, but are less predictable over
shorter periods and are subject to significant fluctuation.
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses as a
percentage of net premiums totaled 21.6% in 2006, 18.9% in
2005, and 14.9% in 2004. Excluding the impact of the stronger
Canadian dollar and creditor business, policy acquisition costs
and other insurance expenses as a percentage of net premiums totaled 14.1% in 2006, 13.7% in 2005, and 14.2% in 2004.
Overall, while these ratios are expected to remain in a certain
range, they may fluctuate from period to period due to varying
allowance levels, significantly caused by the mix of first year
coinsurance business versus yearly renewable term business.
In addition, the amortization pattern of previously capitalized
amounts, which are subject to the form of the reinsurance
agreement and the underlying insurance policies, may vary.
Other operating expenses increased $1.1 million in 2006 and
$4.0 million in 2005 compared to their respective prior-year
periods. However, other operating expenses as a percentage
of net premiums decreased to 3.8% in 2006, compared to
4.4% and 4.4% in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

E U R O P E & S O U T H A F R I C A O P E R AT I O N S

The Europe & South Africa segment has operations in India, Mexico, Poland, Spain, South Africa and the UK. The segment
provides life reinsurance for a variety of products through yearly renewable term and coinsurance agreements, and reinsurance
of critical illness coverage. Reinsurance agreements may be either facultative or automatic agreements covering primarily
individual risks and in some markets, group risks.
For The Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
r e v enues :
Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains (losses), net
Other revenues

2006

       $ 587,903
16,311
(322)
858

Total revenues

2005

       $ 552,692
11,494
(318)
299

2004

      $ 478,606
6,507
2,356
1,375

604,750

564,167

488,844

Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Other operating expenses

414,855
764
90,098
40,792

405,121
882
94,853
27,791

314,073
–
123,671
21,472

Total benefits and expenses

546,509

528,647

459,216

b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :

Income before income taxes
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       $

58,241

       $

35,520

      $

29,628
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Income before income taxes increased 64.0% and 19.9%
in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in 2006 was
primarily the result of favorable mortality and morbidity experience in the UK in 2006 versus adverse experience in 2005.
Also, investment income increased $4.8 million. Both of
these were partially offset by an increase in other operating
expenses of $13.0 million. The increase in 2005 was primarily
the result of additional business volume and an increase in net
premiums of $74.1 million. Additionally, investment income
increased $5.0 million and was offset by a decrease in investment related gains of $2.7 million and an increase in other
operating expenses of $6.3 million.
Europe & South Africa net premiums grew 6.4% during
2006 and 15.5% in 2005. The growth was primarily the result
of new business from both existing treaties and new treaties.
The rate of growth in net premiums is below historical levels
due to increased competition in the UK and a slowing of
growth in insurance product sales associated with the UK
retail mortgage market. Also, there was a favorable effect
from currency exchange rates in 2006 of $2.6 million and an
unfavorable effect from currency exchange rates in 2005 of
$2.3 million. In 2006, several foreign currencies, particularly
the British pound and the euro, strengthened against the U.S.
dollar, while the South African rand weakened against the
U.S. dollar. Also, a significant portion of the growth of premiums was due to reinsurance of critical illness coverage,
primarily in the UK. This coverage provides a benefit in the
event of a death from or the diagnosis of a pre-defined critical
illness coverage. Premiums earned from this coverage totaled
$208.8 million, $199.3 million and $177.4 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Premium levels are significantly influenced by large transactions and reporting practices of ceding
companies and therefore can fluctuate from period to period.
Investment income increased $4.8 million and $5.0 million in
2006 and 2005, respectively. These increases were primarily due
to growth in the 2006 and 2005 invested assets in the UK. The
segment has also experienced growth in allocated investment
income. Investment income and investment related gains and
losses are allocated to the various operating segments based on
average assets and related capital levels deemed appropriate to
support the segment business volumes. Investment performance
varies with the composition of investments and the relative
allocation of capital to the operating segments.

Loss ratios were 70.6%, 73.3% and 65.6% for 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Death claims are reasonably predictable over a period of many years, but are less predictable over
shorter periods and are subject to significant fluctuation.
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses as a
percentage of net premiums represented 15.3%, 17.2% and
25.8% for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These percentages fluctuate due to timing of client company reporting,
variations in the mixture of business being reinsured and the
relative maturity of the business. In addition, as the segment
grows, renewal premiums which have lower allowances
than first year premiums, represent a greater percentage of
the total premiums. In 2005, the loss ratio increased and the
policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses, as a
percentage of net premiums, decreased due to the increase
in renewal business in the mixture of business.
Policy acquisition costs are capitalized and charged to
expense in proportion to premium revenue recognized.
Acquisition costs, as a percentage of premiums, associated
with some treaties in the UK are typically higher than those
experienced in the Company’s other segments. Future
recoverability of the capitalized policy acquisition costs on
this business is primarily sensitive to mortality and morbidity
experience. If actual experience suggests higher mortality and
morbidity rates going forward than currently contemplated in
management’s estimates, the Company may record a charge to
income, due to a reduction in the DAC asset and, to the extent
there are no unamortized acquisition costs, an increase in
future policy benefits. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
estimates that a 12% increase in anticipated mortality and
morbidity experience would have no effect while a 15% or 18%
increase would result in pre-tax income statement charges of
approximately $68.1 million and $162.0 million, respectively.
Other operating expenses increased 46.8% during 2006
and 29.4% for 2005. Increases in other operating expenses
were due to higher costs associated with maintaining and
supporting the significant increase in business over the past
two years and the entrance into new markets. As a percentage
of premiums, other operating expenses were 6.9%, 5.0% and
4.5% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company
believes that sustained growth in premiums should lessen the
burden of start-up expenses and expansion costs over time.
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A S I A P A C I F I C O P E R AT I O N S

The Asia Pacific segment has operations in Australia, Hong Kong, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, New Zealand, South Korea,
Taiwan and mainland China. The principal types of reinsurance for this segment include life, critical illness, disability income,
superannuation, and financial reinsurance. Superannuation is the Australian government mandated compulsory retirement savings
program. Superannuation funds accumulate retirement funds for employees, and in addition, offer life and disability insurance
coverage. Reinsurance agreements may be either facultative or automatic agreements covering primarily individual risks and in
some markets, group risks.
For The Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

2004

r e v enues :

Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains (losses), net
Other revenues

       $ 673,179
28,105
(372)
6,465

       $ 534,927
21,773
(269)
4,593

      $ 399,121
12,482
355
5,121

Total revenues

707,377

561,024

417,079

b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :
Claims and other policy benefits
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Other operating expenses

512,740
93,614
42,432

419,935
82,384
27,437

330,144
55,126
24,361

648,786

529,756

409,631

Total benefits and expenses
Income before income taxes

       $

Income before income taxes increased 87.4% during 2006 and
increased 319.8% during 2005. The increase in income before
taxes for 2006 was the result of strong results in the Australia,
Japan and Korea operations. Significant net premium growth
in the Australia, Japan and Korea offices, along with good
mortality experience and reserve reductions associated with
Australian disability treaties, allowed these combined operations to contribute an additional $20.6 million of income before
income taxes in 2006 compared to 2005. The increase in
income before taxes for 2005 was primarily the result of the
Australian operations. During 2005, favorable mortality along
with an overall reduction of reserves for disabled life reserves
contributed to an increase in income before income taxes of
approximately $25.1 million in Australia.
Net premiums grew 25.8% during 2006 and 34.0% during
2005. During 2006, growth in premium volume was primarily
the result of organic growth in certain markets, along with

favorable exchange rates in multiple countries. In terms of
growth of premium dollars during 2006, the Australia, Japan
and Korea markets were the primary contributors, collectively
adding approximately $125.8 million in premium volume compared to 2005. Growth in Australia was driven by broad-based
success in both the individual and group markets. In Japan and
Korea, 2006 premium growth was driven by an increase in
volume from existing large clients.
During 2005, the Australia and Korea markets were the
primary contributors to the increase in net premiums, adding
approximately $40.7 million and $46.3 million, respectively, in
premium volume compared to 2004. In Korea, 2005 premium
growth was driven by an increase of $42.2 million for four
primary clients. Growth in Australia was driven primarily by
continued success in the group market. Premium levels are
significantly influenced by large transactions and reporting
practices of ceding companies and therefore can fluctuate
from period to period.
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58,591

       $

31,268

      $

7,448
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Foreign currencies in certain significant markets, particularly the Australian dollar, the New Zealand dollar, and the
Japanese Yen, began to weaken against the U.S. dollar in
2006, as compared to 2005. However, the Korean Won has
generally strengthened throughout 2006 as compared to 2005.
The overall effect of the changes in local Asia Pacific segment
currencies was a decrease in 2006 premiums of $0.1 million
over 2005. Several foreign currencies, particularly the
Korean won and the Australian dollar, strengthened against
the U.S. dollar in 2005 leading to an increase in premium of
$20.4 million for 2005 over 2004.
A portion of the net premiums for the segment in each
period presented represents reinsurance of critical illness
coverage. This coverage provides a benefit in the event of the
diagnosis of a pre-defined critical illness. Reinsurance of
critical illness in the Asia Pacific operations is offered primarily
in Australia and Korea. Premiums earned from this coverage
totaled $78.6 million, $60.1 million, and $39.1 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.
Net investment income increased $6.3 million in 2006, as
compared to an increase of $9.3 million in 2005. The increase
in both years was primarily due to growth in the invested
assets in Australia and favorable exchange rates, along with
an increase in allocated investment income. Investment income
and investment related gains and losses are allocated to the
various operating segments based on average assets and
related capital levels deemed appropriate to support the segment business volumes. Investment performance varies with
the composition of investments and the relative allocation of
capital to the operating segments.
Other revenue during 2006 and 2005 represented primarily
profit and fees associated with financial reinsurance in Japan
of approximately $4.7 million and $3.7 million, respectively.
Other revenue during 2004 primarily represented profit and
fees associated with financial reinsurance in Japan, Taiwan
and South Korea of approximately $2.1 million, and fees

associated with the recapture provisions for two client treaties
of approximately $0.9 million.
Loss ratios for this segment were 76.2% , 78.5% and 82.7%
for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This percentage will
fluctuate due to timing of client company reporting, variations
in the mixture of business being reinsured and the relative
maturity of the business. Death claims are reasonably predictable over a period of many years, but are less predictable over
shorter periods and are subject to significant fluctuation.
While loss ratios were relatively stable between 2005 and
2006, the overall segment loss ratio was 4.2% higher in 2004
than in 2005. The higher 2004 loss ratio was attributable
primarily to loss experience in Australia and New Zealand.
Australia’s loss ratio in 2004 was affected by the recording
of additional reserves on disability income business of approximately $22.8 million, and a reserve of approximately
$2.7 million related to the tsunami in December 2004.
New Zealand’s loss experience in 2004 was affected by
the unfavorable performance of four significant treaties.
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses as
a percentage of net premiums decreased by 1.5% to 13.9%
during 2006 and increased by 1.6% to 15.4% during 2005.
The ratio of policy acquisition costs and other insurance
expenses as a percentage of net premiums will fluctuate from
period to period due to timing of client company reporting and
variations in the mixture of business being reinsured. Policy
acquisition costs are capitalized and charged to expense in
proportion to premium revenue recognized.
Other operating expenses increased to 6.3% of net
premiums in 2006, from 5.1% in 2005 and 6.1% in 2004.
The Company believes that sustained growth in premiums
should lessen the burden of start-up expenses and expansion
costs over time. However, the timing of the entrance into and
development of new markets in the growing Asia Pacific segment may cause other operating expenses as a percentage of
premiums to be somewhat volatile over periods of time.
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C O R P O R AT E A N D O T H E R

Corporate and Other revenues include investment income from invested assets not allocated to support segment operations and
undeployed proceeds from the Company’s capital raising efforts, in addition to unallocated investment related gains and losses.
Corporate expenses consist of the offset to capital charges allocated to the operating segments within the policy acquisition costs
and other insurance expenses line item, unallocated overhead and executive costs, and interest expense related to debt and the
$225.0 million of 5.75% Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities. Additionally, the Corporate and Other
Operations includes results from RGA Technology Partners, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary that develops and markets technology
solutions for the insurance industry, the Company’s Argentine privatized pension business, which is currently in run-off, an insignificant amount of direct insurance operations in Argentina and the investment income and expense associated with the Company’s
collateral finance facility.
For The Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

(in thousands)
r e v enues :

Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains, net
Other revenues
Total revenues
b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :
Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Other operating expenses
Collateral finance facility expense
Interest expense

Total benefits and expenses

       $

1,937
56,147
4,014
7,826

       $

2,465
28,950
20,363
14,846

      $

3,318
32,967
7,732
9,626

69,924

66,624

53,643

(156)
1,025
(36,356)
50,508
26,428
62,033

41,474
465
(25,574)
33,224
–
41,428

12,481
321
(25,101)
28,776
–
38,437

103,482

91,017

       $ (33,558)

Loss before income taxes increased $9.2 million, or 37.6%
during 2006 compared to 2005. The increase is primarily due
to a $20.6 million increase in interest expense, a $17.3 million
increase in other operating expenses and a $16.3 million
decrease in investment related gains largely offset by a
$41.6 million decrease in claims and other policy benefits.
The increase in interest expense is related to a higher level of
debt outstanding during 2006. The increase in other operating
expenses is primarily due to additional expense related to
equity based compensation plans. Investment related gains are
related to a number of different market factors and such gains
are subject to fluctuation from period to period. The decrease
in claims and other policy benefits is due to a decrease in the
policy liabilities associated with the commutation of treaties
covering the reinsurance of Argentine pension accounts.
The increase in investment income of $27.2 million is primarily
related to the Company’s investment of the proceeds from the
collateral finance facility, offset by the increase of $26.4 million
in the collateral finance facility expense.
Loss before income taxes increased $23.1 million during
2005 compared to 2004, primarily due to an increase in claims
and other policy benefits of $29.0 million and a reduction in

investment income of $4.0 million, offset by an increase in
investment related gains of $12.6 million. The increase in claims
and other policy benefits is due to an increase in the policy liabilities associated with the commutation of treaties covering the
reinsurance of Argentine pension accounts. The decrease in
investment income was the result of an allocation to other
segments based upon average assets and related capital levels
deemed appropriate to support their business volumes.
Investment related gains are related to a number of different
market factors and such gains are subject to fluctuation from
period to period.
The Company has maintained its ownership of the direct
insurance operations in Argentina but has reached an agreement as of December 31, 2006 to transfer the majority of the
underlying insurance policies to an unrelated third party.
Total future policy benefits and other liabilities associated
with this business totaled approximately $6.9 million as of
December 31, 2006. The transfer received regulatory approval
on February 13, 2007 and will be reflected in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended
March 31, 2007. The Company does not expect a significant
gain or loss upon transfer of this business to the third party.
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       $ (24,393)

54,914

Loss before income taxes

      $

(1,271)
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Discontinued Operations
Since December 31, 1998, the Company has formally reported
its accident and health division as a discontinued operation.
The accident and health business was placed into run-off,
and all treaties were terminated at the earliest possible date.
Notice was given to all cedants and retrocessionaires that all
treaties were being cancelled at the expiration of their terms.
The nature of the underlying risks is such that the claims may
take several years to reach the reinsurers involved. Thus, the
Company expects to pay claims over a number of years as the
level of business diminishes. The Company will report a loss to
the extent claims exceed established reserves.
At the time it was accepting accident and health risks, the
Company directly underwrote certain business provided by
brokers using its own staff of underwriters. Additionally, it
participated in pools of risks underwritten by outside managing
general underwriters, and offered high level common account
and catastrophic protection coverages to other reinsurers and
retrocessionaires. Types of risks covered included a variety of
medical, disability, workers’ compensation carve-out, personal
accident, and similar coverages.
The reinsurance markets for several accident and health
risks, most notably involving workers’ compensation carve-out
and personal accident business, have been quite volatile over
the past several years. Certain programs are alleged to have
been inappropriately underwritten by third party managers, and
some of the reinsurers and retrocessionaires involved have
alleged material misrepresentation and non-disclosures by the
underwriting managers. In particular, over the past several
years a number of disputes have arisen in the accident and
health reinsurance markets with respect to London market
personal accident excess of loss (“LMX”) reinsurance programs that involved alleged “manufactured” claims spirals
designed to transfer claims losses to higher-level reinsurance
layers. The Company is currently a party to three arbitrations
that involve some of these LMX reinsurance programs.
Additionally, while the Company did not underwrite workers’
compensation carve-out business directly, it did offer certain
indirect high-level common account coverages to other reinsurers and retrocessionaires, which could result in exposure to
workers’ compensation carve-out risks. The Company and
other reinsurers and retrocessionaires involved have raised
substantial defenses upon which to contest claims arising from
these coverages, including defenses based upon the failure of
the ceding company to disclose the existence of manufactured
claims spirals, inappropriate or unauthorized underwriting
procedures and other defenses. As a result, there have been a
significant number of claims for rescission, arbitration, and
litigation among a number of the parties involved in these
various coverages. This has had the effect of significantly
slowing the reporting of claims between parties, as the various
outcomes of a series of arbitrations and similar actions affect
the extent to which higher level reinsurers and retrocession-

aires may ultimately have exposure to claims.
The Company is currently a party to three arbitrations that
involve personal accident business as mentioned above. As of
January 31, 2007, the companies involved in these litigation
actions have raised claims, or established reserves that may
result in claims, that are $23.4 million in excess of the amounts
held in reserve by the Company. The Company generally has
little information regarding any reserves established by ceding
companies, and must rely on management estimates to establish policy claim liabilities. It is possible that any such reserves
could be increased in the future. The Company believes it has
substantial defenses upon which to contest these claims,
including but not limited to misrepresentation and breach of
contract by direct and indirect ceding companies. The Company
cannot predict or determine the ultimate outcome of the pending
arbitrations or provide useful ranges of potential losses, it is the
opinion of management, after consultation with counsel, that
their outcomes, after consideration of the provisions made in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, would not have a
material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position.
However, it is possible that an adverse outcome could, from time
to time, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated net income in particular quarterly or annual periods.
The loss from discontinued accident and health operations,
net of income taxes, decreased to $5.1 million in 2006 from
$11.4 million in 2005 and from $23.0 million in 2004. The
decrease in loss in 2005 is due primarily to a $24.0 million,
pretax, negotiated settlement of all disputed claims associated
with the Company’s largest identified accident and health
exposure during 2004.
The calculation of the claim reserve liability for the entire
portfolio of accident and health business requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported claim reserve levels. Management must make estimates and assumptions based on historical loss experience,
changes in the nature of the business, anticipated outcomes
of claim disputes and claims for rescission, anticipated
outcomes of arbitrations, and projected future premium
run-off, all of which may affect the level of the claim reserve
liability. Due to the significant uncertainty associated with the
run-off of this business, net income in future periods could be
affected positively or negatively. The consolidated statements
of income for all periods presented reflect this line of business
as a discontinued operation. Revenues associated with discontinued operations, which are not reported on a gross basis
in the Company’s consolidated statements of income, totaled
$2.7 million, $2.5 million and $1.4 million for 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.
Deferred Acquisition Costs
DAC related to interest-sensitive life and investment-type
contracts are amortized over the lives of the contracts, in
relation to the present value of estimated gross profits (“EGP”)
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from mortality, investment income, and expense margins. The
EGP for asset-intensive products include the following components: (1) estimates of fees charged to policyholders to cover
mortality, surrenders and maintenance costs; (2) expected
interest rate spreads between income earned and amounts
credited to policyholder accounts; and (3) estimated costs of

administration. EGP is also reduced by the Company’s estimate
of future losses due to defaults in fixed maturity securities.
DAC is sensitive to changes in assumptions regarding these
EGP components, and any change in such an assumption
could have an effect on the Company’s profitability.

The Company periodically reviews the EGP valuation model and assumptions so that the assumptions reflect a view of the
future believed to be reasonable. Two assumptions are considered to be most significant: (1) estimated interest spread,
and (2) estimated future policy lapses. The following table reflects the possible change that would occur in a given year if
assumptions, as a percentage of current deferred policy acquisition costs related to asset-intensive products ($543.6 million
as of December 31, 2006), are changed as illustrated:
Quantitative Change in Significant Assumptions:

One-Time Increase in DAC

Estimated interest spread increasing (decreasing) 25 basis points
from the current spread
Estimated future policy lapse rates decreasing (increasing) 20%
on a permanent basis (including surrender charges)

One-Time Decrease in DAC

1.81%

(2.07%)

0.45%

(0.28%)

In general, a change in assumption that improves the Company’s expectations regarding EGP is going to have the effect of
deferring the amortization of DAC into the future, thus increasing earnings and the current DAC balance. Conversely, a change in
assumption that decreases EGP will have the effect of speeding up the amortization of DAC, thus reducing earnings and lowering
the DAC balance. The Company also adjusts DAC to reflect changes in the unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale fixed
maturity securities since this affects EGP. This adjustment to DAC is reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income.
The DAC associated with the Company’s non-asset-intensive business is less sensitive to changes in estimates for investment
yields, mortality and lapses. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 60, “Accounting and Reporting
by Insurance Enterprises,” the estimates include provisions for the risk of adverse deviation and are not adjusted unless experience
significantly deteriorates to the point where a premium deficiency exists.
The following table displays DAC balances for asset-intensive business and non-asset-intensive business by segment
as of December 31, 2006:
As of December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Asset-Intensive
DAC

Non-Asset-Intensive
DAC

Total
DAC

U.S.
Canada
Europe & South Africa
Asia Pacific
Corporate and Other

      $

543,567
–
–
–
–

      $ 1,110,991
230,652
637,563
285,280
–

     $ 1,654,558
230,652
637,563
285,280
–

Total

      $

543,567

      $ 2,264,486

     $ 2,808,053

As of December 31, 2006, the Company estimates that approximately 78.9% of its DAC balance is collateralized by surrender fees
due to the Company and the reduction of policy liabilities, in excess of termination values, upon surrender or lapse of a policy.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Holding Company
RGA is an insurance holding company whose primary uses of
liquidity include, but are not limited to, the immediate capital
needs of its operating companies associated with the
Company’s primary businesses, dividends paid to its shareholders, interest payments on its indebtedness (See Note 14
– “Debt and Trust Preferred Securities” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements), and repurchases of RGA
common stock under a board of directors approved plan. The
primary sources of RGA’s liquidity include proceeds from its
capital raising efforts, interest income on undeployed corporate investments, interest income received on surplus notes
with RGA Reinsurance and Reinsurance Company of Missouri,
Incorporated (“RCM”), and dividends from operating subsidiaries. As the Company continues its expansion efforts, RGA
will continue to be dependent upon these sources of liquidity.
The Company believes that it has sufficient liquidity to fund
its cash needs under various scenarios that include the potential
risk of the early recapture of a reinsurance treaty by the ceding
company and significantly higher than expected death claims.
Historically, the Company has generated positive net cash flows
from operations. However, in the event of significant unanticipated cash requirements beyond normal liquidity, the Company
has multiple liquidity alternatives available based on market
conditions and the amount and timing of the liquidity need.
These options include borrowings under committed credit facilities, secured borrowings, the ability to issue long-term debt,
preferred securities or common equity and, if necessary, the sale
of invested assets subject to market conditions.
RGA has repurchased shares in the open market in the
past primarily to satisfy obligations under its stock option
program. In 2001, the board of directors approved a repurchase program authorizing RGA to purchase up to $50 million
of its shares of stock, as conditions warrant. During 2002,
RGA purchased approximately 0.2 million shares of treasury
stock under the program at an aggregate cost of $6.6 million.
In December 2005, the board of directors authorized RGA
to enter into an accelerated share repurchase (“ASR”)
agreement with a financial counterparty under which RGA
purchased 1,600,000 shares of its outstanding common
stock at an aggregate price of approximately $76.1 million.
The common shares repurchased were placed into treasury
to be used for general corporate purposes. (See Note 3,
“Stock Transactions,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding the ASR).
Statutory Dividend Limitations
RCM and RGA Reinsurance are subject to statutory provisions
that restrict the payment of dividends. They may not pay
dividends in any 12-month period in excess of the greater of
the prior year’s statutory operating income or 10% of capital

and surplus at the preceding year-end, without regulatory
approval. The applicable statutory provisions only permit an
insurer to pay a shareholder dividend from unassigned surplus.
Any dividends paid by RGA Reinsurance would be paid to
RCM, its parent company, which in turn has restrictions
related to its ability to pay dividends to RGA. The assets of
RCM consist primarily of its investment in RGA Reinsurance.
As of January 1, 2007, RCM and RGA Reinsurance could pay
maximum dividends, without prior approval, of approximately
$55.7 million and $105.1 million, respectively. However, on
December 19, 2006, RCM received approval from the Missouri
Department of Insurance that allows RCM to pay a dividend to
RGA to the extent RCM received the dividend from RGA Re,
without limitation related to the level of unassigned surplus.
Thus, RCM’s allowable dividend is $104.6 million to the extent
that amount has been received from RGA Re. Dividend payments from other subsidiaries are subject to regulations in
the jurisdiction of domicile.
The dividend limitations for RCM and RGA Reinsurance are
based on statutory financial results. Statutory accounting
practices differ in certain respects from accounting principles
used in financial statements prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”). The significant differences relate to
deferred acquisition costs, deferred income taxes, required
investment reserves, reserve calculation assumptions, and
surplus notes.
Valuation of Life Insurance Policies Model Regulation
(Regulation XXX)
The Valuation of Life Insurance Policies Model Regulation,
commonly referred to as Regulation XXX, was implemented in
the U.S. for various types of life insurance business beginning
January 1, 2000. Regulation XXX significantly increased the
level of reserves that U.S. life insurance and life reinsurance
companies must hold on their statutory financial statements
for various types of life insurance business, primarily certain
level term life products. The reserve levels required under
Regulation XXX increase over time and are normally in excess
of reserves required under GAAP. In situations where primary
insurers have reinsured business to reinsurers that are
unlicensed and unaccredited in the U.S., the reinsurer must
provide collateral equal to its reinsurance reserves in order for
the ceding company to receive statutory financial statement
credit. Reinsurers have historically utilized letters of credit for
the benefit of the ceding company, or have placed assets in
trust for the benefit of the ceding company as the primary
forms of collateral. The increasing nature of the statutory
reserves under Regulation XXX will likely require increased
levels of collateral from reinsurers in the future to the extent
the reinsurer remains unlicensed and unaccredited in the U.S.
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In order to manage the effect of Regulation XXX on its
statutory financial statements, RGA Reinsurance has retroceded
a majority of Regulation XXX reserves to unaffiliated and
affiliated unlicensed reinsurers. RGA Reinsurance’s statutory
capital may be significantly reduced if the unaffiliated or affiliated reinsurer is unable to provide the required collateral to
support RGA Reinsurance’s statutory reserve credits and RGA
Reinsurance cannot find an alternative source for collateral.
Shareholder Dividends
Historically, RGA has paid quarterly dividends ranging from
$0.027 per share in 1993 to $0.09 per share in 2006. All future
payments of dividends are at the discretion of the Company’s
board of directors and will depend on the Company’s earnings,
capital requirements, insurance regulatory conditions, operating conditions, and such other factors as the board of
directors may deem relevant. The amount of dividends that
the Company can pay will depend in part on the operations
of its reinsurance subsidiaries. Under certain circumstances,
RGA may be contractually prohibited from paying dividends
on common stock, see discussion below in “Debt and Trust
Preferred Securities”.
Debt and Trust Preferred Securities
Certain of the Company’s debt agreements contain financial
covenant restrictions related to, among others, liens, the
issuance and disposition of stock of restricted subsidiaries,
minimum requirements of net worth, maximum ratios of debt
to capitalization, change in control provisions, and minimum
rating requirements. A material ongoing covenant default
could require immediate payment of the amount due, including
principal, under the various agreements. Additionally, the
Company’s debt agreements contain cross-default covenants,
which would make outstanding borrowings immediately payable in the event of a material covenant default under any of
the agreements which remains uncured, including, but not
limited to, non-payment of indebtedness when due for amounts
greater than $25.0 million or $50.0 million depending on the
agreement, bankruptcy proceedings, and any event which
results in the acceleration of the maturity of indebtedness.
The facility fee and interest rate for the Company’s credit
facilities is based on its senior long-term debt ratings.
A decrease in those ratings could result in an increase in
costs for the credit facilities. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company had $705.5 million in outstanding borrowings under
its short- and long-term debt agreements and was in compliance with all covenants under those agreements. The ability
of the Company to make debt principal and interest payments
depends primarily on the earnings and surplus of subsidiaries,
investment earnings on undeployed capital proceeds, and the
Company’s ability to raise additional funds.
In December 2005, RGA issued Junior Subordinated
Debentures with a face amount of $400.0 million. Interest
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is payable semi-annually and is fixed at 6.75% per year
until December 15, 2015. From December 15, 2015 until
December 15, 2065, interest on the debentures will accrue
at an annual rate of 3-month LIBOR plus a margin equal to
266.5 basis points, payable quarterly. RGA has the option to
defer interest payments, subject to certain limitations.
In addition, interest payments are mandatorily deferred if
the Company does not meet specified capital adequacy,
net income and shareholders’ equity levels. Upon an optional
or mandatory deferral of interest payments, RGA is generally
not permitted to pay common-stock dividends or make payments of interest or principal on securities which rank equal
or junior to the subordinated debentures, until the accrued
and unpaid interest on the subordinated debentures is paid.
The subordinated debentures are redeemable at RGA’s option.
Approximately $76.1 million of the net proceeds were used to
purchase RGA’s common stock under an ASR agreement with
a financial counterparty. Additionally, RGA used a portion of
the net proceeds from the sale of these debentures to repay
approximately $100.0 million of its 7.25% senior notes when
they matured in April 2006. As of December 31, 2006, the
average interest rate on long-term and short-term debt outstanding, excluding the Preferred Income Redeemable
Securities Units, was 6.63% compared to 6.62% at the
end of 2005.
The Company maintains three revolving credit facilities.
The largest is a syndicated credit facility with an overall capacity
of $600.0 million that expires in September 2010. The overall
capacity available for issuance of letters of credit is reduced by
any cash borrowings made by the Company against this credit
facility. The Company may borrow up to $300.0 million of cash
under the facility. As of December 31, 2006 the Company’s
outstanding cash borrowing was $50.0 million under this credit
facility, with an average interest rate of 5.76%. The Company’s
other credit facilities consist of a £15.0 million credit facility that
expires in May 2007 and an AUD$50.0 million Australian credit
facility that expires in June 2011. The Company’s foreign denominated credit facilities had a combined outstanding balance of
$57.0 million as of December 31, 2006.
Based on the historic cash flows and the current financial
results of the Company, subject to any dividend limitations
which may be imposed by various insurance regulations,
management believes RGA’s cash flows from operating activities, together with undeployed proceeds from its capital raising
efforts, including interest and investment income on those
proceeds, interest income received on surplus notes with
RGA Reinsurance and RCM, and its ability to raise funds in
the capital markets, will be sufficient to enable RGA to make
dividend payments to its shareholders, make interest payments
on its senior indebtedness, trust preferred securities and junior
subordinated notes, repurchase RGA common stock under the
board of director approved plan, and meet its other obligations.
A general economic downturn or a downturn in the equity
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and other capital markets could adversely affect the market
for many annuity and life insurance products and RGA’s ability
to raise new capital. Because the Company obtains substantially all of its revenues through reinsurance arrangements
that cover a portfolio of life insurance products, as well as
annuities, its business would be harmed if the market for
annuities or life insurance was adversely affected.
Collateral Finance Facility
On June 28, 2006, RGA’s subsidiary, Timberlake Financial, L.L.C.
(“Timberlake Financial”), issued $850.0 million of Series A
Floating Rate Insured Notes due June 2036 in a private
placement. The notes were issued to fund the collateral
requirements for statutory reserves required by the U.S.
Valuation of Life Policies Model Regulation (commonly referred
to as Regulation XXX) on specified term life insurance policies
reinsured by RGA Reinsurance. Proceeds from the notes,
along with a $112.7 million direct investment by the Company,
collateralize the notes and are not available to satisfy the
general obligations of the Company. As of December 31, 2006,
the Company held assets in trust of $864.8 million for this
purpose. In addition, the Company held $83.8 million in custody
as of December 31, 2006. Interest on the notes will accrue at
an annual rate of 1-month LIBOR plus a base rate margin,
payable monthly. The payment of interest and principal on the
notes is insured through a financial guaranty insurance policy
with a third party. The notes represent senior, secured indebtedness of Timberlake Financial with no recourse to RGA or its
other subsidiaries. Timberlake Financial will rely primarily upon
the receipt of interest and principal payments on a surplus
note and dividend payments from its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Timberlake Reinsurance Company II (“Timberlake Re”),
a South Carolina captive insurance company, to make
payments of interest and principal on the notes. The ability
of Timberlake Re to make interest and principal payments
on the surplus note and dividend payments to Timberlake
Financial is contingent upon South Carolina regulatory
approval and the performance of specified term life insurance
policies with guaranteed level premiums retroceded by RGA’s
subsidiary, RGA Reinsurance, to Timberlake Re.
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46(r), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities – An Interpretation of ARB No. 51,”
Timberlake Financial is considered to be a variable interest
entity and the Company is deemed to hold the primary
beneficial interest. As a result, Timberlake Financial has
been consolidated in the Company’s financial statements.
The Company’s consolidated balance sheets include the assets
of Timberlake Financial recorded as fixed maturity investments
and other invested assets, which consists of restricted cash
and cash equivalents, with the liability for the notes recorded
as collateral finance facility. The Company’s consolidated
statements of income include the investment return of

Timberlake Financial as investment income and the cost of
the facility is reflected in collateral finance facility expense.
Reinsurance Operations
Reinsurance agreements, whether facultative or automatic,
may provide for recapture rights on the part of the ceding
company. Recapture rights permit the ceding company to
reassume all or a portion of the risk formerly ceded to the
reinsurer after an agreed-upon period of time, generally
10 years, or in some cases due to changes in the financial
condition or ratings of the reinsurer. Recapture of business
previously ceded does not affect premiums ceded prior to
the recapture of such business, but would reduce premiums
in subsequent periods.
Assets in Trust
Some treaties give ceding companies the right to request that
the Company place assets in trust for the benefit of the cedant
to support reserve credits in the event of a downgrade of the
Company’s ratings to specified levels. As of December 31, 2006,
these treaties had approximately $686.0 million in reserves.
Assets placed in trust continue to be owned by the Company,
but their use is restricted based on the terms of the trust
agreement. Securities with an amortized cost of $756.1 million
were held in trust for the benefit of certain subsidiaries of the
Company to satisfy collateral requirements for reinsurance
business at December 31, 2006. Additionally, securities with an
amortized cost of $1,364.4 million as of December 31, 2006
were held in trust to satisfy collateral requirements under certain
third-party reinsurance treaties. Under certain conditions, RGA
may be obligated to move reinsurance from one RGA subsidiary
company to another RGA subsidiary or make payments under
the treaty. These conditions include change in control of the
subsidiary, insolvency, nonperformance under a treaty, or loss of
reinsurance license of such subsidiary. If RGA was ever required
to perform under these obligations, the risk to the consolidated
company under the reinsurance treaties would not change;
however, additional capital may be required due to the change
in jurisdiction of the subsidiary reinsuring the business and may
create a strain on liquidity.
Proceeds from the notes issued by Timberlake Financial
and the Company’s direct investment in Timberlake Financial
have been deposited into a series of trust accounts as collateral and are not available to satisfy the general obligations
of the Company. As of December 31, 2006 the Company
held deposits in trust of $864.8 million for this purpose,
which is not included above. In addition, the Company held
$83.8 million in custody as of December 31, 2006. See
“Collateral Finance Facility” above for additional information
on the Timberlake notes.
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Guarantees
RGA has issued guarantees to third parties on behalf of
its subsidiaries’ performance for the payment of amounts
due under certain credit facilities, reinsurance treaties and
two office lease obligations, whereby if a subsidiary fails to
meet an obligation, RGA or one of its other subsidiaries will
make a payment to fulfill the obligation. In limited circumstances, treaty guarantees are granted to ceding companies
in order to provide them additional security, particularly in
cases where RGA’s subsidiary is relatively new, unrated,
or not of a significant size, relative to the ceding company.
Liabilities supported by the treaty guarantees, before
consideration for any legally offsetting amounts due from
the guaranteed party, totaled $276.5 million and $256.2 million
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and are
reflected on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets in
future policy benefits. Potential guaranteed amounts of future
payments will vary depending on production levels and underwriting results. Guarantees related to trust preferred securities
and credit facilities provide additional security to third parties
should a subsidiary fail to make principal and/or interest payments when due. As of December 31, 2006, RGA’s exposure
related to these guarantees was $186.3 million. RGA has
issued payment guarantees on behalf of two of its subsidiaries
in the event the subsidiaries fail to make payment under their
office lease obligations, the exposure of which was $5.4 million
as of December 31, 2006.
In addition, the Company indemnifies its directors and
officers as provided in its charters and by-laws. Since this
indemnity generally is not subject to limitation with respect to
duration or amount, the Company does not believe that it is
possible to determine the maximum potential amount due
under this indemnity in the future.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has commitments to fund investments in
mortgage loans and limited partnerships in the amount of
$19.9 million and $32.7 million, respectively, at December 31,
2006. The Company anticipates that the majority of these
amounts will be invested over the next five years, however,
contractually these commitments could become due at the
request of the counterparties. Investments in mortgage loans
and limited partnerships are carried at cost after consideration
of any other-than-temporary impairments and included in total
investments in the consolidated balance sheets.
In order to reduce the level of statutory reserves, primarily
in the U.S. and Canada, which may be significantly in excess of
reserves required under GAAP, the Company has entered into
various reinsurance agreements with affiliates and third parties. In order for the Company to receive statutory reserve
credit, the affiliate or third party must provide collateral for the
benefit of the Company, usually in the form of assets in trust or
letters of credit.

48

RGA 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

The Company has not engaged in trading activities involving
non-exchange traded contracts reported at fair value, nor
has it engaged in relationships or transactions with persons
or entities that derive benefits from their non-independent
relationship with RGA.
Cash Flows
The Company’s principal cash inflows from its reinsurance
operations are premiums and deposit funds received from
ceding companies. The primary liquidity concern with respect
to these cash flows is early recapture of the reinsurance contract by the ceding company. The Company’s principal cash
inflows from its investing activities result from investment
income, maturity and sales of invested assets, and repayments of principal. The primary liquidity concern with respect
to these cash inflows relates to the risk of default by debtors
and interest rate volatility. The Company manages these risks
very closely. See “Investments” and “Interest Rate Risk” on
pages 51 and 56.
Additional sources of liquidity to meet unexpected cash
outflows in excess of operating cash inflows include selling
short-term investments or fixed maturity securities and
drawing additional funds under existing credit facilities, under
which the Company had availability of $246.8 million as of
December 31, 2006.
The Company’s principal cash outflows primarily relate to
the payment of claims liabilities, interest credited, operating
expenses, income taxes, and principal and interest under debt
and other financing obligations. The Company seeks to limit its
exposure to loss on any single insured and to recover a portion
of benefits paid by ceding reinsurance to other insurance
enterprises or reinsurers under excess coverage and coinsurance contracts (See Note 2, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). The Company also retrocedes most of its financial reinsurance business to other insurance companies to
alleviate regulatory capital requirements created by this business. The Company performs annual financial reviews of its
retrocessionaires to evaluate financial stability and performance. The Company has never experienced a material default
in connection with retrocession arrangements, nor has it experienced any difficulty in collecting claims recoverable from
retrocessionaires; however, no assurance can be given as to
the future performance of such retrocessionaires or as to the
recoverability of any such claims. The Company’s management
believes its current sources of liquidity are adequate to meet
its cash requirements for the next 12 months.
The Company’s net cash flows provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
were $846.2 million, $599.4 million and $710.8 million, respectively. Cash flows from operating activities are affected by the
timing of premiums received, claims paid and working capital
changes. Operating cash increased $246.8 million during 2006
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due to increased cash from premiums and investment income
of $412.2 million and $139.8 million, respectively, largely offset
by higher operating cash outlays of $305.2 million. During
2005, operating cash decreased $111.5 million due to higher
operating cash outlays of $613.3 million largely offset by
increased cash from premiums and investment income of
$438.2 million and $63.6 million, respectively. The Company
believes the short-term cash requirements of its business
operations will be sufficiently met by the positive cash flows
generated. Additionally, the Company believes it maintains a
high-quality fixed maturity portfolio with positive liquidity
characteristics. These securities are available for sale and
could be sold if necessary to meet the Company’s short- and
long-term obligations, subject to market conditions.
Net cash used in investing activities was $1,634.4 million,
$893.1 million and $768.0 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Changes in cash used in investing activities pri-

marily relate to the management of the Company’s investment
portfolios and the investment of excess cash generated by
operating and financing activities. Net cash invested in 2006
includes the investment of approximately $837.5 million of net
proceeds from the Company’s collateral finance facility partially
offset by the repayment of approximately $100.0 of the
Company’s 7.25% senior notes. Net cash invested in 2005
includes the investment of approximately $318.8 million of net
proceeds from the Company’s subordinated debenture offering.
Net cash provided by financing activities was $817.9 million,
$274.3 million and $120.9 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Changes in cash provided by financing activities
primarily relate to the issuance of equity or debt securities,
borrowings or payments under the Company’s existing credit
agreements, collateral finance facility activity, treasury stock
activity and excess deposits (payments) under investmenttype contracts.

Contractual Obligations
The following table displays the Company’s contractual obligations, including obligations arising from its reinsurance business:
(in millions)

Payment Due by Period
Total

Less than 1 Year

1 – 3 Years

Future policy benefits (1)
Interest sensitive contract liabilities (2)
Short-term debt, including interest
Long-term debt, including interest
Fixed Rate Trust Pref Sec., including interest (3)
Collateral finance facility, including interest
Other policy claims and benefits
Operating leases
Limited partnerships
Structured investment contracts
Mortgage purchase commitments

      $ 22,642.5
7,144.1
30.1
2,356.5
797.5
1,313.0
1,826.8
37.5
32.7
20.2
19.9

     $

Total

      $ 36,220.8

     $ 1,855.8      $

4 – 5 Years

(719.8)      $ (1,218.1)      $
546.8
1,093.4
30.1
–
45.2
90.3
12.9
25.9
48.9
98.0
1,826.8
–
7.8
12.3
32.7
–
4.5
15.7
19.9
–
117.5      $

After 5 Years

(912.3)      $ 25,492.7
891.4
4,612.5
–
–
363.0
1,858.0
25.9
732.8
97.9
1,068.2
–
–
7.3
10.1
–
–
–
–
–
–
473.2      $ 33,774.3

Future policyholder benefits include liabilities related primarily to the Company’s reinsurance of life and health insurance products. Amounts presented in the table above
represent the estimated obligations as they become due both to and from ceding companies for benefits under such contracts including future premiums, allowances and
other amounts due as the result of assumptions related to mortality, morbidity, policy lapse and surrender as appropriate to the respective product. In certain periods, expected
premiums exceed expected policy benefit payments and allowances, resulting in a negative obligation. The sum of the obligations shown for all years in the table of $22.6 billion
exceeds the liability amount of $5.3 billion included on the consolidated balance sheet principally due to the fact that amounts presented above are on an undiscounted basis.
(2) Interest sensitive contract liabilities include amounts related to the Company’s reinsurance of asset intensive products, primarily deferred annuities and corporate-owned life
insurance. Amounts presented in the table above represent the estimated obligations as they become due both to and from ceding companies relating to activity of the underlying policyholders. Amounts presented in the table above represent the estimated obligations under such contracts undiscounted as to interest, including assumptions related
surrenders, withdrawals, premium persistency, partial withdrawals, surrender charges, annuitizations, mortality, future interest credited rates and policy loan utilization. The sum
of the obligations shown for all years in the table of $7.1 billion exceeds the liability amount of $6.2 billion included on the consolidated balance sheet principally due to the lack
of discounting.
(3) A ssumes that all securities will be held until the stated maturity date of March 18, 2051. For additional information on these securities, see “Company-Obligated Mandatorily
Redeemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely Junior Subordinated Debentures of the Company” in Note 2 – “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(1) 

See Note 8 – “Income Tax” and Note 9 – “Employee Benefit Plans” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information related to the Company’s obligations for taxes and funding requirements for retirement and other post-employment benefits.
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Letters of Credit
The Company has obtained letters of credit, issued by banks, in
favor of various affiliated and unaffiliated insurance companies
from which the Company assumes business. These letters of
credit represent guarantees of performance under the reinsurance agreements and allow ceding companies to take statutory
reserve credits. Certain of these letters of credit contain financial covenant restrictions similar to those described in the
Debt and Trust Preferred Securities discussion on page 46.
At December 31, 2006, there were approximately $19.4 million
of outstanding bank letters of credit in favor of third parties.
Additionally, the Company utilizes letters of credit to secure
statutory reserve credits when it retrocedes business to its
offshore subsidiaries, including RGA Americas, RGA Barbados
and RGA Worldwide Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (“RGA
Worldwide”). The Company cedes business to its offshore
affiliates to help reduce the amount of regulatory capital
required in certain jurisdictions such as the U.S. and the UK.
The capital required to support the business in the offshore
affiliates reflects more realistic expectations than the original
jurisdiction of the business, where capital requirements are
often considered to be quite conservative. As of December 31,
2006, $437.7 million in letters of credit from various banks were
outstanding between the various subsidiaries of the Company.
Based on the growth of the Company’s business and the
pattern of reserve levels under Regulation XXX associated
with term life business, the amount of ceded reserve credits
is expected to grow. This growth will require the Company
to obtain additional letters of credit, put additional assets in
trust, or utilize other mechanisms to support the reserve credits.
If the Company is unable to support the reserve credits, the
regulatory capital levels of several of its subsidiaries may be
significantly reduced. The reduction in regulatory capital would
not directly affect the Company’s consolidated shareholders’
equity under GAAP; however, it could affect the Company’s
ability to write new business and retain existing business.
The Company maintains a five-year, syndicated credit
facility with an overall capacity of $600.0 million that expires
in September 2010. The amount of the overall capacity available for issuance of letters of credit is reduced by any cash
borrowings, up to $300.0 million, made by the Company
against this credit facility. At December 31, 2006, there were
$315.0 million letters of credit outstanding under this credit
facility, which is included in the total above. Applicable letter
of credit fees and fees payable for the credit facility depend
upon the Company’s senior unsecured long-term debt rating.
Fees associated with the Company’s other letters of credit are
not fixed for periods in excess of one year and are based on
the Company’s ratings and the general availability of these
instruments in the marketplace.
In 2006, the Company entered into a reinsurance agreement
that requires it to post collateral for a portion of the business
being reinsured. As part of the collateral requirements, a third
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party financial institution has issued a letter of credit for the
benefit of the ceding company (the “beneficiary”), which may
draw on the letter of credit to be reimbursed for valid claim
payments not made by RGA pursuant to the reinsurance treaty.
RGA is not a direct obligor under the letter of credit. To the
extent the letter of credit is drawn by the beneficiary, reim
bursement to the third party financial institution will be through
reduction in amounts owed to RGA by the third party financial
institution under a secured structured loan. RGA’s liability under
the reinsurance agreement will be reduced by any amount
drawn by the ceding company under the letter of credit. As of
December 31, 2006, the structured loan totaled $5.1 million and
the amount of the letter of credit totaled $5.1 million. The
structured loan is recorded in “other invested assets” on RGA’s
consolidated balance sheet.
Asset/Liability Management
The Company actively manages its assets using an approach
that is intended to balance quality, diversification, asset/liability
matching, liquidity and investment return. The goals of the
investment process are to optimize after-tax, risk-adjusted
investment income and after-tax, risk-adjusted total return
while managing the assets and liabilities on a cash flow and
duration basis.
The Company has established target asset portfolios for
each major insurance product, which represent the investment
strategies intended to profitably fund its liabilities within
acceptable risk parameters. These strategies include objectives for effective duration, yield curve sensitivity and convexity,
liquidity, asset sector concentration and credit quality.
The Company’s liquidity position (cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments) was $300.7 million and
$255.0 million at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. Liquidity needs are determined from valuation
analyses conducted by operational units and are driven by
product portfolios. Annual evaluations of demand liabilities
and short-term liquid assets are designed to adjust specific
portfolios, as well as their durations and maturities, in
response to anticipated liquidity needs.
The Company’s asset-intensive products are primarily
supported by investments in fixed maturity securities. Investment
guidelines are established to structure the investment portfolio
based upon the type, duration and behavior of products in
the liability portfolio so as to achieve targeted levels of profitability. The Company manages the asset-intensive business to
provide a targeted spread between the interest rate earned on
investments and the interest rate credited to the underlying
interest-sensitive contract liabilities. The Company periodically
reviews models projecting different interest rate scenarios and
their effect on profitability. Certain of these asset-intensive
agreements, primarily in the U.S. operating segment, are
generally funded by fixed maturity securities that are withheld
by the ceding company.
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Investments
The Company had total cash and invested assets of $14.8 billion
and $12.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
All investments held by RGA and its subsidiaries are monitored
for conformance to the qualitative and quantitative limits
prescribed by the applicable jurisdiction’s insurance laws and
regulations. In addition, the operating companies’ boards of
directors periodically review their respective investment
portfolios. The Company’s investment strategy is to maintain
a predominantly investment-grade, fixed maturity portfolio, to
provide adequate liquidity for expected reinsurance obligations,
and to maximize total return through prudent asset management. The Company’s asset/liability duration matching differs
between operating segments. Based on Canadian reserve
requirements, a portion of the Canadian liabilities is strictly
matched with long-duration Canadian assets, with the remaining
assets invested to maximize the total rate of return, given the
characteristics of the corresponding liabilities and Company
liquidity needs. The duration of the Canadian portfolio exceeds
twenty years. The duration for all the Company’s portfolios when
consolidated range between eight and ten years. The Company’s
average yield earned on investments, excluding funds withheld,
was 5.81% in 2006, compared with 5.89% in 2005, and 5.91% in
2004. See Note 4 – “Investments” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information regarding the
Company’s investments.
Fixed maturit y securities and equit y securities
avail able-for-sale

The Company’s fixed maturity securities are invested primarily in
commercial and industrial bonds, mortgage- and asset-backed
securities, finance, public utilities, and Canadian government
securities. As of December 31, 2006, approximately 97.1% of the
Company’s consolidated investment portfolio of fixed maturity
securities was investment-grade. Important factors in the selection of investments include diversification, quality, yield, total rate
of return potential and call protection. The relative importance of
these factors is determined by market conditions and the underlying product or portfolio characteristics. Cash equivalents are
invested in high-grade money market instruments. The largest
asset class in which fixed maturities were invested was in
corporate securities, which represented approximately 54.2%
of total fixed maturities at December 31, 2006, compared to
58.0% at December 31, 2005. Corporate securities are diversified by sector, with the majority in finance, commercial and
industrial bonds. The average Standard and Poor’s (“S&P”)
rating of corporate securities was A– at December 31, 2006.
Within the fixed maturity security portfolio, the Company
holds approximately $2.0 billion in mortgage-backed securities
at December 31, 2006, which include agency-issued passthrough securities, collateralized mortgage obligations
guaranteed or otherwise supported by the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association,

or the Government National Mortgage Association, and commercial mortgage-backed securities. As of December 31, 2006,
99.9% of these securities were investment-grade. The principal
risks inherent in holding residential mortgage-backed securities
are prepayment and extension risks, which will affect the timing
of when cash will be received and are dependent on the level of
mortgage interest rates. Prepayment risk is the unexpected
increase in principal payments, primarily as a result of home
owner refinancing. Extension risk relates to the unexpected
slowdown in principal payments. The Company monitors its
residential mortgage-backed securities to mitigate exposure
to the cash flow uncertainties associated with these risks.
Within the fixed maturity security portfolio, the Company
holds approximately $469.9 million in asset-backed securities
at December 31, 2006, which include credit card and automobile receivables, home equity loans and collateralized bond
obligations. The Company’s asset-backed securities are diversified by issuer and contain both floating and fixed-rate
securities. The Company owns floating rate securities that
represent approximately 12.6% of the total fixed maturity
securities at December 31, 2006. These investments have a
higher degree of income variability than the other fixed income
holdings in the portfolio due to the floating rate nature of the
interest payments. The majority of floating rate securities
collateralize the notes issued by the Company’s collateral
finance facility. See Note 15 – “Collateral Finance Facility” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information. In addition to the risks associated with floating
rate securities, principal risks in holding asset-backed securities are structural, credit and capital market risks. Structural
risks include the securities’ priority in the issuer’s capital
structure, the adequacy of and ability to realize proceeds from
collateral, and the potential for prepayments. Credit risks
include consumer or corporate credits such as credit card
holders, equipment lessees, and corporate obligors. Capital
market risks include general level of interest rates and the
liquidity for these securities in the marketplace.
The Company monitors its investment securities to determine impairments in value. The Company evaluates factors
such as financial condition of the issuer, payment performance,
the length of time and the extent to which the market value has
been below amortized cost, compliance with covenants, general market conditions and industry sector, intent and ability to
hold securities and various other subjective factors. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company held fixed maturities with a
cost basis of $12.5 million and a market value of $13.4 million,
representing 0.2% of fixed maturities at December 31, 2006,
that were non-income producing. Based on management’s
judgment, securities with an other-than-temporary impairment
in value are written down to management’s estimate of fair
value. The Company recorded other-than-temporary writedowns of fixed maturities totaling $1.1 million, $0.5 million
and $8.5 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
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circumstances that gave rise to these impairments were management’s intention to sell certain securities which were
trading at amounts less than the carrying value, bankruptcy
proceedings on the part of the issuer or deterioration in collateral value supporting certain asset-backed securities. During
2006 and 2005, the Company sold fixed maturity securities
and equity securities with fair values of $997.0 million and
$822.3 million at losses of $31.5 million and $21.8 million,
respectively, or at 96.9% and 97.4% of book value, respectively.
Generally, such losses are insignificant in relation to the cost
basis of the investment and are largely due to changes in
interest rates from the time the security was purchased.
The securities are classified as available-for-sale in order
to meet the Company’s operational and other cash flow

requirements. The Company does not engage in short-term
buying and selling of securities to generate gains or losses.
The following table presents the total gross unrealized
losses for 982 fixed maturity securities and equity securities
as of December 31, 2006, where the estimated fair value
had declined and remained below amortized cost by the
indicated amount (in thousands):
At December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Gross
Unrealized Losses

% of Total

Less than 20%
20% or more for less than six months
20% or more for six months or greater

     $ 69,266
–
–

100.0%
–
–

Total

     $ 69,266

100.0%

While all of these securities are monitored for potential impairment, the Company’s experience indicates that the first two categories do not present as great a risk of impairment, and often, fair values recover over time. These securities have generally been
adversely affected by overall economic conditions, primarily an increase in the interest rate environment.
The following tables present the estimated fair values and gross unrealized losses for the 982 fixed maturity securities and
equity securities that have estimated fair values below amortized cost as of December 31, 2006. These investments are presented
by class and grade of security. The length of time the related market value has remained below amortized cost is provided for
fixed maturity securities as of December 31, 2006.
As of December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Less than 12 months
Estimated
Fair Value

Equal to or greater than 12 months

Gross
Unrealized Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized Loss

Total
Estimated
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized Loss

i n v es t men t gr a de s ecur i t i es :

Commercial and industrial
Public utilities
Asset-backed securities
Canadian and Canadian
provincial governments
Mortgage-backed securities
Finance
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Foreign governments

    $

Investment grade securities

433,621     $
217,376
197,525

7,899     $
3,403
634

405,084     $
125,113
22,036

13,468     $
4,444
365

838,705     $
342,489
219,561

21,367
7,847
999

50,965
741,943
498,661
105
29,229
175,247

548
6,381
3,447
–
270
3,137

2,847
552,415
226,042
979
13,269
27,862

56
12,684
7,249
28
444
512

53,812
1,294,358
724,703
1,084
42,498
203,109

604
19,065
10,696
28
714
3,649

2,344,672

25,719

1,375,647

39,250

3,720,319

64,969

53,204
14,683
3,282

1,103
247
18

25,187
502
–

1,030
4
–

78,391
15,185
3,282

2,133
251
18

–

9,038

533

9,038

533

1,368

34,727

1,567

105,896

n o n - i n v es t men t gr a de s ecu r i t i es :

Commercial and industrial
Finance
Asset-backed securities
Public utilities

–   

Non-investment grade securities

71,169

Total fixed maturity securities

    $ 2,415,841     $

Equity securities

    $
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25,926     $

27,087     $ 1,410,374     $
668     $

15,874     $

40,817     $ 3,826,215     $
694     $

41,800     $

2,935
67,904
1,362
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The Company believes that the analysis of each security whose
price has been below market for greater than twelve months
indicated that the financial strength, liquidity, leverage, future
outlook and/or recent management actions support the view
that the security was not other-than-temporarily impaired as of
December 31, 2006. The unrealized losses on fixed maturity
securities did not exceed 14.3% on an individual security basis
and are primarily a result of rising interest rates, changes in
credit spreads and the long-dated maturities of the securities.
Mortgage loans on real estate

Mortgage loans represented approximately 5.0% and 5.3% of
the Company’s investments as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, all mortgages
were U.S. based. The Company invests primarily in mortgages
on commercial offices, industrial properties and retail locations.
The Company’s mortgage loans generally range in size up to
$11.0 million, with the average mortgage loan investment as of
December 31, 2006 totaling approximately $4.2 million.
The mortgage loan portfolio was diversified by geographic
region and property type as discussed further in Note 4 –
“Investments” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. Substantially all mortgage loans are performing
and no valuation allowance has been established as of
December 31, 2006 or 2005.
Policy loans

Policy loans comprised approximately 6.9% and 8.0% of the
Company’s investments as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, substantially all of which are associated with
one client. These policy loans present no credit risk because
the amount of the loan cannot exceed the obligation due the
ceding company upon the death of the insured or surrender of
the underlying policy. The provisions of the treaties in force and
the underlying policies determine the policy loan interest rates.
Because policy loans represent premature distributions of
policy liabilities, they have the effect of reducing future dis
intermediation risk. In addition, the Company earns a spread
between the interest rate earned on policy loans and the
interest rate credited to corresponding liabilities.

Funds withheld at interest

Substantially all of the Company’s funds withheld at interest
receivable balance is associated with its reinsurance of annuity
contracts. The funds withheld receivable balance totaled
$4.1 billion and $3.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, of which $2.9 billion and $2.3 billion, respectively,
were subject to the provisions of Issue B36. Under Issue B36,
the Company’s funds withheld receivable under certain reinsurance arrangements incorporate credit risk exposures that are
unrelated or only partially related to the creditworthiness of the
obligor and include an embedded derivative feature that is not
clearly and closely related to the host contract. Therefore, the
embedded derivative feature must be measured at fair value on
the consolidated balance sheets and changes in fair value
reported in income. See “Changes in value of embedded
derivatives” in Note 2 – “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion.
Funds withheld at interest comprised approximately 28.3%
and 28.1% of the Company’s investments as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Of the $4.1 billion funds withheld
at interest balance as of December 31, 2006, $2.8 billion of
the balance is associated with one client. For agreements
written on a modified coinsurance basis and certain agreements written on a coinsurance basis, assets equal to the net
statutory reserves are withheld and legally owned and managed by the ceding company, and are reflected as funds
withheld at interest on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets. In the event of a ceding company’s insolvency, the
Company would need to assert a claim on the assets supporting its reserve liabilities. However, the risk of loss to the
Company is mitigated by its ability to offset amounts it owes
the ceding company for claims or allowances with amounts
owed by the ceding company. Interest accrues to these assets
at rates defined by the treaty terms and the Company estimates the yield was approximately 7.08% for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The Company is subject to the investment
performance on the withheld assets, although it does not
directly control them. These assets are primarily fixed maturity
investment securities and pose risks similar to the fixed maturity securities the Company owns. To mitigate this risk, the
Company helps set the investment guidelines followed by the
ceding company and monitors compliance. Ceding companies
with funds withheld at interest had an average rating of “A+”.
Certain ceding companies maintain segregated portfolios for
the benefit of the Company.
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Based on data provided by ceding companies as of December 31, 2006, funds withheld at interest were approximately
(in thousands):
At December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Book Value

Market Value

% of Total
Market Value

       $ 1,196,055        $ 1,205,579
105,893
104,106
981,975
986,570
153,876
153,405
84,835
91,830
121,074
122,835
66,560
85,730
321,254
323,695

39.2%
3.4%
32.1%
5.0%
3.0%
4.0%
2.8%
10.5%

u n der ly i n g s ecur i t y t y p e :

Investment grade U.S. corporate securities
Below investment grade U.S. corporate securities
Structured securities
Foreign corporate securities
U.S. government and agency debentures
Unrated securities
Derivatives
Other
Total segregated portfolios

3,031,522

3,073,750

Funds withheld at interest associated with non-segregated portfolios
Embedded derivatives

1,040,741
56,815

1,040,741
56,815

Total funds withheld at interest

100.0%

       $ 4,129,078        $ 4,171,306

Based on data provided by the ceding companies as of December 31, 2006, the maturity distribution of the segregated portfolio
portion of funds withheld at interest was approximately (in thousands):
At December 31, 2006
(in thousands)
m at ur i t y :
Within one year
More than one, less than five years
More than five, less than ten years
Ten years or more

Subtotal
Less: Reverse repurchase agreements
Total all years
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Book Value

       $

Market Value

% of Total
Market Value

96,764        $
113,494
318,187
319,248
598,525
600,419
2,018,046
2,040,589

3.7%
10.4%
19.5%
66.4%

3,031,522
(438,314)

3,073,750
(438,314)

       $ 2,593,208        $ 2,635,436

100.0%
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Other Invested Assets

Other invested assets represented approximately 1.5% and
1.9% of the Company’s investments as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Other invested assets include derivative
contracts, equity securities, preferred stocks, structured loans
and limited partnership interests. The Company recorded
other-than-temporary write-downs on other invested assets
of $4.3 million and $1.3 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The Company did not record any other-than-temporary
write-downs on other invested assets in 2004.
The Company has utilized derivative financial instruments on
a very limited basis, primarily to protect the Company against
possible changes in the market value of its investment portfolio
as a result of interest rate changes and to manage the portfolio’s effective yield, maturity and duration. In addition, the
Company has used derivative financial instruments to reduce
the risk associated with fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Company uses both exchange-traded
and customized over-the-counter derivative financial instruments. The Company’s use of derivative financial instruments
historically has not been significant to its financial position.
The Company held exchange-traded credit default swaps with a
notional amount of $110.0 million and $40.0 million, which also
were carried at a fair value of $0.3 million and ($20.0) thousand
at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In addition, the
Company has entered into foreign currency forward contracts
with a notional amount of $2.5 million, which are carried at a
fair value of ($17.0) thousand. There were no foreign currency
forward contracts outstanding at December 31, 2005.
Corporate Risk Management
RGA maintains a corporate risk management framework which
is responsible for assessing, measuring and monitoring risks
facing the enterprise. This includes development and implementation of mitigation strategies to reduce exposures to
these risks to acceptable levels. Risk management is an
integral part of the Company’s culture and every day activities.
It includes guidelines and controls in areas such as pricing,
underwriting, currency, administration, investments, asset
liability management, counterparty exposure, financing, regulatory change, business continuity planning, human resources,
liquidity, sovereign risks and technology development.
The corporate risk management framework is directed by
the corporate actuarial department, which reports to the chief
operating officer. Risk management officers from all areas of
the company support the corporate actuarial department in this
effort. The corporate actuarial department provides quarterly
risk management updates to the board of directors, executive
management and the internal risk management officers.
Specific risk assessments and descriptions can be found
below and in Item 1A – “Risk Factors” in the Company’s
2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on
February 26, 2007.

Mortality Risk Management
In the event that mortality or morbidity experience develops in
excess of expectations, some reinsurance treaties allow for
increases to future premium rates. Other treaties include
experience refund provisions, which may also help reduce
RGA’s mortality risk. In the normal course of business, the
Company seeks to limit its exposure to loss on any single
insured and to recover a portion of benefits paid by ceding
reinsurance to other insurance enterprises or retrocessionaires
under excess coverage and coinsurance contracts. In the U.S.,
the Company retains a maximum of $6.0 million of coverage
per individual life. In certain limited situations, due to the
acquisition of in force blocks of business, the Company has
retained more than $6.0 million per individual policy. In total,
there are 40 such cases of over-retained policies, for amounts
averaging $2.4 million over the Company’s normal retention
limit. The largest amount over-retained on any one life is
$12.1 million. For other countries, particularly those with
higher risk factors or smaller books of business, the Company
systematically reduces its retention. The Company has a
number of retrocession arrangements whereby certain business in force is retroceded on an automatic or facultative basis.
The Company also retrocedes most of its financial reinsurance
business to other insurance companies to alleviate statutory
capital requirements created by this business.
The Company maintains a catastrophe insurance program
(“Program”) that renews on August 13th of each year. The
current Program began August 13, 2006, and covers events
involving 10 or more insured deaths from a single occurrence.
The Company retains the first $25 million in claims, the Program
covers the next $50 million in claims, and the Company retains
all claims in excess of $75 million. The Program covers only
losses under North American guaranteed issue (corporate
owned life insurance, bank owned life insurance, etc.) reinsurance programs and includes losses due to acts of terrorism,
but excludes terrorism losses due to nuclear, chemical and/or
biological events. The Program is insured by several insurance
companies and Lloyd’s Syndicates, with no single entity
providing more than $10 million of coverage.
Counterparty Risk
In the normal course of business, the Company seeks to
limit its exposure to reinsurance contracts by ceding a
portion of the reinsurance to other insurance companies or
reinsurers. Should a counterparty not be able to fulfill its
obligation to the Company under a reinsurance agreement,
the impact could be material to the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations.
Generally, RGA’s insurance subsidiaries retrocede
amounts in excess of their retention to RGA Reinsurance,
RGA Barbados, or RGA Americas. External retrocessions
are arranged through the Company’s retrocession pools for
amounts in excess of its retention. As of December 31, 2006,
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all retrocession pool members in this excess retention pool
reviewed by the A.M. Best Company were rated “B++”, the
fifth highest rating out of fifteen possible ratings, or better.
The Company also retrocedes most of its financial reinsurance
business to other insurance companies to alleviate the strain
on statutory surplus created by this business. For a majority
of the retrocessionaires that were not rated, letters of credit
or trust assets have been given as additional security in favor
of RGA Reinsurance. In addition, the Company performs
annual financial and in force reviews of its retrocessionaires
to evaluate financial stability and performance.
The Company has never experienced a material default in
connection with retrocession arrangements, nor has it experienced any material difficulty in collecting claims recoverable
from retrocessionaires; however, no assurance can be given
as to the future performance of such retrocessionaires or as
to the recoverability of any such claims.
The Company relies upon its clients to provide timely,
accurate information. The Company may experience volatility
in its earnings as a result of erroneous or untimely reporting
from its clients. The Company works closely with its clients
and monitors this risk in an effort to minimize its exposure.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss that may occur when fluctuation
in interest and currency exchange rates and equity and commodity prices change the value of a financial instrument. Both
derivative and nonderivative financial instruments have market
risk so the Company’s risk management extends beyond
derivatives to encompass all financial instruments held that are
sensitive to market risk. RGA is primarily exposed to interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk.
Interest Rate Risk

This risk arises from many of the Company’s primary activities,
as the Company invests substantial funds in interest-sensitive
assets and also has certain interest-sensitive contract liabilities. The Company manages interest rate risk and credit risk
to maximize the return on the Company’s capital effectively
and to preserve the value created by its business operations.
As such, certain management monitoring processes are
designed to minimize the effect of sudden and sustained
changes in interest rates on fair value, cash flows, and net
interest income. The Company manages its exposure to
interest rates principally by matching floating rate liabilities
with corresponding floating rate assets and by matching fixed
rate liabilities with corresponding fixed rate assets. On a limited basis, the Company uses equity options to minimize its
exposure to movements in equity markets that have a direct
correlation with certain of its reinsurance products.
The Company’s exposure to interest rate price risk and
interest rate cash flow risk is reviewed on a quarterly basis.
Interest rate price risk exposure is measured using interest rate
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sensitivity analysis to determine the change in fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments in the event of a hypothetical
change in interest rates. Interest rate cash flow risk exposure is
measured using interest rate sensitivity analysis to determine
the Company’s variability in cash flows in the event of a hypothetical change in interest rates. If estimated changes in fair
value, net interest income, and cash flows are not within the
limits established, management may adjust its asset and liability
mix to bring interest rate risk within board-approved limits.
In order to reduce the exposure of changes in fair values
from interest rate fluctuations, RGA has developed strategies
to manage its liquidity and increase the interest rate sensitivity
of its asset base. From time to time, RGA has utilized the swap
market to manage the volatility of cash flows to interest rate
fluctuations.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis is used to measure the
Company’s interest rate price risk by computing estimated
changes in fair value of fixed rate assets and liabilities in the
event of a hypothetical 10% change in market interest rates.
The Company does not have fixed rate instruments classified
as trading securities. The Company’s projected loss in fair
value of financial instruments in the event of a 10% unfavorable change in market interest rates at its fiscal years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $415.4 million and
$262.6 million, respectively.
The calculation of fair value is based on the net present
value of estimated discounted cash flows expected over the
life of the market risk sensitive instruments, using market
prepayment assumptions and market rates of interest provided
by independent broker quotations and other public sources,
with adjustments made to reflect the shift in the treasury yield
curve as appropriate.
At December 31, 2006, the Company’s estimated changes
in fair value were within the targets outlined in the Company’s
investment policy.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis is also used to measure
the Company’s interest rate cash flow risk by computing
estimated changes in the cash flows expected in the near
term attributable to floating rate assets and liabilities in the
event of a range of assumed changes in market interest rates.
This analysis assesses the risk of loss in cash flows in the
near term in market risk sensitive floating rate instruments
in the event of a hypothetical 10% change (increase or
decrease) in market interest rates. The Company does not
have variable rate instruments classified as trading securities.
The Company’s projected decrease in cash flows in the near
term associated with floating rate instruments in the event of
a 10% unfavorable change in market interest rates at its fiscal
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $0.5 million
and $0.4 million, respectively.
The cash flows from coupon payments move in the same
direction as interest rates for the Company’s floating rate
instruments. The volatility in mortgage prepayments partially
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offsets the cash flows from interest. At December 31, 2006, the
Company’s estimated changes in cash flows were within the
targets outlined in the Company’s investment policy.
Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest
rate changes are based on numerous assumptions, including
relative levels of market interest rates, and mortgage prepayments, and should not be relied on as indicative of future
results. Further, the computations do not contemplate any
actions management could undertake in response to changes
in interest rates.
Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis
presented in the computation of the estimated fair value of fixed
rate instruments and the estimated cash flows of floating rate
instruments, which estimates constitute forward-looking statements. Actual values may differ materially from those projections
presented due to a number of factors, including, without limitation, market conditions varying from assumptions used in the
calculation of the fair value. In the event of a change in interest
rates, prepayments could deviate significantly from those
assumed in the calculation of fair value. Finally, the desire of
many borrowers to repay their fixed rate mortgage loans may
decrease in the event of interest rate increases.
Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is subject to foreign currency translation, transaction, and net income exposure. The Company manages its
exposure to currency principally by matching invested assets
with the underlying reinsurance liabilities to the extent possible,
but generally does not hedge the foreign currency translation or
net investment exposure related to its investment in foreign
subsidiaries as it views these investments to be long-term.
Translation differences resulting from translating foreign subsidiary balances to U.S. dollars are reflected in stockholders’ equity
on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company generally
does not hedge the foreign currency exposure of its subsidiaries
transacting business in currencies other than their functional
currency (transaction exposure). The majority of the Company’s
foreign currency transactions are denominated in Australian
dollars, British pounds, Canadian dollars, Japanese yen, Korean
won, the South African rand and euros.

Inflation
The primary, direct effect on the Company of inflation is
the increase in operating expenses. A large portion of the
Company’s operating expenses consists of salaries, which are
subject to wage increases at least partly affected by the rate
of inflation. The rate of inflation also has an indirect effect on
the Company. To the extent that a government’s policies to
control the level of inflation result in changes in interest rates,
the Company’s investment income is affected.
New Accounting Standards
In September 2006, the FASB ratified the Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) consensus on Issue 06-5. This issue titled
“Accounting for the Purchases of Life Insurance – Determining
the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with
FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4”, clarified that the amount
of the DAC receivable beyond one year generally must be
discounted to present value under Accounting Principles Board
Opinion 21. The ratification is effective for reporting periods
after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of EITF Issue 06-05 and does not expect that the
pronouncement will have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides
guidance on how prior year misstatements should be con
sidered when quantifying misstatements in current year
financial statements for purposes of assessing materiality.
SAB 108 requires that a registrant assess the materiality of a
current period misstatement by determining how the current
period’s balance sheet would be affected in correcting a
misstatement without considering the year(s) in which the
misstatement originated and how the current period’s income
statement is misstated, including the reversing effect of prior
year misstatements. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006. The cumulative effect of
applying SAB 108 may be recorded by adjusting current year
beginning balances of the affected assets and liabilities with a
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corresponding adjustment to the current year opening balance
in retained earnings if certain criteria are met. The adoption of
SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post
retirement Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(r)” (“SFAS 158”). The pronouncement revises
financial reporting standards for defined benefit pension and
other postretirement plans by requiring the (i) recognition in the
statement of financial position of the funded status of defined
benefit plans measured as the difference between the fair value
of plan assets and the benefit obligation, which is the projected
benefit obligation for pension plans and the accumulated post
retirement benefit obligation for other postretirement plans;
(ii) recognition as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes, those amounts of
actuarial gains and losses, prior service costs and credits, and
transition obligations that have not yet been included in net
periodic benefit costs as of the end of the year of adoption;
(iii) recognition of subsequent changes in funded status as a
component of other comprehensive income; (iv) measurement
of benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the
statement of financial position; and (v) disclosure of additional
information about the effects on the employer’s statement of
financial position. The Company adopted SFAS 158 on
December 31, 2006 increasing other liabilities by $17.4 million,
decreasing deferred income taxes by $6.1 million, and reducing
the Company’s total stockholder’s equity by $11.3 million.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
GAAP and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value
measurements. The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2006. The guidance in SFAS 157
will be applied prospectively with the exception of: (i) block
discounts of financial instruments; (ii) certain financial and
hybrid instruments measured at initial recognition under
SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“SFAS 133”); both of which are to be applied retrospectively as of the beginning of initial adoption (a limited
form of retrospective application). The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 and does not expect that
the pronouncement will have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income tax recognized in a company’s financial statements. FIN 48 requires companies to determine
whether it is “more likely than not” that a tax position will
be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing
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authorities before any part of the benefit can be recorded in
the financial statements. It also provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement and classification of income tax
uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties.
Previously recorded income tax benefits that no longer meet
this standard are required to be charged to earnings in the
period that such determination is made. FIN 48 will also require
significant additional disclosures. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will
adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as required. Based
upon the Company’s evaluation work completed to date, the
Company expects to recognize an increase of approximately
$25.2 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which
will be accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007
balance of retained earnings.
In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Instruments” (“SFAS 155”).
SFAS 155 amends SFAS No. 133 and SFAS 140, “Accounting
for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities”. SFAS 155 allows financial
instruments that have embedded derivatives to be accounted
for as a whole, eliminating the need to bifurcate the derivative
from its host, if the holder elects to account for the whole
instrument on a fair value basis. In addition, among other
changes, SFAS 155 (i) clarifies which interest-only strips and
principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of
SFAS 133; (ii) establishes a requirement to evaluate interests
in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are
freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring
bifurcation; (iii) clarifies that concentrations of credit risk
in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives;
and (iv) eliminates the prohibition on a qualifying specialpurpose entity (“QSPE”) from holding a derivative financial
instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than
another derivative financial interest. The Company prospectively adopted SFAS 155 during the first quarter of 2006, which
did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
In September 2005, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“QSPE”) issued Statement of Position
(“SOP”) 05-1, Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for
Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection with Modifications
or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts (“SOP 05-1”). SOP 05-1
provides guidance on accounting by insurance enterprises for
DAC on internal replacements of insurance and investment
contracts other than those specifically described in SFAS
No. 97, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for
Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and
Losses from the Sale of Investments”. SOP 05-1 defines an
internal replacement as a modification in product benefits,
features, rights, or coverages that occurs by the exchange of a
contract for a new contract, or by amendment, endorsement,
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or rider to a contract, or by the election of a feature or coverage within a contract. Under SOP 05-1, modifications that
result in a substantially unchanged contract will be accounted
for as a continuation of the replaced contract. A replacement
contract that is substantially changed will be accounted for as
an extinguishment of the replaced contract resulting in a
release of unamortized DAC, unearned revenue and deferred
sales inducements associated with the replaced contract.
The SOP will be adopted in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of SOP 05-1 and does not expect that the adoption
of SOP 05-1 will have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In June 2005, the FASB cleared SFAS 133 Implementation
Issue No. B38, “Embedded Derivatives: Evaluation of Net
Settlement with Respect to the Settlement of a Debt
Instrument through Exercise of an Embedded Put Option or
Call Option” (“Issue B38”) and SFAS 133 Implementation
Issue No. B39, “Embedded Derivatives: Application of
Paragraph 13(b) to Call Options That Are Exercisable Only
by the Debtor” (“Issue B39”). Issue B38 clarified that the
potential settlement of a debtor’s obligation to a creditor
occurring upon exercise of a put or call option meets the net
settlement criteria of SFAS No. 133. Issue B39 clarified that an
embedded call option, in which the underlying is an interest
rate or interest rate index, that can accelerate the settlement
of a debt host financial instrument should not be bifurcated
and fair valued if the right to accelerate the settlement can be
exercised only by the debtor (issuer/borrower) and the investor
will recover substantially all of its initial net investment.
Issues B38 and B39 were adopted by the Company during
the first quarter of 2006 and did not have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS 154”).
The statement requires retrospective application to prior
periods’ financial statements for corrections of errors or a
voluntary change in accounting principle unless it is deemed
impracticable. It also requires that a change in the method
of depreciation, amortization, or depletion for long-lived,
non-financial assets be reported as a change in accounting
estimate rather than a change in accounting principle.
SFAS 154 was adopted by the Company during the first
quarter of 2006.
In December 2004, the FASB revised SFAS No. 123
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) to
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(r)”). SFAS 123(r) provides
additional guidance on determining whether certain financial
instruments awarded in share-based payment transactions are
liabilities. SFAS 123(r) also requires that the cost of all sharebased transactions be recorded in the financial statements.
The revised pronouncement was adopted by the Company
during the first quarter of 2006 increasing compensation cost
by approximately $1.7 million. See Note 17 – “Equity Based
Compensation” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information.
In July 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive
Committee issued SOP 03-1, “Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration
Contracts and for Separate Accounts”. SOP 03-1 provides
guidance on separate account presentation and valuation, the
accounting for sales inducements and the classification and
valuation of long-duration contract liabilities. The Company
adopted the provisions of SOP 03-1 on January 1, 2004,
recording a charge of $0.4 million as a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle.

M A N A G E M E N T ’ S D I S C U S S I O N A N D A N A LY S I S

59

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

2006

2005

as s e ts

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale, at fair value
Mortgage loans on real estate
Policy loans
Funds withheld at interest
Short-term investments
Other invested assets

     $

Total investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Premiums receivable and other reinsurance balances
Reinsurance ceded receivables
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Other assets
Total assets

8,372,173
735,618
1,015,394
4,129,078
140,281
220,356

      $

6,874,243
648,067
987,442
3,459,943
126,296
235,464

14,612,900
160,428
68,292
695,307
563,570
2,808,053
128,287

12,331,455
128,692
62,498
573,145
541,944
2,465,630
90,502

     $ 19,036,837

      $ 16,193,866

     $

      $ 4,693,454
5,503,528
1,529,298
212,422
652,024
117,101
125,610
674,392
–

li a b i li t i es a n d s to ck h o ld ers ’ eq u i t y

Future policy benefits
Interest sensitive contract liabilities
Other policy claims and benefits
Other reinsurance balances
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Collateral finance facility
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary
trust holding solely junior subordinated debentures of the Company
Total liabilities

5,315,428
6,212,278
1,826,831
145,926
828,848
177,490
29,384
676,165
850,402
158,701

158,553

16,221,453

13,666,382

–

–

631
66,915
1,081,433
1,307,743

631
66,915
1,053,814
1,048,215

Commitments and contingent liabilities (See Note 13)
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock (par value $.01 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized;
no shares issued or outstanding)
Common stock (par value $.01 per share; 140,000,000 shares authorized;
63,128,273 shares issued at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005)
Warrants
Additional paid-in-capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Accumulated currency translation adjustment, net of income taxes
Unrealized appreciation of securities, net of income taxes
Pension and postretirement benefits, net of income taxes
Total stockholders’ equity before treasury stock
Less treasury shares held of 1,717,722 and 2,052,316 at cost at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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109,067
335,581
(11,297)
2,890,073
(74,689)

85,127
361,815
–
2,616,517
(89,033)

2,815,384

2,527,484

     $ 19,036,837

      $ 16,193,866

Consolidated Statements of Income
Twelve Months Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
r e v enues :
Net premiums
Investment income, net of related expenses
Investment related gains (losses), net
Change in value of embedded derivatives
Other revenues

2006

2005

2004

      $ 3,866,775
639,165
13,590
7,444
57,791

      $ 3,347,448
580,528
29,473
26,104
55,366

5,193,691

4,584,765

4,038,919

3,488,388
244,771
712,568

3,187,902
208,376
629,359

2,678,537
198,931
591,029

3,735
204,380
62,033
26,428

6,972
154,382
41,428
–

22,896
139,896
38,437
–

      $ 4,345,969
779,655
(3,953)
6,543
65,477

Total revenues
b en ef i ts a n d e xp ens es :
Claims and other policy benefits
Interest credited
Policy acquisition costs and other insurance expenses
Change in deferred acquisition costs associated
with change in value of embedded derivatives
Other operating expenses
Interest expense
Collateral finance facility expense

4,742,303

4,228,419

3,669,726

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Total benefits and expenses

451,388
158,127

356,346
120,738

369,193
123,893

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Loss from discontinued accident and health operations, net of income taxes

293,261

235,608

245,300

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income taxes

288,210
–

Net income
bas i c e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e :
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net income
d i lu t ed e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e :
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net income
d i v i den ds decl a r ed p er s h a r e

(5,051)

      $

288,210

(11,428)

(23,048)

224,180
–
      $

224,180

222,252
(361)
      $

221,891

      $

4.79
(0.08)
–

      $

3.77
(0.19)
–

      $

3.94
(0.37)
(0.01)

      $

4.71

      $

3.58

      $

3.56

      $

4.65
(0.08)
–

      $

3.70
(0.18)
–

      $

3.90
(0.37)
(0.01)

      $

4.57

      $

3.52

      $

3.52

      $

0.36

      $

0.36

      $

0.27

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2004

Preferred
Stock
      $

–

Warrants

Common
Stock
      $

631

      $

66,915

co mp r eh ens i v e i n co me :

Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Currency translation adjustments
Unrealized investment gains, net of related offsets
and reclassification adjustment
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income
Dividends to stockholders
Reissuance of treasury stock
Balance, December 31, 2004

–

631

66,915

–

631

66,915

co mp r eh ens i v e i n co me :

Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Currency translation adjustments
Unrealized investment gains, net of related offsets
and reclassification adjustment
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income
Dividends to stockholders
Purchase of treasury stock
Reissuance of treasury stock
Balance, December 31, 2005
co mp r eh ens i v e i n co me :

Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Currency translation adjustments
Unrealized investment gains (losses), net of related
offsets and reclassification adjustment
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS 158, net of tax
Dividends to stockholders
Purchase of treasury stock
Equity based compensation, net of income tax
Balance, December 31, 2006
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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      $

–

      $

631

      $

66,915

Additional
Paid In Capital
      $ 1,042,444

Retained
Earnings
      $

Comprehensive
Income

641,502

221,891

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
      $

      $

224,259

Treasury
Stock
      $

(28,028)

221,891

40,090

40,090

74,017

      $

74,017
114,107

335,998

(16,821)
4,071
1,046,515

8,054
846,572

224,180

338,366

      $

(19,974)

224,180

117,140

108,576

108,576

332,756

(22,537)
(75,888)
6,829

7,299
1,048,215

288,210

446,942

      $

(89,033)

23,940

23,940
(26,234)
(2,294)

285,916
(11,297)

(22,040)

      $ 1,081,433

(194)
14,538

(6,642)
      $ 1,307,743

2,527,484

288,210

(2,294)

27,619

(22,537)
(75,888)
14,128

288,210

(26,234)

      $

2,279,025

(8,564)

117,140

1,053,814

(16,821)
12,125

224,180

(8,564)

      $

      $ 1,947,723

221,891

114,107
  

Total

      $

433,351

      $

(74,689)

(11,297)
(22,040)
(194)
35,515
      $ 2,815,384
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Twelve Months Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

2006

2005

2004

224,180

      $ 221,891

cas h f lows f ro m o p er at i n g act i v i t i es :

Net income

      $

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Change in:
Accrued investment income
Premiums receivable and other reinsurance balances
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Reinsurance ceded balances
Future policy benefits, other policy claims and benefits,
and other reinsurance balances
Deferred income taxes
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangement
Other assets and other liabilities, net
Amortization of net investment discounts and other
Non-cash equity compensation expense
Investment related losses (gains), net
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

288,210

      $

(5,351)
(97,785)
(256,375)
(21,626)

(4,666)
(30,754)
(287,405)
(107,679)

(9,666)
50,356
(416,017)
29,293

764,194
189,578
(2,819)
24,037
(53,344)
23,697
3,953
(10,144)

788,769
41,393
–
25,169
(40,288)
–
(13,722)
4,354

823,621
92,638
–
(13,652)
(32,580)
–
(29,473)
(5,602)

846,225

599,351

710,809

cas h f lows f ro m i n v es t i n g act i v i t i es :

Sales of fixed maturity securities – available for sale
Maturities of fixed maturity securities – available for sale
Purchases of fixed maturity securities – available for sale
Sales of mortgage loans
Cash invested in mortgage loans on real estate
Cash invested in policy loans
Cash invested in funds withheld at interest
Principal payments on mortgage loans on real estate
Principal payments on policy loans
Change in short-term investments and other invested assets

1,914,726
72,066
(3,466,862)
–
(144,001)
(59,691)
(54,564)
55,928
31,739
16,302

1,550,653
44,930
(2,218,422)
–
(88,813)
(61,460)
(74,398)
49,001
31,582
(126,187)

1,298,647
53,469
(1,902,073)
13,927
(166,747)
(64,205)
16,411
23,607
9,499
(50,485)

(1,634,357)

(893,114)

(767,950)

(22,040)
–
(100,000)
–
(194)
2,819
8,982
837,500

(22,537)
394,640
–
–
(75,888)
–
6,046
–

(16,821)
–
–
4,600
–
–
7,162
–

Net cash used in investing activities
cas h f lows f ro m f i n a n ci n g act i v i t i es :

Dividends to stockholders
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance
Principal payments on debt
Net borrowings under credit agreements
Purchases of treasury stock
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangement
Exercise of stock options, net
Net proceeds from collateral finance facility
Excess deposits (payments) on universal life and
other investment type policies and contracts

90,816

(27,912)

125,922

Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes

817,883
1,985

274,349
(3,989)

120,863
3,787

Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

31,736
128,692

(23,403)
152,095

67,509
84,586

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

      $

Supplementary information:
Cash paid for interest
      $
Cash paid (received) for income taxes, net of refunds
      $
Non-cash transfer from funds withheld at interest to fixed maturity securities       $
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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160,428

      $

128,692

      $ 152,095

88,821
(33,427)
–

      $
      $
      $

38,303
47,040
–

      $ 37,883
      $ 28,638
      $ 606,040

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the ye ars ended december

N ote 1

31, 2006, 2005

and

2004

O R G A N I Z AT I O N

Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated (“RGA”) is an
insurance holding company that was formed on December 31,
1992. As of December 31, 2006, General American Life
Insurance Company (“General American”), a Missouri life
insurance company, directly owned approximately 52.5% of
the outstanding shares of common stock of RGA. General
American is a wholly-owned subsidiary of MetLife, Inc.
(“MetLife”), a New York-based insurance and financial services
holding company.
The consolidated financial statements include the assets,
liabilities, and results of operations of RGA, RGA Reinsurance
Company (“RGA Reinsurance”), RGA Reinsurance Company
(Barbados) Ltd. (“RGA Barbados”), RGA Life Reinsurance
Company of Canada (“RGA Canada”), RGA Americas

N ote 2 S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation and Basis of Presentation. The consolidated
financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The most
significant estimates include those used in determining deferred
policy acquisition costs, premiums receivable, future policy
benefits, other policy claims and benefits, including incurred but
not reported claims, provision for adverse litigation, and valuation
of investment impairments. Actual results could differ materially
from the estimates and assumptions used by management.
For each of its reinsurance contracts, the Company must
determine if the contract provides indemnification against
loss or liability relating to insurance risk, in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The Company must review
all contractual features, particularly those that may limit the
amount of insurance risk to which the Company is subject
to or features that delay the timely reimbursement of claims.
If the Company determines that a contract does not expose it
to a reasonable possibility of a significant loss from insurance
risk, the Company records the contract on a deposit method of
accounting with the net amount payable/receivable reflected
in other reinsurance assets or liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets. Fees earned on the contracts are reflected as
other revenues, as opposed to premiums, on the consolidated
statements of income.

Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (“RGA Americas”), RGA
Reinsurance Company of Australia, Limited (“RGA Australia”)
and RGA Reinsurance UK Limited (“RGA UK”) as well as
other subsidiaries, subject to an ownership position of
greater than fifty percent (collectively, the “Company”).
The Company is primarily engaged in life reinsurance.
Reinsurance is an arrangement under which an insurance
company, the reinsurer, agrees to indemnify another insurance
company, the ceding company, for all or a portion of the insurance risks underwritten by the ceding company. Reinsurance
is designed to (i) reduce the net liability on individual risks,
thereby enabling the ceding company to increase the volume
of business it can underwrite, as well as increase the maximum
risk it can underwrite on a single life or risk; (ii) stabilize operating results by leveling fluctuations in the ceding company’s
loss experience; (iii) assist the ceding company to meet applicable regulatory requirements; and (iv) enhance the ceding
company’s financial strength and surplus position.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of RGA and its subsidiaries, both direct
and indirect, subject to an ownership position greater than
fifty percent, and any variable interest entities where the
Company is the primary beneficiary. Entities in which the
Company has an ownership position greater than twenty
percent, but less than or equal to fifty percent are reported
under the equity method of accounting. The Company evaluates variable interest entities in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46(r)
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities – An Interpretation
of ARB No. 51”. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.
Investments. Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale are
reported at fair value and are so classified based upon the
possibility that such securities could be sold prior to maturity
if that action enables the Company to execute its investment
philosophy and appropriately match investment results to
operating and liquidity needs.
Impairments in the value of securities held by the Company,
considered to be other than temporary, are recorded as a
reduction of the book value of the security, and a corresponding
realized investment loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of income. The Company’s policy is to recognize such
impairment when the projected cash flows of these securities
have been reduced on an other-than-temporary basis so that
the fair value is reduced to an amount less than the book value.
The Company evaluates factors such as financial condition of
the issuer, payment performance, the length of time and the
extent to which the market value has been below amortized
cost, compliance with covenants, general market conditions and
industry sector, intent and ability to hold securities, and various
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other subjective factors. The actual value at which such financial
instruments could actually be sold or settled with a willing buyer
may differ from such estimated fair values.
Unrealized gains and losses on marketable equity securities and fixed maturity securities classified as available for
sale, less applicable deferred income taxes as well as related
adjustments to deferred acquisition costs, if applicable, are
reflected as a direct charge or credit to accumulated other
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity on the
consolidated balance sheets.
Mortgage loans on real estate are carried at unpaid principal
balances, net of any unamortized premium or discount and
valuation allowances. Valuation allowances on mortgage loans
are established based upon losses expected by management
to be realized in connection with future dispositions or settlement of mortgage loans, including foreclosures. The valuation
allowances are established after management considers,
among other things, the value of underlying collateral and
payment capabilities of debtors.
Short-term investments represent investments with original
maturities of greater than three months but less than twelve
months and are stated at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value.
Policy loans are reported at the unpaid principal balance.
Funds withheld at interest represent amounts contractually
withheld by ceding companies in accordance with reinsurance
agreements. For agreements written on a modified coinsurance basis and agreements written on a coinsurance funds
withheld basis, assets equal to the net statutory reserves are
withheld and legally owned by the ceding company. Interest
accrues to these assets at rates defined by the treaty terms.
For reinsurance transactions executed through
December 31, 1994, assets and liabilities related to treaties
written on a modified coinsurance basis with funds withheld
are reported on a gross basis. For modified coinsurance
reinsurance transactions with funds withheld executed on
or after December 31, 1994, assets and liabilities are reported
on a net or gross basis, depending on the specific details
within each treaty. Reinsurance agreements reported on a
net basis, where a legal right of offset exists, are generally
included in other reinsurance balances on the consolidated
balance sheets.
Change in value of embedded derivatives reflects the
change in the market value of specific financial instruments
as required upon the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133 Implementation Issue
No. B36, “Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance
Arrangements and Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit
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Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Related to
the Creditworthiness of the Obligor under Those Instruments”
(“Issue B36”).
Substantially all of the Company’s funds withheld at interest
balance is associated with its reinsurance of annuity contracts.
The funds withheld at interest balance totaled $4.1 billion and
$3.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, of
which $2.9 billion and $2.3 billion, respectively, were subject
to the provisions of Issue B36. Management believes the
embedded derivative feature in each of these reinsurance
treaties is similar to a total return swap on the assets held by
the ceding companies. The change in fair value, which is a
non-cash item, also affects the amortization of deferred acquisition costs since the Company is required to include it in its
expectation of gross profits. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
the fair value of the embedded derivative totaled $56.8 million
and $50.3 million, respectively, and is included in the funds
withheld at interest line item on the consolidated balance
sheets. Subsequent to the initial adoption of Issue B36, the
change in the market value of the underlying is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income as change in value of
embedded derivatives.
In addition to its annuity contracts, the Company has
entered into various financial reinsurance treaties on a funds
withheld and modified coinsurance basis. These treaties do
not transfer significant insurance risk and are recorded on a
deposit method of accounting with the Company earning a
net fee. As a result of the experience refund provisions
contained in these treaties, the value of the embedded derivatives in these contracts is currently considered immaterial.
The Company monitors the performance of these treaties on a
quarterly basis. Significant adverse performance or losses on
these treaties may result in a loss associated with the
embedded derivative.
Other invested assets include derivative contracts, equity
securities and preferred stocks, carried at fair value, and
limited partnership interests and structured loans, carried
at cost. Changes in fair value are recorded through accumulated other comprehensive income. Other invested assets
are periodically reviewed for impairment.
The Company has a variety of reasons to use derivative
instruments, such as to attempt to protect the Company
against possible changes in the market value of its investment
portfolio as a result of interest rate changes; to manage the
portfolio’s effective yield, maturity, and duration; and to reduce
the risk associated with fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. Foreign currency forwards may be used by
the Company to reduce the risk from fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates associated with its assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. In a foreign currency
forward transaction, the Company agrees with another party
to deliver a specified amount of an identified currency at a
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specific future date. The price agreed upon at the time of the
contract and payment for such a contract is made in a different currency at the specified future date. The change in the
market value of the contract is reflected in the Company’s
financial statements. The Company does not invest in derivatives for speculative purposes. The Company uses both
exchange-traded and customized over-the-counter derivative
financial instruments. The Company’s use of derivatives
historically has not been significant to its financial position.
Income or expense on derivative financial instruments used to
manage interest-rate exposure is recorded on an accrual basis
as an adjustment to the yield of the related interest-earning
assets or interest-bearing liabilities for the periods covered by
the contracts. Upon sale, exercise, expiration or termination,
gains or losses on derivatives accounted for as cash flow
hedges are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings in the same period or periods
during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company did not hold
any derivatives reported as cash flow or fair value hedges.
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company held exchangetraded credit default swaps with a notional amount of
$110.0 million and $40.0 million, respectively, which were
carried at a fair value of $0.3 million and ($20.0) thousand,
respectively. At December 31, 2006, the Company held foreign
currency forward contracts with a notional amount of approximately $2.5 million, which are carried at a fair value of
($17.0) thousand. There were no foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at December 31, 2005. Changes in
the fair value of both types of derivatives are recorded as
investment related gains/(losses), net on the consolidated
statements of income. It is the Company’s policy to enter into
derivative contracts primarily with highly rated companies.
Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers
all investments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

premiums given historical experience, the financial health of
specific ceding companies, collateral value and the legal right
of offset on related amounts (i.e. allowances and claims)
owed to the ceding company. Under the legal right of offset
provisions in its reinsurance treaties, the Company can withhold payments for allowances and claims for unpaid premiums.
Based on its review of these factors and historical experience,
the Company did not believe a provision for doubtful accounts
was necessary as of December 31, 2006 or 2005.
Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs. Costs of acquiring
new business, which vary with and are primarily related to
the production of new business, have been deferred to the
extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future
premiums or gross profits. Such costs include commissions
and allowances as well as certain costs of policy issuance
and underwriting. The Company performs periodic tests to
establish that DAC remains recoverable, and if financial
performance significantly deteriorates to the point where a
premium deficiency exists, a cumulative charge to current
operations will be recorded. No such adjustments were made
during 2006, 2005 or 2004. Deferred costs related to traditional life insurance contracts, substantially all of which relate
to long-duration contracts, are amortized over the premiumpaying period of the related policies in proportion to the ratio
of individual period premium revenues to total anticipated
premium revenues over the life of the policy. Such anticipated
premium revenues are estimated using the same assumptions
used for computing liabilities for future policy benefits.
Deferred costs related to interest-sensitive life and investment-type policies are amortized over the lives of the policies,
in relation to the present value of estimated gross profits from
mortality, investment income less interest credited, and
expense margins.

Additional Information Regarding Statements of
Cash Flows. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
deposit and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with
an original maturity of three months or less. The consolidated
statements of cash flows includes the results of discontinued
operations in net cash from operations for all years presented,
as the effect of the discontinued operations on cash flows is
not considered material.

Other Reinsurance Balances. The Company assumes and
retrocedes financial reinsurance contracts that represent low
mortality risk reinsurance treaties. These contracts are
reported as deposits and are included in other reinsurance
assets/liabilities. The amount of revenue reported in other
revenues on these contracts represents fees and the cost of
insurance under the terms of the reinsurance agreement.
Balances resulting from the assumption and/or subsequent
transfer of benefits and obligations resulting from cash flows
related to variable annuities have also been classified as other
reinsurance balance assets and/or liabilities.

Premiums Receivable. Premiums are accrued when due and
in accordance with information received from the ceding company. When a ceding company fails to report information on a
timely basis, the Company records accruals based on the terms
of the reinsurance treaty as well as historical experience.
Other management estimates include adjustments for lapsed

Goodwill and Value of Business Acquired. The Company
reports goodwill pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142.
Accordingly, goodwill and certain intangibles are not amortized
into results of operations, but instead are reviewed at least
annually for impairment and written down and charged to
results of operations only in the periods in which the recorded
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value of goodwill and certain intangibles is more than its fair
value. From 2004 through 2006, there were no changes to
goodwill as a result of acquisitions or disposals. Goodwill as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 totaled $7.0 million including
accumulated amortization of $1.0 million, and was related
to the purchase by the Company’s U.S. operations of RGA
Financial Group L.L.C. in 2000. The value of business acquired
is amortized in proportion to the ratio of annual premium revenues to total anticipated premium revenues or in relation to
the present value of estimated profits. Anticipated premium
revenues have been estimated using assumptions consistent
with those used in estimating reserves for future policy
benefits. The carrying value is reviewed at least annually
for indicators of impairment in value. The value of business
acquired was approximately $2.7 million and $3.5 million,
including accumulated amortization of $10.7 million and
$9.9 million, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The value of business acquired amortization expense for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was
$0.8 million, $1.0 million, and $1.3 million, respectively.
These amortized balances are included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheets. Amortization of the value of
business acquired is estimated to be $0.6 million, $0.4 million,
$0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million during 2007, 2008,
2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.
Other Assets. In addition to the goodwill and value of business acquired previously discussed, other assets primarily
includes separate accounts, unamortized debt issuance costs,
capitalized software, and other capitalized assets. Capitalized
software is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization.
Purchased software costs, as well as internal and external
costs incurred to develop internal-use computer software
during the application development stage, are capitalized.
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had
unamortized computer software costs of approximately
$19.2 million and $18.9 million, respectively. During 2006, 2005
and 2004, the Company amortized computer software costs
of $3.0 million, $5.7 million, and $2.2 million, respectively.
Amortization of software costs is recorded on a straight-line
basis over periods ranging from three to ten years. Carrying
values are reviewed periodically for indicators of impairment in
value. The amortization in 2005 includes an asset impairment
charge of $2.7 million.
Future Policy Benefits and Interest-Sensitive Contract
Liabilities. Liabilities for future benefits on life policies are
established in an amount adequate to meet the estimated
future obligations on policies in force. Liabilities for future
policy benefits under long-term life insurance policies have been
computed based upon expected investment yields, mortality and
withdrawal (lapse) rates, and other assumptions. These assumptions include a margin for adverse deviation and vary with the
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characteristics of the plan of insurance, year of issue, age of
insured, and other appropriate factors. Interest rates range
from 4.0% to 6.4%. The mortality and withdrawal assumptions
are based on the Company’s experience as well as industry
experience and standards. Liabilities for future benefits on
interest-sensitive life and investment-type contract liabilities
are carried at the accumulated contract holder values without
reduction for potential surrender or withdrawal charges.
The Company periodically reviews actual and anticipated
experience compared to the assumptions used to establish
policy benefits. The Company establishes premium deficiency
reserves if actual and anticipated experience indicates that
existing policy liabilities together with the present value of
future gross premiums will not be sufficient to cover the
present value of future benefits, settlement and maintenance
costs and to recover unamortized acquisition costs. The premium deficiency reserve is established by a charge to income,
as well as a reduction in unamortized acquisition costs and,
to the extent there are no unamortized acquisition costs, an
increase in future policy benefits.
In establishing reserves for future policy benefits, the
Company assigns policy liability assumptions to particular time
frames (eras) in such a manner as to be consistent with the
underlying assumptions and economic conditions at the time the
risks are assumed. The Company generally maintains a consistent level of provision for adverse deviation between eras.
The reserving process includes normal periodic reviews of
assumptions used and adjustments of reserves to incorporate
the refinement of the assumptions. Any such adjustments
relate only to policies assumed in recent periods and the
adjustments are reflected by a cumulative charge or credit to
current operations.
The Company reinsures asset-intensive products, including
annuities and corporate-owned life insurance. The investment
portfolios for these products are segregated for management
purposes within the general account of RGA Reinsurance.
The liabilities under asset-intensive reinsurance contracts
are included in interest-sensitive contract liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets.
Other Policy Claims and Benefits. Claims payable for
incurred but not reported losses are determined using case
basis estimates and lag studies of past experience. The time
lag from the date of the claim or death to when the ceding
company reports the claim to the Company can vary significantly by ceding company and business segment, but generally
averages around 2.8 months on a consolidated basis. The
Company updates its analysis of incurred but not reported,
including lag studies, on a quarterly basis and adjusts its claim
liabilities accordingly.
Other liabilities primarily include investments in transit,
separate accounts, employee benefits, and current federal
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income taxes payable. The Company occasionally enters into
sales of investment securities under agreements to repurchase
the same securities and participates in a securitized lending
program. These transactions are reported as collateralized
financings and the settlement obligation is a component of
other liabilities. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were
no repurchase agreements outstanding.
Income Taxes. RGA and its eligible U.S. subsidiaries
file a consolidated federal income tax return. The U.S.
consolidated tax return includes RGA, RGA Americas,
RGA Reinsurance, RGA Barbados, RGA Technology Partners,
Inc., Reinsurance Company of Missouri (“RCM”), Incorporated,
RGA Sigma Reinsurance SPC, Timberlake Financial L.L.C.
(“Timberlake Financial”), Timberlake Reinsurance Company II
(“Timberlake Re”), Fairfield Management Group, Inc.,
Reinsurance Partners, Inc. and RGA Worldwide Reinsurance
Company, Ltd. (“RGA Worldwide”), formerly Triad Re, Ltd.
The Company’s Argentine, Australian, Bermudian, Canadian,
South African, Indian, Irish, and United Kingdom subsidiaries
are taxed under applicable local statutes.
For all years presented the Company uses the asset and
liability method to record deferred income taxes. Accordingly,
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, using
enacted tax rates.
Collateral finance facility represents notes issued to fund
collateral requirements for statutory reserves on specified
term life insurance policies reinsured by RGA Reinsurance.
The cost of the facility is reflected in collateral finance
facility expense. See Note 15 – “Collateral Finance Facility”
for additional information.
Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred
Securities of Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely Junior
Subordinated Debentures of the Company. During
December 2001, RGA Capital Trust I (the “Trust”), a whollyowned subsidiary of RGA, sold Preferred Income Equity
Redeemable Securities (“PIERS”) Units. Each unit consists of
a preferred security (“Preferred Securities”) issued by the Trust
with a detachable warrant to purchase 1.2508 shares of RGA
common stock. The Trust sold 4.5 million PIERS units. The
market value of the Preferred Securities on the date issued
($158.1 million) was recorded in liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets under the caption “Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust
holding solely junior subordinated debentures”. The coupon
rate of the Preferred Securities is 5.75% on a face amount of
$225.0 million.

Warrants. The market value of the detachable warrants on the
date the PIERS units were issued is recorded in stockholders’
equity on the consolidated balance sheets under the caption
“Warrants”. In the aggregate as of December 31, 2006,
4.5 million warrants to purchase approximately 5.6 million
shares of Company common stock at a price per share of
$39.98 were outstanding. If on any date after December 18,
2004, the closing price of RGA common stock exceeds and
has exceeded a price per share equal to $47.97 for at least
20 trading days within the immediately preceding 30 consecutive trading days, the Company may redeem the warrants in
whole for cash, RGA common stock, or a combination of cash
and RGA common stock.
Foreign Currency Translation. The translation of the foreign
currency into U.S. dollars is performed for balance sheet
accounts using current exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using a
weighted average exchange rate during each year. Gains or
losses, net of applicable deferred income taxes, resulting from
such translation are included in accumulated currency translation adjustments, in accumulated other comprehensive income
on the consolidated balance sheets until the underlying subsidiary is sold or substantially liquidated. The Company’s material
functional currencies are the Australian dollar, the British
pound, the Canadian dollar, the Japanese yen, the Korean won,
the South African rand and euros.
Retrocession Arrangements and Reinsurance Ceded
Receivables. The Company generally reports retrocession
activity on a gross basis. Amounts paid or deemed to have
been paid for reinsurance are reflected in reinsurance ceded
receivables. The cost of reinsurance related to long-duration
contracts is recognized over the terms of the reinsured policies
on a basis consistent with the reporting of those policies.
In the normal course of business, the Company seeks to limit
its exposure to loss on any single insured and to recover a
portion of benefits paid by ceding reinsurance to other insurance
enterprises or reinsurers under excess coverage and coinsurance contracts. In the U.S., the Company retains a maximum of
$6.0 million of coverage per individual life. In certain limited
situations, due to the acquisition of in force blocks of business,
the Company has retained more than $6.0 million per individual
policy. In total, there are 40 such cases of over-retained policies,
for amounts averaging $2.4 million over the Company’s normal
retention limit. The largest amount over retained on any one
life is $12.1 million. For other countries, particularly those with
higher risk factors or smaller books of business, the Company
systematically reduces its retention. The Company has a number
of retrocession arrangements whereby certain business in force
is retroceded on an automatic or facultative basis. The Company
also retrocedes most of its financial reinsurance business
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to other insurance companies to alleviate statutory capital
requirements created by this business.
Retrocessions are arranged through the Company’s
retrocession pools for amounts in excess of the Company’s
retention limit. As of December 31, 2006, all rated retrocession
pool participants followed by the A.M. Best Company were
rated “B++” or better. For a majority of the retrocessionaires
that were not rated, security in the form of letters of credit or
trust assets has been given as additional security in favor of
RGA Reinsurance. In addition, the Company performs annual
financial reviews of its retrocessionaires to evaluate financial
stability and performance. In addition to its third party retrocessionaires, various RGA reinsurance subsidiaries retrocede
amounts in excess of their retention to RGA Reinsurance,
RGA Barbados and RGA Americas.
The Company has never experienced a material default in
connection with retrocession arrangements, nor has it experienced any difficulty in collecting claims recoverable from
retrocessionaires; however, no assurance can be given as to
the future performance of such retrocessionaires or as to
recoverability of any such claims.
Recognition of Revenues and Related Expenses. Life
and health premiums are recognized as revenue when due
from the insured, and are reported net of amounts retroceded.
Benefits and expenses are reported net of amounts retroceded
and are associated with earned premiums so that profits are
recognized over the life of the related contract. This association is accomplished through the provision for future policy
benefits and the amortization of deferred policy acquisition
costs. Other revenue includes items such as treaty recapture
fees, and fees associated with financial reinsurance. Any
fees that are collected in advance of the period benefited
are deferred and recognized over the period benefited.
Initial reserve changes are netted against premiums when
an in force block of business is reinsured.
For certain reinsurance transactions involving in force
blocks of business, the ceding company pays a premium
equal to the initial required reserve (future policy benefit).
In such transactions, for income statement presentation, the
Company nets the expense associated with the establishment
of the reserve on the consolidated balance sheet against the
premiums from the transaction.
Revenues for interest-sensitive and investment-type products consist of investment income, policy charges for the cost
of insurance, policy administration, and surrenders that have
been assessed against policy account balances during the
period. Interest-sensitive contract liabilities for these products
represent policy account balances before applicable surrender
charges. Deferred policy acquisition costs are recognized as
expenses over the term of the policies. Policy benefits and
claims that are charged to expenses include claims incurred
in the period in excess of related policy account balances and
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interest credited to policy account balances. The weighted
average interest-crediting rates for interest-sensitive products
were 4.3%, 4.1% and 4.5%, during 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The weighted average interest-crediting rates
for U.S. dollar-denominated investment-type contracts ranged
from 2.5% to 4.8% during 2006, 3.2% to 5.8% during 2005
and 2.8% to 5.9% during 2004.
Investment income is recognized as it accrues or is legally
due. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are
included in net income, as are write-downs of investments
where declines in value are deemed to be other than temporary in nature. The cost of investments sold is determined
based upon the specific identification method.
Net Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share exclude
any dilutive effects of any outstanding options, warrants
or units. Diluted earnings per share include the dilutive
effects assuming outstanding stock options, warrants or
units were exercised.
New Accounting Pronouncements. In September 2006,
the FASB ratified the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
consensus on Issue 06-5. This issue titled “Accounting for
the Purchases of Life Insurance – Determining the Amount
That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical
Bulletin No. 85-4”, clarified that the amount of the DAC
receivable beyond one year generally must be discounted to
present value under Accounting Principles Board Opinion 21.
The ratification is effective for reporting periods after
December 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of EITF Issue 06‑05 and does not expect that the
pronouncement will have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides
guidance on how prior year misstatements should be considered
when quantifying misstatements in current year financial statements for purposes of assessing materiality. SAB 108 requires
that a registrant assess the materiality of a current period misstatement by determining how the current period’s balance sheet
would be affected in correcting a misstatement without considering the year(s) in which the misstatement originated and how
the current period’s income statement is misstated, including
the reversing effect of prior year mis-statements. SAB 108 is
effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006.
The cumulative effect of applying SAB 108 may be recorded by
adjusting current year beginning balances of the affected assets
and liabilities with a corresponding adjustment to the current
year opening balance in retained earnings if certain criteria are
met. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post
retirement Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(r)” (“SFAS 158”). The pronouncement revises
financial reporting standards for defined benefit pension and
other postretirement plans by requiring the (i) recognition in the
statement of financial position of the funded status of defined
benefit plans measured as the difference between the fair value
of plan assets and the benefit obligation, which is the projected
benefit obligation for pension plans and the accumulated post
retirement benefit obligation for other postretirement plans;
(ii) recognition as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes, those amounts of
actuarial gains and losses, prior service costs and credits, and
transition obligations that have not yet been included in net
periodic benefit costs as of the end of the year of adoption;
(iii) recognition of subsequent changes in funded status as a
component of other comprehensive income; (iv) measurement
of benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the
statement of financial position; and (v) disclosure of additional
information about the effects on the employer’s statement
of financial position. The Company adopted SFAS 158 on
December 31, 2006 increasing other liabilities by $17.4 million,
decreasing deferred income taxes by $6.1 million, and reducing
the Company’s total stockholder’s equity by $11.3 million.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and
requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements.
The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2006. The guidance in SFAS 157 will be applied
prospectively with the exception of; (i) block discounts of financial instruments; (ii) certain financial and hybrid instruments
measured at initial recognition under SFAS 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”);
which are to be applied retrospectively as of the beginning of
initial adoption (a limited form of retrospective application).
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 157
and does not expect that the pronouncement will have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income tax recognized in a company’s
financial statements. FIN 48 requires companies to determine
whether it is “more likely than not” that a tax position will be
sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing
authorities before any part of the benefit can be recorded in
the financial statements. It also provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement and classification of income tax
uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties.
Previously recorded income tax benefits that no longer meet

this standard are required to be charged to earnings in the
period that such determination is made. FIN 48 will also require
significant additional disclosures. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company
will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, as required. Based
upon the Company’s evaluation work completed to date,
the Company expects to recognize an increase of approximately $25.2 million in the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits, which will be accounted for as a reduction to the
January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings.
In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Instruments” (“SFAS 155”).
SFAS 155 amends SFAS No. 133 and SFAS 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments
of Liabilities”. SFAS 155 allows financial instruments that have
embedded derivatives to be accounted for as a whole, eliminating the need to bifurcate the derivative from its host, if the
holder elects to account for the whole instrument on a fair
value basis. In addition, among other changes, SFAS 155
(i) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips
are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133; (ii) establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized
financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding
derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain
an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation; (iii) clarifies that
concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are
not embedded derivatives; and (iv) eliminates the prohibition on
a qualifying special-purpose entity (“QSPE”) from holding a
derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial
interest other than another derivative financial interest. The
Company prospectively adopted SFAS 155 during the first
quarter of 2006, which did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In September 2005, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“AICPA”) issued Statement of Position
(“SOP”) 05-1, Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for Deferred
Acquisition Costs in Connection with Modifications or
Exchanges of Insurance Contracts (“SOP 05-1”). SOP 05-1
provides guidance on accounting by insurance enterprises for
DAC on internal replacements of insurance and investment
contracts other than those specifically described in SFAS
No. 97, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for
Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and
Losses from the Sale of Investments”. SOP 05-1 defines an
internal replacement as a modification in product benefits,
features, rights, or coverages that occurs by the exchange of a
contract for a new contract, or by amendment, endorsement, or
rider to a contract, or by the election of a feature or coverage
within a contract. Under SOP 05-1, modifications that result in a
substantially unchanged contract will be accounted for as a
continuation of the replaced contract. A replacement contract
that is substantially changed will be accounted for as an extinguishment of the replaced contract resulting in a release of
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unamortized DAC, unearned revenue and deferred sales inducements associated with the replaced contract. The SOP will be
adopted in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SOP 05-1 and
does not expect that the adoption of SOP 05-1 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In June 2005, the FASB cleared SFAS 133 Implementation
Issue No. B38, “Embedded Derivatives: Evaluation of Net
Settlement with Respect to the Settlement of a Debt
Instrument through Exercise of an Embedded Put Option
or Call Option” (“Issue B38”) and SFAS 133 Implementation
Issue No. B39, “Embedded Derivatives: Application of
Paragraph 13(b) to Call Options That Are Exercisable Only
by the Debtor” (“Issue B39”). Issue B38 clarified that the
potential settlement of a debtor’s obligation to a creditor
occurring upon exercise of a put or call option meets the net
settlement criteria of SFAS No. 133. Issue B39 clarified that
an embedded call option, in which the underlying is an interest
rate or interest rate index, that can accelerate the settlement
of a debt host financial instrument should not be bifurcated
and fair valued if the right to accelerate the settlement can
be exercised only by the debtor (issuer/borrower) and the
investor will recover substantially all of its initial net investment. Issues B38 and B39 were adopted by the Company
during the first quarter of 2006 and did not have a material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS 154”). The statement
requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial
statements for corrections of errors or a voluntary change in

accounting principle unless it is deemed impracticable. It also
requires that a change in the method of depreciation, amortization, or depletion for long-lived, non-financial assets be reported
as a change in accounting estimate rather than a change in
accounting principle. SFAS 154 was adopted by the Company
during the first quarter of 2006.
In December 2004, the FASB revised SFAS No. 123
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) to
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(r)”). SFAS 123(r) provides
additional guidance on determining whether certain financial
instruments awarded in share-based payment transactions are
liabilities. SFAS 123(r) also requires that the cost of all sharebased transactions be recorded in the financial statements.
The revised pronouncement was adopted by the Company
during the first quarter of 2006 increasing compensation cost
by approximately $1.7 million. See Note 17 – “Equity Based
Compensation” for additional information.
In July 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive
Committee issued SOP 03-1, “Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration
Contracts and for Separate Accounts”. SOP 03-1 provides
guidance on separate account presentation and valuation, the
accounting for sales inducements and the classification and
valuation of long-duration contract liabilities. The Company
adopted the provisions of SOP 03-1 on January 1, 2004,
recording a charge of $0.4 million as a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle.

N ote 3

purposes. The repurchase of shares pursuant to the ASR agreement is in addition to the Company’s previously announced stock
repurchase authorization.
On January 23, 2002, the board of directors approved a
stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to purchase
up to $50 million of its shares of stock, as conditions warrant.
The board’s action allows management, at its discretion, to
purchase shares on the open market. As of December 31, 2006,
the Company had purchased 225,500 shares under this program
at an aggregate cost of $6.6 million. Purchased shares are held
as treasury stock. All purchases were made during 2002.
The Company generally uses treasury shares to support the
future exercise of options granted under its stock option plans.

STOCK TR ANSACTIONS

On December 12, 2005, RGA entered into an accelerated share
repurchase (“ASR”) agreement with a financial counterparty.
Under the ASR agreement, RGA purchased 1,600,000 shares of
its outstanding common stock at an initial price of $47.43 per
share and at an aggregate price of approximately $75.9 million.
The counterparty completed its purchases during the first
quarter of 2006 and as a result, the Company was required to
pay $194 thousand to the counterparty for the final settlement
which resulted in a final price of $47.55 per share on the repurchased common stock. The common shares repurchased have
been placed into treasury to be used for general corporate
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Reclassification. The Company has reclassified the
presentation of certain prior period information to conform
to the 2006 presentation.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
N ote 4

INVESTMENTS

Major categories of net investment income consist of the following (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale
Mortgage loans on real estate
Policy loans
Funds withheld at interest
Short-term investments
Other invested assets

      $

Investment revenue
Investment expense

408,603
42,674
54,322
256,566
5,142
24,848

2005

      $

792,155
12,500

Net investment income

      $

779,655

339,051
40,827
57,237
192,122
2,236
17,569

2004

     $

649,042
9,877
      $

639,165

287,471
34,045
54,309
199,094
1,314
14,045
590,278
9,750

     $

580,528

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and estimated fair values of investments in fixed maturity securities and
equity securities at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):
2006
(in thousands)

Amortized Cost

Unrealized Gains

Unrealized Losses

Fair Value

ava i l a b le - fo r - s a le :

Commercial and industrial
Public utilities
Asset-backed securities
Canadian and Canadian provincial governments
Mortgage-backed securities
Finance
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Other foreign government securities

      $ 1,631,101
1,027,994
468,188
814,048
1,986,276
1,615,041
3,236
68,462
253,586

      $

21,056
251,200
2,751
245,671
13,702
36,606
86
346
727

      $

23,500
8,628
1,016
605
19,066
10,699
28
714
3,648

     $ 1,628,657
1,270,566
469,923
1,059,114
1,980,912
1,640,948
3,294
68,094
250,665

Total fixed maturity securities

      $ 7,867,932

      $

572,145

      $

67,904

     $ 8,372,173

Equity securities

      $

      $

5,886

      $

1,362

2005
(in thousands)

158,076

Amortized Cost

Unrealized Gains

     $

Unrealized Losses

162,600

Fair Value

ava i l a b le - fo r - s a le :

Commercial and industrial
Public utilities
Asset-backed securities
Canadian and Canadian provincial governments
Mortgage-backed securities
Finance
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Other foreign government securities

      $ 1,817,190
904,291
119,913
700,487
1,530,795
965,177
38,352
31,493
223,527

      $

53,023
249,293
3,571
240,059
9,889
29,909
48
385
3,806

      $

18,983
3,378
1,352
415
15,478
6,905
263
115
76

     $ 1,851,230
1,150,206
122,132
940,131
1,525,206
988,181
38,137
31,763
227,257

Total fixed maturity securities

      $ 6,331,225

      $ 589,983

      $

46,965

     $ 6,874,243

Equity securities

      $

      $

      $

3,804

199,531

5,359

     $

201,086
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As of December 31, 2006, the Company held securities with a
market value of $582.2 million issued by the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, $450.0 million issued by the
Federal National Mortgage Corporation, $545.0 million that
were issued by a Canadian province, and $481.7 million in one
entity that were guaranteed by a Canadian province, all of which
exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders’ equity. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company held securities with a market
value of $586.1 million issued by the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, $407.4 million issued by the Federal
National Mortgage Corporation, $485.7 million in one entity were
guaranteed by a Canadian province, and $454.0 million in one
entity that was guaranteed by a Canadian province, all of which
exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders’ equity.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2006 are
shown by contractual maturity for all securities except certain
U.S. government agencies securities, which are distributed to
maturity year based on the Company’s estimate of the rate of
future prepayments of principal over the remaining lives of the
securities. These estimates are developed using prepayment
rates provided in broker consensus data. Such estimates are
derived from prepayment rates experienced at the interest rate
levels projected for the applicable underlying collateral and can
be expected to vary from actual experience. Actual maturities
can differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call
or prepayment penalties.

At December 31, 2006, the contractual maturities of investments in fixed maturity securities were as follows (in thousands):
At December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

ava i l a b le - fo r - s a le :

Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years
Asset and mortgage-backed securities

      $

113,447
1,041,326
1,644,747
2,613,949
2,454,463

     $

113,462
1,046,257
1,645,300
3,116,319
2,450,835

      $ 7,867,932

     $ 8,372,173

2005

2004

Net investment related gains consist of the following (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

f i x ed m at ur i t i es a n d eq u i t y s ecu r i t i es ava i l a b le - fo r - s a le :

Realized gains
Realized losses
Other, net

      $

27,094
(31,104)
57

      $

36,463
(24,733)
1,860

     $

48,306
(21,038)
2,205

Net gains (losses)

      $

(3,953)

      $

13,590

     $

29,473
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The Company monitors its investment securities to identify
impairments in value. The Company evaluates factors such as
financial condition of the issuer, payment performance, the
length of time and the extent to which the market value has
been below amortized cost, compliance with covenants,
general market conditions and industry sector, intent and ability
to hold securities, and various other subjective factors. Based on
management’s judgment, securities with an other-than-temporary impairment in value are written down to management’s
estimate of fair value. Included in net realized losses are otherthan-temporary write-downs of fixed maturity securities of
approximately $1.1 million, $0.5 million, and $8.5 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The circumstances that gave rise
to these impairments were management’s intention to sell
certain securities which were trading at amounts less than the
then carrying value, bankruptcy proceedings on the part of the
issuer or deterioration in collateral value supporting certain
asset-backed securities.

At December 31, 2006, fixed maturity securities held by the
Company that were below investment grade had a book value
and estimated fair value of approximately $245.7 million and
$246.8 million, respectively. At December 31, 2006, the Company
owned non-income producing securities with an amortized
cost of $12.5 million and market value of $13.4 million. During
2006, 2005, and 2004 the Company sold fixed maturity securities and equity securities with fair values of $997.0 million,
$822.3 million, and $394.0 million, which were below amortized
cost, at losses of $31.5 million, $21.8 million and $20.6 million,
respectively. Generally, such losses are insignificant in relation
to the cost basis of the investment and are largely due to
changes in interest rates from the time the security was purchased. The securities are classified as available-for-sale in
order to meet the Company’s operational and other cash flow
requirements. The Company does not engage in short-term
buying and selling of securities to generate gains or losses.

The following table presents the total gross unrealized losses for 982 and 679 fixed maturity securities and equity securities as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below amortized cost by
the indicated amount (in thousands):
As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

Gross
Unrealized Losses

% of Total

Gross
Unrealized Losses

% of Total

Less than 20%
20% or more for less than six months
20% or more for six months or greater

       $ 69,266
–
–

100.0%        $ 50,224
–
545
–
–

98.9%
1.1%
–

Total

       $ 69,266

100.0%        $ 50,769

100.0%

While all of these securities are monitored for potential impairment, the Company’s experience indicates that the first two categories do not present as great a risk of impairment, and often, fair values recover over time. These securities have generally been
adversely affected by overall economic conditions, primarily an increase in the interest rate environment.
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The following tables present the estimated fair values and gross unrealized losses for the 982 and 679 fixed maturity securities
and equity securities that have estimated fair values below amortized cost as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These
investments are presented by class and grade of security, as well as the length of time the related market value has remained
below amortized cost.
As of December 31, 2006
(in thousands)

Less than 12 months
Estimated
Fair Value

Equal to or greater than 12 months

Gross
Unrealized Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized Loss

Total
Estimated
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized Loss

i n v es t men t gr a de s ecur i t i es :

Commercial and industrial
Public utilities
Asset-backed securities
Canadian and Canadian
provincial governments
Mortgage-backed securities
Finance
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Foreign governments

    $

Investment grade securities

433,621     $
217,376
197,525

7,899     $
3,403
634

405,084     $
125,113
22,036

13,468     $
4,444
365

838,705     $
342,489
219,561

21,367
7,847
999

50,965
741,943
498,661
105
29,229
175,247

548
6,381
3,447
–
270
3,137

2,847
552,415
226,042
979
13,269
27,862

56
12,684
7,249
28
444
512

53,812
1,294,358
724,703
1,084
42,498
203,109

604
19,065
10,696
28
714
3,649

2,344,672

25,719

1,375,647

39,250

3,720,319

64,969

53,204
14,683
3,282

1,103
247
18

25,187
502
–

1,030
4
–

78,391
15,185
3,282

2,133
251
18

–

9,038

533

9,038

533

1,368

34,727

1,567

105,896

2,935

n o n - i n v es t men t gr a de s ecu r i t i es :

Commercial and industrial
Finance
Asset-backed securities
Public utilities

–   

Non-investment grade securities

71,169

Total fixed maturity securities

    $ 2,415,841     $

Equity securities

    $
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25,926     $

27,087     $ 1,410,374     $
668     $

15,874     $

40,817     $ 3,826,215     $
694     $

41,800     $

67,904
1,362

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2005
(in thousands)

Less than 12 months
Estimated
Fair Value

Equal to or greater than 12 months

Gross
Unrealized Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Total

Gross
Unrealized Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized Loss

i n v es t men t gr a de s ecur i t i es :

Commercial and industrial
Public utilities
Asset-backed securities
Canadian and Canadian
provincial governments
Mortgage-backed securities
Finance
U.S. government and agencies

    $

State and political subdivisions
Foreign governments
Investment grade securities

761,601     $
190,043
48,134

15,525     $
2,941
912

53,040     $
5,750
18,791

2,700     $
332
440

814,641     $
195,793
66,925

18,225
3,273
1,352

40,959
905,373
371,643
31,102
5,705

415
14,085
4,907
238

–
45,175
20,872
681

–
1,393
904
25

40,959
950,548
392,515
31,783

415
15,478
5,811
263

115
76

–
–

–
–

5,705
25,109

115
76

25,109
     2,379,669     

39,214     

144,309     

5,794      2,523,978     

45,008

37,411     
12,822
11,610

709     
106
1,094

2,515     
–
–

48     
–
–

39,926     
12,822
11,610

757
106
1,094

61,843

1,909

2,515

48

64,358

1,957

n o n - i n v es t men t gr a de s ecu r i t i es :

Commercial and industrial
Public utilities
Finance

    

Non-investment grade securities
Total fixed maturity securities

    $ 2,441,512     $

Equity securities

    $

92,492     $

41,123     $

146,824     $

3,629     $

6,094     $

The Company believes that the analysis of each security whose
price has been below market for greater than twelve months
indicated that the financial strength, liquidity, leverage, future
outlook, and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the security until recovery support the view that the security was not
other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2006. The
unrealized losses on fixed maturity securities did not exceed
14.3% on an individual security basis and are primarily a result
of rising interest rates, changes in credit spreads and the longdated maturities of the securities.
The Company participates in a securities lending program
whereby blocks of securities, which are included in investments,

5,842     $ 2,588,336     $
175     $

98,586     $

46,965
3,804

are loaned to third parties, primarily major brokerage firms. The
Company requires a minimum of 102% of the fair value of the
loaned securities to be separately maintained as collateral for
the loans. No securities were loaned to third parties as of
December 31, 2006 or 2005. Securities loaned transactions are
accounted for as financing arrangements on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of
cash flow and the income and expenses associated with the
program are reported in net investment income since such
transactions are entered into for income generation purposes,
not funding purposes.

The Company makes mortgage loans on income producing properties, such as apartments, retail and office buildings, light warehouses and light industrial facilities. Loan to value ratios at the time of loan approval are 80% or less for domestic mortgages.
The distribution of mortgage loans by property type is as follows as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):
As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2006
Carrying Value

2005
Percentage
of Total

Carrying Value

Percentage
of Total

p ro p er t y t y p e :

Apartment

    $

49,185

7.59%

193,077

26.25%

150,083

23.16%

Office building

218,957

29.76%

199,095

30.72%

Industrial

235,047

31.96%

226,217

34.91%

31,122

4.23%

23,487

3.62%

648,067

100.00%

Retail

Other commercial
Total

    $

57,415

735,618

7.80%     $

100.00%     $
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All of the Company’s mortgage loans are amortizing loans. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s mortgage loans
were distributed as follows (in thousands):
As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2006
Carrying Value

2005
Percentage
of Total

Carrying Value

Percentage
of Total

u n i t ed s tat es :

Alabama
Arizona
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana
Kansas
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Missouri
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
Ohio
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin

    $

18,478
47,432
147,572
30,932
1,937
69,115
57,571
62,402
10,325
19,860
9,302
9,856
11,908
36,098
4,678
2,227
26,953
–
19,436
18,317
3,686
5,488
6,829
5,323
3,521
6,927
3,675
27,838
39,801
18,436
9,695

2.51%     $
6.45%
20.07%
4.20%
0.26%
9.40%
7.83%
8.48%
1.40%
2.70%
1.26%
1.34%
1.62%
4.91%
0.64%
0.30%
3.66%
–
2.64%
2.49%
0.50%
0.75%
0.93%
0.72%
0.48%
0.94%
0.50%
3.78%
5.41%
2.51%
1.32%

9,638
24,506
151,191
32,506
1,982
56,735
46,088
50,882
10,723
20,510
9,535
6,216
12,094
15,801
9,646
2,280
27,392
3,758
9,922
18,202
3,759
5,615
4,526
5,439
3,566
7,091
–
28,612
40,584
18,815
10,453

1.49%
3.78%
23.34%
5.02%
0.31%
8.75%
7.11%
7.85%
1.65%
3.16%
1.47%
0.96%
1.87%
2.44%
1.49%
0.35%
4.23%
0.58%
1.53%
2.81%
0.58%
0.87%
0.70%
0.84%
0.55%
1.09%
–
4.41%
6.26%
2.90%
1.61%

Total

    $

735,618

100.00%     $

648,067

100.00%
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All mortgage loans are performing and no valuation allowance
had been established as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.
The maturities of the mortgage loans as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):
As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

Due one year through five years
Due after five years
Due after ten years

     $ 117,463      $ 90,466
487,691
438,911
130,464
118,690

Total

     $ 735,618      $ 648,067

Policy loans comprised approximately 6.9% and 8.0% of the
Company’s investments as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, substantially all of which are associated with
one client. These policy loans present no credit risk because
the amount of the loan cannot exceed the obligation due the
ceding company upon the death of the insured or surrender of
the underlying policy. The provisions of the treaties in force and
the underlying policies determine the policy loan interest rates.
Because policy loans represent premature distributions of
policy liabilities, they have the effect of reducing future disintermediation risk. In addition, the Company earns a spread
between the interest rate earned on policy loans and the
interest rate credited to corresponding liabilities.
Funds withheld at interest comprised approximately 28.3%
and 28.1% of the Company’s investments as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Of the $4.1 billion funds
withheld at interest balance as of December 31, 2006,

$2.8 billion of the balance is associated with one client.
For agreements written on a modified coinsurance basis and
certain agreements written on a coinsurance funds withheld
basis, assets equal to the net statutory reserves are withheld
and legally owned and managed by the ceding company and
are reflected as funds withheld at interest on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. In the event of a ceding com
pany’s insolvency, the Company would need to assert a claim
on the assets supporting its reserve liabilities. However, the
risk of loss to the Company is mitigated by its ability to offset
amounts it owes the ceding company for claims or allowances
with amounts owed to the Company from the ceding company.
Interest accrues to these assets at rates defined by the treaty
terms and the Company estimates the yield was approximately
7.08% , 6.63% and 7.51% for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In most cases, the
Company is subject to the investment performance on the
funds withheld assets, although it does not control them.
To mitigate this risk, the Company helps set the investment
guidelines followed by the ceding company and monitors
compliance.
Other invested assets include equity securities, preferred
stocks, limited partnership interests, structured loans and
derivative contracts. Other invested assets represented
approximately 1.5% and 1.9% of the Company’s investments
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company
recognized other-than-temporary write-downs of approximately
$4.3 million and $1.3 million, during 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The Company did not recognize any other-than-temporary
write-downs on other invested assets in 2004.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INS TRUME NTS

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Fair values have been determined by using available market information and the valuation
methodologies described below. Considerable judgment is often required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of
fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein may not necessarily be indicative of amounts that could be realized in
a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions or valuation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts (in thousands):
At December 31,
(in thousands)

2006
Carrying Value

2005
Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying Value

Estimated
Fair Value

as s e ts :

Fixed maturity securities
Mortgage loans on real estate
Policy loans
Funds withheld at interest
Short-term investments
Other invested assets

    $ 8,372,173     $ 8,372,173     $ 6,874,243     $ 6,874,243
735,618
746,560
648,067
663,743
1,015,394
1,015,394
987,442
987,442
4,129,078
4,171,306
3,459,943
3,479,230
140,281
140,281
126,296
126,296
220,356
230,071
235,464
235,656

li a b i li t i es :
Interest-sensitive contract liabilities
Long-term and short-term debt
Collateral finance facility
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities

    $ 6,212,278     $ 5,480,925     $ 5,503,528     $ 4,904,127
705,549
717,180
800,002
821,889
850,402
850,402
–
–
158,701
226,091
158,553
228,459

Publicly traded fixed maturity securities are valued based upon
quoted market prices. Private placement securities are valued
based on the credit quality and duration of marketable securities
deemed comparable by the Company’s investment advisor,
which may be of another issuer. The fair value of mortgage loans
on real estate is estimated using discounted cash flows. Policy
loans typically carry an interest rate that is tied to the crediting
rate applied to the related policy and contract reserves. The
carrying value of funds withheld at interest approximates fair
value except where the funds withheld are specifically identified
in the agreement. The carrying value of short-term investments
at December 31, 2006 and 2005 approximates fair value.
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Common and preferred equity investments and derivative financial instruments included in other invested assets are reflected
at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets, while limited
partnership interests are carried at cost.
The fair value of the Company’s interest-sensitive
contract liabilities is based on the cash surrender value of
the liabilities, adjusted for recapture fees. The fair value of the
Company’s long-term debt, collateral finance facility and the
company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities are estimated based on either quoted market prices or
quoted market prices for the debt of corporations with similar
credit quality.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
N ote 6

REINSURANCE

Retrocession reinsurance treaties do not relieve the Company from its obligations to direct writing companies. Failure of retrocessionaires to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company. Consequently, allowances would be established for
amounts deemed uncollectible. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, no allowances were deemed necessary. The Company regularly
evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and retrocessionaires.
The effect of reinsurance on net premiums is as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

Direct
Reinsurance assumed
Reinsurance ceded

      $

2,958
4,732,491
(389,480)

Net premiums

      $ 4,345,969

2005

      $

3,795
4,218,033
(355,053)

      $ 3,866,775

2004

     $

4,930
3,644,472
(301,954)

     $ 3,347,448

The effect of reinsurance on policyholder claims and other policy benefits is as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

Direct
Reinsurance assumed
Reinsurance ceded

      $

3,602
3,667,795
(183,009)

Net policyholder claims and benefits

      $ 3,488,388

2005

      $

3,374
3,443,283
(258,755)

      $ 3,187,902

2004

     $

4,299
2,945,413
(271,175)

     $ 2,678,537

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were no reinsurance ceded receivables associated with a single reinsurer with a carrying
value in excess of 5% of total assets.
The effect of reinsurance on life insurance in force is shown in the following schedule (in millions):
(in millions)

Direct

Assumed

         $ 78
77
76

      $ 1,980,299
1,736,614
1,458,827

Ceded

Net

Assumed/Net %

47,458
59,241
161,978

      $ 1,932,919
1,677,450
1,296,925

102.45%
103.53%
112.48%

li f e i nsur a n ce i n fo rce :

December 31, 2006
December 31, 2005
December 31, 2004

At December 31, 2006, the Company has provided approximately $1.8 billion of statutory financial reinsurance, as
measured by pre-tax statutory surplus, to other insurance
companies under financial reinsurance transactions to assist
ceding companies in meeting applicable regulatory requirements. Generally, such financial reinsurance is provided by the
Company committing cash or assuming insurance liabilities,
which are collateralized by future profits on the reinsured
business. The Company retrocedes the majority of the
assumed financial reinsurance. The Company earns a fee
based on the amount of net outstanding financial reinsurance.

      $

Reinsurance agreements, whether facultative or automatic,
may provide for recapture rights on the part of the ceding
company. Recapture rights permit the ceding company to reassume all or a portion of the risk formerly ceded to the reinsurer
after an agreed-upon period of time, generally 10 years, or in
some cases due to changes in the financial condition or ratings
of the reinsurer. Recapture of business previously ceded does
not affect premiums ceded prior to the recapture of such business, but would reduce premiums in subsequent periods.
Additionally, some treaties give the ceding company the right to
request the Company to place assets in trust for their benefit to
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support their reserve credits, in the event of a downgrade of the
Company’s ratings to specified levels. As of December 31, 2006,
these treaties had approximately $686.0 million in reserves.
Assets placed in trust continue to be owned by the Company,
but their use is restricted based on the terms of the trust agreement. Securities with an amortized cost of $756.1 million were
held in trust to satisfy collateral requirements for reinsurance
business for the benefit of certain subsidiaries of the Company
at December 31, 2006. Securities with an amortized cost of
N ote 7

$1,364.4 million, as of December 31, 2006, were held in trust to
satisfy collateral requirements under certain third-party reinsurance treaties. Additionally, under certain conditions, RGA may be
obligated to move reinsurance from one RGA subsidiary company to another or make payments under the treaty. These
conditions include change in control of the subsidiary, insolvency, nonperformance under a treaty, or loss of reinsurance
license of such subsidiary. See Note 15 – “Collateral Finance
Facility” for additional information on assets in trust.

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

The following reflects the amounts of policy acquisition costs deferred and amortized (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

2004

d ef er r ed p o li cy acq uis i t i o n cos ts :

Assumed
Retroceded

       $ 2,900,181
(92,128)

       $ 2,557,268
(91,638)

      $ 2,321,731
(95,757)

Net

       $ 2,808,053

       $ 2,465,630

      $ 2,225,974

2006

2005

2004

       $ 2,465,630

       $ 2,225,974

      $ 1,757,096

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
Beginning of year
ca p i ta lized :

Assumed
Retroceded

891,597
(7,252)

920,372
(15,529)

915,071
(15,296)

(630,574)
(3,735)
6,762

(613,025)
(6,972)
19,648

(468,924)
(22,896)
(1,634)

85,625

(64,838)

a m o r t ized :

Assumed
Allocated to change in value of embedded derivatives
Retroceded
Foreign currency changes
End of year

       $ 2,808,053

       $ 2,465,630

62,557
      $ 2,225,974

Some reinsurance agreements involve reimbursing the ceding company for allowances and commissions in excess of first-year
premiums. These amounts represent acquisition costs and are capitalized to the extent deemed recoverable from the future premiums and amortized against future profits of the business. This type of agreement presents a risk to the extent that the business
lapses faster than originally anticipated, resulting in future profits being insufficient to recover the Company’s investment.
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I N C O M E TA X

The provision for income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operations consists of the following (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

2004

Current income tax expense
Deferred income tax expense
Foreign current tax expense
Foreign deferred tax expense

       $

853
114,708
23,449
19,117

       $ 44,583
32,815
34,762
8,578

      $

22,351
80,764
8,904
11,874

Provision for income taxes

       $ 158,127

       $ 120,738

      $ 123,893

Provision for income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax statutory rate of
35% to pre-tax income as a result of the following (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
Tax provision at U.S. statutory rate
i n cr e as e

2006

2005

2004

       $ 157,986

       $ 124,721

      $ 129,217

( decr e as e ) i n i n co m e ta x es r esu lt i n g f ro m :

Foreign tax rate differing from U.S. tax rate
Amounts related to audit resolution
Travel and entertainment
Deferred tax valuation allowance
Amounts related to tax audit contingencies
Other, net
Total provision for income taxes

(4,123)
–
198
274
3,780
12

(3,410)
–
167
(4,739)
3,234
765

(1,063)
(1,900)
241
(2,602)
–
–

  

  

       $ 158,127

       $ 120,738

      $ 123,893

2006

2005

2004

Total income taxes were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
Income taxes from continuing operations
Tax benefit on discontinued operations
Tax effect on cumulative change in accounting principle

       $ 158,127
(2,720)
–

       $ 120,738
(6,154)
–

      $ 123,893
(12,410)
(195)

(8,223)
(2,821)
1,727
(6,083)

47,048
(1,566)
(3,238)
–

39,855
(1,329)
(15,455)
–

i n co me ta x f ro m s to ck h o ld ers ’ eq u i t y :

Net unrealized holding gain (loss) on debt and equity securities
    recognized for financial reporting purposes
Exercise of stock options
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized pension and post retirement
Total income taxes provided

       $ 140,007

       $ 156,828

      $ 134,359

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, are presented in the following tables (in thousands):
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Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
d ef er r ed i n co me ta x as s e ts :
Nondeductible accruals
Deferred acquisition costs capitalized for tax
Net operating loss carryforward
Nondeductible foreign taxes
Capital loss carryforward

2006

       $

22,510
49,750
781,481
–
482

2005

      $

19,651
43,448
570,066
108
–

Subtotal
Valuation allowance

854,223
(5,000)

633,273
(4,727)

Total deferred income tax assets

849,223

628,546

977,790
404,841

858,693
175,857

104,725
11,897
178,818

42,690
10,169
193,161

1,678,071

1,280,570

       $ 828,848

      $ 652,024

d ef er r ed i n co me ta x li a b i li t i es :
Deferred acquisition costs capitalized for financial reporting
Reserve for policies and investment income differences
Differences between tax and financial reporting amounts
concerning certain reinsurance transactions
Differences in foreign currency translation
Differences in the tax basis of cash and invested assets

Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax liabilities

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, a valuation allowance
for deferred tax assets of approximately $5.0 million and
$4.7 million, respectively, was provided on the net operating and
capital losses of General American Argentina Seguros de Vida,
S.A., RGA South Africa Holdings, RGA Financial Products Limited,
and RGA UK Services Limited. The Company utilizes valuation
allowances when it believes, based on the weight of the available evidence, that it is more likely than not that the deferred
income taxes will not be realized. Except for RGA International
Reinsurance Company Ltd., and RGA Global Reinsurance
Company Limited, the Company has not recognized a deferred
tax liability for the undistributed earnings of its wholly owned
foreign subsidiaries because the Company considers these earnings to be permanently reinvested and does not expect these
earnings to be repatriated in the foreseeable future.
During 2006, 2005, and 2004, the Company received
federal income tax refunds and foreign tax credit reimbursements of approximately $46.3 million, $32.3 million and
$1.4 million, respectively. The Company made cash income
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tax payments of approximately $12.9 million, $79.3 million
and $29.9 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized gross
deferred tax assets associated with net operating losses of
approximately $2.2 billion and $1.6 billion, respectively, that
will expire between 2019 and 2026. However, these net operating losses are expected to be utilized in the normal course
of business during the period allowed for carryforwards and
in any event, are not expected to be lost due to the application
of tax planning strategies that management would utilize.
The Company’s U.S. tax returns have been audited by the
relevant taxing authorities for all years through 2002. The
Company believes established tax contingency reserves are
adequate in relation to the potential for additional assessments. Once established, reserves are adjusted as information
becomes available or when an event requiring a change to the
reserve occurs. The resolution of tax matters in the future
could have an effect on the Company’s effective rate.
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benefits are provided through a self-insured welfare benefit
plan. Employees become eligible for these benefits if they meet
minimum age and service requirements. The retiree’s cost for
health care benefits varies depending upon the credited years
of service. The Company recorded benefits expense of approximately $1.6 million, $1.3 million, and $0.7 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively that is related to these postretirement
plans. Virtually all retirees, or their beneficiaries, contribute a
portion of the total cost of postretirement health benefits.
A December 31 measurement date is used for all of the
defined benefit and postretirement plans.

E M P LOY E E B E N E F IT P L A N S

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are sponsors or administrators of both qualified and non-qualified defined benefit
pension plans (“Pension Plans”). The largest of these plans
is a non-contributory qualified defined benefit pension plan
sponsored by RGA Reinsurance that covers U.S. employees.
The benefits under the Pension Plans are generally based
on years of service and compensation levels.
The Company also provides certain health care and life
insurance benefits for retired employees. The health care
Obligations, Funded Status and Net Periodic Benefit Costs
December 31,
(in thousands)

Pension Benefits
2006

Other Benefits
2005

2006

2005

ch a n ge i n b en ef i t o b li g at i o n :

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Settlements
Participant contributions
Plan amendments
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid
Foreign currency rate change effect

     $ 30,898      $ 22,845      $ 10,232      $
2,662
2,047
687
1,975
1,589
632
(104)
(158)
–
–
–
22
5,152
–
–
2,016
4,873
903
(413)
(298)
(170)
96
–
–

8,583
598
518
–
17
–
613
(97)
–

Benefit obligation at end of year

     $ 42,282      $ 30,898      $ 12,306      $ 10,232

ch a n ge i n p l a n as s e ts :

Contract value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Settlements
Employer and participant contributions
Benefits paid and expenses

     $ 16,077      $ 13,875      $
2,145
834
(104)
(158)
3,979
1,846
(413)
(320)

–      $
–
–
170
(170)

–
–
–
97
(97)

Contract value of plan assets at end of year

     $ 21,684      $ 16,077      $

–      $

Funded status at end of year

     $ (20,598)      $ (14,821)      $ (12,306)      $ (10,232)

–

a m oun ts r eco gn ized i n ba l a n ce s h ee ts :

Funded Status at end of year
Unrecognized net actuarial losses
Unrecognized prior service cost

     $ (20,598)      $ (14,821)      $ (12,306)      $ (10,232)
–
7,575
–
4,627
–
217
–
–

Net amount recognized

     $ (20,598)      $ (7,029)      $ (12,306)      $ (5,605)

Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

     $

Net amount recognized

     $ (20,598)

     $ (12,306)

Net actuarial (gain) loss
Net prior service cost

     $

8,703
4,070

     $

4,607
–

Total

     $ 12,773

     $

4,607   

–
(347)
(20,251)

     $

–
(1,442)
(10,864)

a m oun ts r eco gn ized i n accu m u l at ed ot h er co m p r eh ens i v e i n co m e :
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The following table presents additional year-end information for pension plans based on the excess or shortfall of plan assets as
compared to the accumulated benefit obligation (“ABO”) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):
As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2006
ABO in Excess of
Plan Assets

Aggregate projected benefit obligation
Aggregate contract value of plan assets
Accumulated benefit obligation

2005
Plan Assets in
Excess of ABO

ABO in Excess of
Plan Assets

Plan Assets in
Excess of ABO

     $ 16,967      $ 25,315      $ 30,898      $
–
21,684
16,077
11,498
21,219
23,755

–
–
–

The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows (in thousands):
(in thousands)

Pension Benefits
2006

Other Benefits

2005

2004

2006

Service cost
     $
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior actuarial losses
Amortization of prior service cost

2,662      $
1,975
(1,516)
377
316

2,047      $ 1,827      $
1,589
1,274
(1,156)
(1,000)
353
133
30
30

Net periodic benefit cost

3,814      $

2,863      $

     $

2,264      $

2005

2004

687      $
632
–
279
–

598      $
518
–
221
–

342
331
–
58
–

1,598      $

1,337      $

731

The Company expects to contribute to the plans $8.3 million in pension benefits and $0.2 million in other benefits during 2007.
The following table summarizes the adjustments to the balance sheets in order to recognize the funded status of the defined
benefit pension and postretirement plans at December 31, 2006, as required by the adoption of SFAS 158 (in thousands):
Balance Sheet
(in thousands)
Category

Sub Category

Other liabilities
Other liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Accumulated other
comprehensive (loss)

Accrued pension
Accrued postretirement
Deferred income taxes

December 31,
2006
Pre SFAS 158
Adjustments
     $

Pension and postretirement benefits, net of income taxes

Adoption of
SFAS 158
Adjustments

December 31,
2006
Post SFAS 158
Adjustments

7,825      $ 12,773      $ 20,598
7,699
4,607
12,306
(2,861)
(6,083)
(8,944)
–

(11,297)

(11,297)

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected to be paid (in thousands):
(in thousands)
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012 – 2015
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Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

      $ 1,870       $
2,042
2,722
3,101
3,438
21,797

150
180
211
245
286
2,161

The estimated net loss and prior service cost for the defined
benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated
other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost
over the next fiscal year are $0.7 million and $0.1 million,
respectively.
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Assumptions
Weighted average assumptions used to determine the accumulated benefit obligation and net benefit cost or income for the year
ended December 31:
For The Year Ended December 31,

Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

2006

2005

2006

2005

5.75%
8.50%
4.25%

5.75%
8.50%
4.25%

5.75%
–
–

5.75%
–
–

The assumed health care cost trend rates used in measuring the accumulated non-pension post-retirement benefit obligation
were as follows:
December 31,
Pre-Medicare eligible claims
Medicare eligible claims

2006

2005

10% down to 5% in 2012
10% down to 5% in 2012

11% down to 5% in 2012
11% down to 5% in 2012

Assumed health care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A onepercentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects (in thousands):
(in thousands)
Effect on total of service and interest cost components
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

One Percent Increase

One Percent Decrease

               $ 339                $ (270)
               $ 2,891                $ (2,219)

Results for the Pension and Other Benefits Plans are measured at December 31 for each year presented.
Allocation of the Pension Plan’s total plan fair value and target allocations by asset type:
Fair Value

as s e t cat ego ry :
Equity securities
Debt securities
  

Total

Target Allocation

2006

2005

2006

2005

76%
24%

75%
25%

75%
25%

75%
25%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Target allocations of assets are determined with the objective of maximizing returns and minimizing volatility of net assets
through adequate asset diversification and partial liability immunization. Adjustments are made to target allocations based
on the Company’s assessment of the effect of economic factors and market conditions.
Savings and Investment Plans
Certain subsidiaries of the Company also sponsor saving and investment plans under which a portion of employee
contributions are matched. Subsidiary contributions to these plans, which are partially tied to RGA’s financial results,
were $1.8 million, $2.3 million and $2.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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R E L AT E D P A R T Y T R A N S A C T I O N S

General American and MetLife have historically provided
certain administrative services to RGA and RGA Reinsurance.
Such services include risk management and corporate
travel. The cost of these services for the years ended
December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately
$2.4 million, $1.7 million and $1.0 million, respectively.
Management does not believe that the various amounts
charged for these services would be materially different if
they had been incurred from an unrelated third party.
RGA Reinsurance also has a product license and service
agreement with MetLife. Under this agreement, RGA has
licensed the use of its electronic underwriting product to
MetLife and provides Internet hosting services, installation
and modification services for the product. The Company
recorded revenue under the agreement for the years
N ote 11

ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 of approximately
$0.7 million, $1.6 million and $3.5 million, respectively.
The Company also has arms-length direct policies and reinsurance agreements with MetLife and certain of its subsidiaries.
As of December 31, 2006, the Company had reinsurance related
assets, excluding investments allocated to support the business,
and liabilities from these agreements totaling $114.6 million
and $306.7 million, respectively. Prior-year comparable assets
and liabilities were $121.9 million and $277.8 million, respectively. Additionally, the Company reflected net premiums of
approximately $227.8 million, $226.7 million and $164.4 million
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The premiums reflect
the net of business assumed from and ceded to MetLife and its
subsidiaries. The pre-tax income (loss), excluding investment
income allocated to support the business, was approximately
$10.9 million, ($11.3) million and $22.4 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company leases office space and furniture and equipment under non-cancelable operating lease agreements, which expire
at various dates. Future minimum office space annual rentals under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2006 are
as follows:
2007

           $ 7.8 million

2008

6.6 million

2009

5.7 million

2010

4.3 million

2011

2.9 million

Thereafter
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10.1 million

The amounts in the table are net of expected sublease
income of approximately $0.4 million annually through 2010.
Rent expenses amounted to approximately $7.5 million,
$8.0 million and $8.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

The following table presents selected statutory financial information for the Company’s primary life reinsurance legal entities, as
of or for the years ended December 31, 2006 , 2005, and 2004 (in thousands):
For The Years Ended
December 31,
(in thousands)
RCM
RGA Reinsurance
RGA Canada
RGA Barbados
RGA Americas
Timberlake Re
Other reinsurance
subsidiaries

Statutory Capital & Surplus
2006
     
     
     
     
     
     

$ 1,045,611
$ 1,050,846
$ 325,983
$ 188,996
$ 291,284
$
89,783

      $

330,401

Statutory Net Income (Loss)
2005

     
     
     
     
     
     

$
$
$
$
$
$

1,007,351
975,110
346,065
165,462
228,073
–

      $ 223,945

2006
     
     
     
     
     
     

$
68,484
$ (61,466)
$
14,016
$
27,065
$
54,980
$ (574,694)

      $

44,265

2005
     
     
     
     
     
     

$
$
$
$
$
$

      $

(90,070)
(62,759)
(5,084)
31,033
39,764
–
10,689

2004
     
     
     
     
     
     

$
6,768
$ 117,378
$ 10,204
$ 16,203
$ 37,987
$
–

      $

8,001

The total capital and surplus positions of RCM, RGA
Reinsurance and RGA Canada exceed the risk-based capital
requirements of the applicable regulatory bodies. RCM and
RGA Reinsurance are subject to Missouri statutory provisions
that restrict the payment of dividends. They may not pay
dividends in any 12-month period in excess of the greater of
the prior year’s statutory operating income or 10% of capital
and surplus at the preceding year-end, without regulatory
approval. The applicable statutory provisions only permit an
insurer to pay a shareholder dividend from unassigned surplus.
Any dividends paid by RGA Reinsurance would be paid to
RCM, its parent company, which in turn has restrictions related
to its ability to pay dividends to RGA. The assets of RCM

consist primarily of its investment in RGA Reinsurance. As of
January 1, 2007, RCM and RGA Reinsurance could pay maximum dividends, without prior approval, of approximately
$55.7 million and $105.1 million, respectively. However, on
December 19, 2006, RCM received approval from the Missouri
Department of Insurance that allows RCM to pay a dividend to
RGA to the extent RCM received the dividend from RGA Re,
without limitation related to the level of unassigned surplus.
Thus, RCM’s allowable dividend is $104.6 million to the extent
that amount has been received from RGA Re. Dividend payments by other subsidiaries are subject to regulations in the
jurisdiction of domicile.

N ote 13 C O M M I T M E N T S A N D
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

claims, in the amount of $27.3 million, which is $26.6 million
in excess of the amounts held in reserve by the Company.
The Company generally has little information regarding any
reserves established by the ceding companies, and must rely
on management estimates to establish policy claim liabilities.
It is possible that any such reserves could be increased in the
future. The Company believes it has substantial defenses
upon which to contest these claims, including but not limited
to misrepresentation and breach of contract by direct and
indirect ceding companies. See Note 20, “Discontinued
Operations” for more information. Additionally, from time to
time, the Company is subject to litigation related to employment-related matters in the normal course of its business.
The Company cannot predict or determine the ultimate outcome of the pending litigation or arbitrations or provide useful
ranges of potential losses, it is the opinion of management,
after consultation with counsel, that their outcomes, after
consideration of the provisions made in the Company’s consolidated financial statements, would not have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial position. However,

The Company has commitments to fund investments in
mortgage loans and limited partnerships in the amount of
$19.9 million and $32.7 million, respectively, at December 31,
2006. The Company anticipates that the majority of these
amounts will be invested over the next five years, however,
contractually these commitments could become due at the
request of the counterparties. Investments in mortgage loans
and limited partnerships are carried at cost and included in
total investments in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company is currently a party to three arbitrations that
involve its discontinued accident and health business,
including personal accident business (including London
market excess of loss business) and workers’ compensation
carve-out business. The Company is also a party to a threatened arbitration related to its life reinsurance business. As of
January 31, 2007, the parties involved in these actions have
raised claims, or established reserves that may result in
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it is possible that an adverse outcome could, from time to time,
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
net income in particular quarterly or annual periods.
The Company has obtained letters of credit, issued by banks,
in favor of various affiliated and unaffiliated insurance companies from which the Company assumes business. These letters
of credit represent guarantees of performance under the reinsurance agreements and allow ceding companies to take
statutory reserve credits. Certain of these letters of credit
contain financial covenant restrictions. At December 31,
2006 and 2005, there were approximately $19.4 million and
$17.4 million, respectively, of outstanding bank letters of credit
in favor of third parties. Additionally, the Company utilizes letters
of credit to secure reserve credits when it retrocedes business
to its offshore subsidiaries, including RGA Americas, RGA
Barbados and RGA Worldwide. The Company cedes business
to its offshore affiliates to help reduce the amount of regulatory
capital required in certain jurisdictions such as the U.S. and the
United Kingdom. The capital required to support the business in
the offshore affiliates reflects more realistic expectations than
the original jurisdiction of the business, where capital requirements are often considered to be quite conservative. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, $437.7 million and $439.8 million,
respectively, in letters of credit from various banks were outstanding between the various subsidiaries of the Company.
The Company maintains a five-year, syndicated credit facility
with an overall capacity of $600.0 million. The amount of the
overall capacity available for issuance of letters of credit is
reduced by any cash borrowings, up to $300.0 million, made by
the Company against this credit facility. At December 31, 2006,
there were $315.0 million letters of credit outstanding under this
credit facility, which is included in the total above. Applicable
letter of credit fees and fees payable for the credit facility
depend upon the Company’s senior unsecured long-term debt
rating. Fees associated with the Company’s other letters of
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credit are not fixed for periods in excess of one year and are
based on the Company’s ratings and the general availability of
these instruments in the marketplace.
RGA has issued guarantees to third parties on behalf of its
subsidiaries’ performance for the payment of amounts due under
certain credit facilities, reinsurance treaties and two office lease
obligations, whereby if a subsidiary fails to meet an obligation,
RGA or one of its other subsidiaries will make a payment to fulfill
the obligation. In limited circumstances, treaty guarantees are
granted to ceding companies in order to provide them additional
security, particularly in cases where RGA’s subsidiary is relatively
new, unrated, or not of a significant size, relative to the ceding
company. Liabilities supported by the treaty guarantees, before
consideration for any legally offsetting amounts due from the
guaranteed party, totaled $276.5 million and $256.2 million as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and are reflected
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets in future policy
benefits. Potential guaranteed amounts of future payments will
vary depending on production levels and underwriting results.
Guarantees related to trust preferred securities and credit
facilities provide additional security to third parties should a
subsidiary fail to make principal and/or interest payments
when due. As of December 31, 2006, RGA’s exposure related
to these guarantees was $186.3 million. RGA has issued payment guarantees on behalf of two of its subsidiaries in the
event the subsidiaries fail to make payment under their office
lease obligations, the exposure of which was $5.4 million as
of December 31, 2006.
In addition, the Company indemnifies its directors and
officers as provided in its charters and by-laws. Since this
indemnity generally is not subject to limitation with respect to
duration or amount, the Company does not believe that it is
possible to determine the maximum potential amount due
under this indemnity in the future.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DEBT AND TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

The Company’s debt and trust preferred securities consist of the following (in thousands):
(in thousands)
$400 million 6.75% Junior Subordinated Debentures due 2065
$200 million 6.75% Senior Notes due 2011
$100 million 7.25% Senior Notes due 2006
Revolving Credit Facilities
Total Debt
Less portion due in less than one year (short-term debt)

2006

2005

       $ 398,642
199,923
–
106,984

      $ 398,640
199,907
99,962
101,493

705,549
(29,384)

800,002
(125,610)

Long-term debt

       $ 676,165

      $ 674,392

$225.0 million 5.75% Preferred Securities due 2051

       $ 158,701

      $ 158,553

In December 2005, RGA issued Junior Subordinated
Debentures with a face amount of $400.0 million. Interest
is payable semi-annually and is fixed at 6.75% per year
until December 15, 2015. From December 15, 2015 until
December 15, 2065, interest on the debentures will accrue at
an annual rate of 3-month LIBOR plus a margin equal to
266.5 basis points, payable quarterly. RGA has the option
to defer interest payments, subject to certain limitations.
In addition, interest payments are mandatorily deferred if
the Company does not meet specified capital adequacy, net
income and shareholders’ equity levels. Upon an optional or
mandatory deferral of interest payments, RGA is generally
not permitted to pay common-stock dividends or make payments of interest or principal on securities which rank equal
or junior to the subordinated debentures, until the accrued
and unpaid interest on the subordinated debentures is paid.
The subordinated debentures are redeemable at RGA’s
option. The net proceeds from the offering were approximately $394.6 million, a portion of which was used to purchase
$76.1 million of RGA’s common stock under an ASR agreement
with a financial counterparty. Additionally, RGA used a portion
of the net proceeds from the sale of these debentures to repay
approximately $100.0 million of its 7.25% senior notes when
they matured in April 2006. Capitalized issue costs were
approximately $5.5 million.
The Company has three revolving credit facilities under
which it may borrow up to approximately $368.8 million in
cash. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had drawn
approximately $107.0 million under these facilities. During
2006, the interest rates on these facilities ranged from 5.08%
to 6.47% during the year. The Company may draw up to
$300.0 million in cash on its revolving credit facility that expires
in September 2010. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
had $50.0 million outstanding under this facility. Terminations
of revolving credit facilities and maturities of senior notes over
the next five years total $29.4 million in 2007, $50.0 million in
2010 and $227.6 million in 2011.

Certain of the Company’s debt agreements contain financial covenant restrictions related to, among others, liens, the
issuance and disposition of stock of restricted subsidiaries,
minimum requirements of consolidated net worth, maximum
ratios of debt to capitalization, change of control provisions,
and minimum rating requirements. A material ongoing
covenant default could require immediate payment of the
amount due, including principal, under the various agreements.
Additionally, the Company’s debt agreements contain crossdefault covenants, which would make outstanding borrowings
immediately payable in the event of a material uncured covenant default under any of the agreements, including, but
not limited to, non-payment of indebtedness when due for
amounts greater than $25 million or $50 million depending
on the agreement, bankruptcy proceedings, and any other
event which results in the acceleration of the maturity of
indebtedness. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
had $705.5 million in outstanding borrowings under its
debt agreements and was in compliance with all covenants
under those agreements. The ability of the Company to
make debt principal and interest payments depends on the
earnings and surplus of subsidiaries, investment earnings
on undeployed capital proceeds, and the Company’s ability
to raise additional funds.
RGA guarantees the payment of amounts outstanding
under the credit facility maintained by its subsidiary operation
in Australia. The total amount of debt outstanding, subject to
the guarantee, as of December 31, 2006 was $27.6 million and
is reflected on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet
under long-term debt.
In December 2001, RGA, through its wholly-owned trust,
RGA Capital Trust I, issued $225.0 million face amount in
Preferred Securities due 2051 at a discounted value of
$158.1 million. RGA fully and unconditionally guarantees,
on a subordinated basis, the obligations of the Trust under
the Preferred Securities.
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C O L L AT E R A L F I N A N C E F A C I L I T Y

On June 28, 2006, RGA’s subsidiary, Timberlake Financial,
issued $850.0 million of Series A Floating Rate Insured Notes
due June 2036 in a private placement. The notes were issued
to fund the collateral requirements for statutory reserves
required by the U.S. Valuation of Life Policies Model Regulation
(commonly referred to as Regulation XXX) on specified term
life insurance policies reinsured by RGA Reinsurance.
Proceeds from the notes, along with a $112.7 million direct
investment by the Company, collateralize the notes and are
not available to satisfy the general obligations of the Company.
As of December 31, 2006, the Company held assets in trust of
$864.8 million for this purpose. In addition, the Company held
$83.8 million in custody as of December 31, 2006. Interest on
the notes will accrue at an annual rate of 1-month LIBOR plus a
base rate margin, payable monthly. The payment of interest and
principal on the notes is insured through a financial guaranty
insurance policy with a third party. The notes represent senior,
secured indebtedness of Timberlake Financial with no recourse
to RGA or its other subsidiaries. Timberlake Financial will rely
primarily upon the receipt of interest and principal payments on
a surplus note and dividend payments from its wholly-owned
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subsidiary, Timberlake Re, a South Carolina captive insurance
company, to make payments of interest and principal on the
notes. The ability of Timberlake Re to make interest and principal payments on the surplus note and dividend payments
to Timberlake Financial is contingent upon South Carolina
regulatory approval and the performance of specified term life
insurance policies with guaranteed level premiums retroceded
by RGA’s subsidiary, RGA Reinsurance, to Timberlake Re.
In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46(r),
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities – An Interpretation
of ARB No. 51,” Timberlake Financial is considered to be a
variable interest entity and the Company is deemed to hold the
primary beneficial interest. As a result, Timberlake Financial
has been consolidated in the Company’s financial statements.
The Company’s consolidated balance sheets include the assets
of Timberlake Financial recorded as fixed maturity investments
and other invested assets, which consists of restricted cash
and cash equivalents, with the liability for the notes recorded
as collateral finance facility. The Company’s consolidated
statements of income include the investment return of
Timberlake Financial as investment income and the cost of the
facility is reflected in collateral finance facility expense.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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S E G M E N T I N F O R M AT I O N

The Company has five main operational segments, each of
which is a distinct reportable segment: U.S., Canada, Europe &
South Africa, Asia Pacific and Corporate and Other. The U.S.
operations market traditional life reinsurance, reinsurance of
asset-intensive products and financial reinsurance, primarily to
large U.S. market life insurance companies. Asset-intensive
products primarily include reinsurance of corporate-owned life
insurance and annuities. The Canada operations provide
insurers with reinsurance of traditional individual life products
as well as creditor reinsurance, group life and health reinsurance and non-guaranteed critical illness products. Europe &
South Africa operations include traditional life reinsurance and
critical illness business from Europe & South Africa, in addition
to other markets being developed by the Company. Asia Pacific
operations provide primarily traditional life reinsurance, critical
illness and, to a lesser extent, financial reinsurance through
RGA Australia and RGA Reinsurance. The Company’s discontinued accident and health operations are not reflected in the
continuing operations of the Company. The Company measures segment performance based on income or loss before
income taxes.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies in Note 2. The Company measures segment performance primarily based on profit or loss from operations before

income taxes. There are no intersegment reinsurance transactions and the Company does not have any material long-lived
assets. Investment income is allocated to the segments based
upon average assets and related capital levels deemed appropriate to support the segment business volumes.
Effective January 1, 2006 the Company changed its method
of allocating capital to its segments from a method based upon
regulatory capital requirements to one based on underlying
economic capital levels. The economic capital model is an
internally developed risk capital model, the purpose of which is
to measure the risk in the business and to provide a basis upon
which capital is deployed. The economic capital model considers the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in
RGA’s businesses. This is in contrast to the standardized
regulatory risk based capital formula, which is not as refined in
its risk calculations with respect to each of the Company’s
businesses. As a result of the economic capital allocation
process, a portion of investment income and investment
related gains (losses) is credited to the segments based on the
level of allocated equity. In addition, the segments are charged
for excess capital utilized above the allocated economic capital
basis. This charge is included in policy acquisition costs and
other insurance expenses. All interest expense is now reflected
in the Corporate and Other segment. The prior period segment
results have been adjusted to conform to the new allocation
methodology.

The Company’s reportable segments are strategic business units that are primarily segregated by geographic region. Information
related to revenues, income (loss) before income taxes, interest expense, depreciation and amortization, and assets of the
Company’s continuing operations are summarized below (in thousands).
For The Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

2004

U.S.
Canada
Europe & South Africa
Asia Pacific
Corporate and Other
  

      $ 3,269,563
542,077
604,750
707,377
69,924

      $ 2,953,592
439,358
564,167
561,024
66,624

     $ 2,738,606
340,747
488,844
417,079
53,643

Total from continuing operations

      $ 5,193,691

      $ 4,584,765

     $ 4,038,919

r e v enues :
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For The Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)
( los s ) f ro m co n t i n u i n g
U.S.
Canada
Europe & South Africa
Asia Pacific
Corporate and Other
  
i n co me

2006

2005

2004

o p er at i o ns b efo r e i n co m e ta x es :

Total from continuing operations

      $

322,348
45,766
58,241
58,591
(33,558)

      $

263,752
50,199
35,520
31,268
(24,393)

     $   294,122
39,266
29,628
7,448
(1,271)

      $

451,388

      $

356,346

     $   369,193

2005

2004

For The Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

i n t er es t e xp ens e :
Corporate and Other
  

      $

62,033

      $

41,428

     $

38,437

Total from continuing operations

      $

62,033

      $

41,428

     $

38,437

For The Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

2004

d ep r eci at i o n a n d a mo r t iz at i o n :

U.S.
Canada
Europe & South Africa
Asia Pacific
Corporate and Other
  

      $

489,581
94,246
121,385
105,428
4,545

      $

428,130
63,444
128,386
94,783
8,640

     $

416,074
38,011
152,109
65,985
3,422

Total from continuing operations

      $

815,185

      $

723,383

     $

675,601

The table above includes amortization of deferred acquisition costs and the DAC offset to the change in value of embedded
derivatives related to Issue B36.
As of December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

U.S.
Canada
Europe & South Africa
Asia Pacific
Corporate and Other and discontinued operations
  

      $ 12,387,202
2,182,712
1,140,374
1,099,700
2,226,849

     $ 11,049,424
1,954,612
956,453
873,230
1,360,147

Total assets

      $ 19,036,837

     $ 16,193,866

as s e ts :

Companies in which RGA has an ownership position greater
than twenty percent, but less than or equal to fifty percent, are
reported on the equity basis of accounting. The equity in the
net income of such subsidiaries is not material to the results of
operations or financial position of individual segments or the
Company taken as a whole.
Capital expenditures of each reporting segment were
immaterial in the periods noted.

94

RGA 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

During 2006, two clients generated $144.3 million or 25.9%
of gross premiums for the Canada operations. Five clients of
the Company’s United Kingdom operations generated approximately $452.6 million, or 71.8% of the total gross premiums for
the Europe & South Africa operations. Six clients, three in
Australia, two in Korea and one in Japan, generated approximately $312.2 million, or 44.1% of the total gross premiums for
the Asia Pacific operations.
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E Q U I T Y B A S E D C O M P E N S AT I O N

The Company adopted the RGA Flexible Stock Plan (the “Plan”)
in February 1993, as amended, and the Flexible Stock Plan for
Directors (the “Directors Plan”) in January 1997, as amended,
(collectively, the “Stock Plans”). The Stock Plans provide for the
award of benefits (collectively “Benefits”) of various types,
including stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”),
restricted stock, performance shares, cash awards, and other
stock-based awards, to key employees, officers, directors and
others performing significant services for the benefit of the
Company or its subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, shares
authorized for the granting of Benefits under the Plan and the
Directors Plan totaled 6,260,077 and 212,500, respectively.

Equity-based compensation expense of $22.0 million,
$6.7 million, and $3.9 million related to grants or awards under
the Stock Plans was recognized in 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. Equity-based compensation expense is principally
related to the issuance of stock options, performance
contingent restricted units, and restricted stock.
In general, options granted under the Plan become exercisable over vesting periods ranging from one to eight years while
options granted under the Directors Plan become exercisable
after one year. Options are generally granted with an exercise
price equal to the stock’s fair value at the date of grant and
expire 10 years after the date of grant. Information with respect
to option grants under the Stock Plans follows.

Options

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value (in millions)

Outstanding January 1, 2004
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

2,728,317
309,398
(274,179)
(26,500)

        $
        $
        $
        $

28.31
39.61
25.32
32.16

Outstanding December 31, 2004
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

2,737,036
292,981
(224,923)
(6,334)

        $
        $
        $
        $

29.85
47.45
26.97
36.59

Outstanding December 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

2,798,760
336,725
(329,794)
(6,140)

        $
        $
        $
        $

31.90
47.47
26.55
39.49

Outstanding December 31, 2006

2,799,551

        $ 34.39

       $

59.7

Options exercisable

1,732,593

        $ 31.03

       $

42.7

The intrinsic value of options exercised was $9.6 million, $4.7 million, and $6.3 million for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
Range of Exercise Prices

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Outstanding as of
12/31/2006

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual Life

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Exercisable as of
12/31/2006

$0.00 – $24.99
$25.00 – $29.99
$30.00 – $34.99
$35.00 – $39.99
$45.00 – $49.99

197,752
1,054,060
458,616
463,936
625,187

2.9
4.9
4.8
5.1
8.5

        $
        $
        $
        $
        $

23.20
28.15
31.90
38.20
47.46

197,752
784,841
360,242
315,758
74,000

Totals

2,799,551

5.6

        $ 34.39

1,732,593

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price
      
      
      
      
      

$
$
$
$
$

23.20
28.44
31.90
37.54
47.45

       $ 31.03
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The Black-Scholes model was used to determine the fair value
of stock options granted and recognized in the financial statements. The Company used daily historical volatility when
calculating stock option values. The risk-free rate is based on
observed interest rates for instruments with maturities similar
to the expected term of the stock options. Dividend yield is
determined based on historical dividend distributions compared
to the price of the underlying common stock as of the valuation
date and held constant over the life of the stock options. The
Company estimated expected life using the historical average
years to exercise or cancellation. The per share weightedaverage fair value of stock options granted during 2006, 2005
and 2004 was $16.06, $17.35 and $12.81 on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions: 2006-expected
dividend yield of 0.76%, risk-free interest rate of 4.35%,
expected life of 6.0 years, and an expected rate of volatility
of the stock of 28.4% over the expected life of the options;
2005-expected dividend yield of 0.76%, risk-free interest rate
of 3.86%, expected life of 6.0 years, and an expected rate of
volatility of the stock of 33.47% over the expected life of the
options; and 2004-expected dividend yield of 0.61%, risk-free
interest rate of 3.30%, expected life of 6.0 years, and an
expected rate of volatility of the stock of 28.7% over the
expected life of the options.
In general, restrictions lapse on restricted stock awards at
the end of a three- or ten-year vesting period. Restricted stock
awarded under the plan generally has no strike price and
is included in the Company’s shares outstanding. As of
December 31, 2006, 28,746 shares of restricted stock were
outstanding.
During 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Company also issued
144,097, 126,305 and 128,693 performance contingent units
(“PCUs”) to key employees at a weighted average fair value
per unit of $47.47, $47.45 and $39.61, respectively. As of
December 31, 2006, 144,097, 124,397 and 123,686 PCUs were
outstanding from the 2006, 2005 and 2004 grants, respectively.
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Each PCU represents the right to receive up to two shares of
Company common stock, depending on the results of certain
performance measures over a three-year period. The compensation expense related to the PCUs is recognized ratably over
the requisite performance period. In February 2007, the board
of directors approved a 2.0 share payout for each PCU granted
in 2004, resulting in the issuance of 242,613 shares of common
stock from treasury.
As of December 31, 2006, there was $17.0 million of
unrecognized compensation costs related to equity-based
grants or awards. It is estimated that these costs will vest
over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.
Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company applied APB Opinion
No. 25 in accounting for its Stock Plans and, accordingly, no
compensation cost was recognized for its stock options in the
consolidated financial statements. For grants from 2003
through 2005, the Company determined compensation cost
based on the fair value at the grant date for its stock options
using the “prospective” approach under FASB Statement
No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for StockBased Compensation – Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123”. Beginning January 1,
2006, the Company was required to use the “modified prospective” method for recording compensation expense in
accordance with SFAS 123(r), a revision of SFAS 123. The
modified prospective approach requires compensation cost
on all unvested options to be recorded in the income statement
over its remaining vesting period, regardless of when the
options were granted. Had the Company applied the modified
prospective approach in the comparable prior-year periods,
net income and earnings per share would not have changed
by a material amount.
In February 2007, the board approved an incentive compensation package including 320,990 incentive stock options at
$59.63 per share and 105,924 PCUs under the Plan. In addition, non-employee directors received 4,800 shares of common
stock under the Directors Plan.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations (in thousands,
except per share information):
(in thousands, except per share information)

2006

2005

2004

       $ 293,261

       $ 235,608

      $ 245,300

s h a r es :
Weighted average outstanding shares (denominator for basic calculation)
Equivalent shares from outstanding stock options and warrants

61,250
1,812

62,545
1,179

62,309
655

Diluted shares (denominator for diluted calculation)

63,062

63,724

62,964

e a r n i n gs :
Income from continuing operations (numerator for basic and diluted calculations)

e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e f ro m co n t i n u i n g o p er at i o ns :

Basic
Diluted

       $
       $

4.79
4.65

       $
       $

3.77
3.70

      $
      $

3.94
3.90

The calculation of equivalent shares from outstanding stock options does not include the effect of options having a strike price
that exceeds the average stock price for the earnings period, as the result would be antidilutive. During 2006 and 2004, all outstanding options were included in the calculation of common equivalent shares. Approximately 0.3 million outstanding stock
options were not included in the calculation of common equivalent shares during 2005. Additionally, PCUs are not factored into
the calculation of common equivalent shares until the performance contingency is satisfied.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following table presents the components of the Company’s other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):
For The Year Ended December 31, 2006:
(in thousands)

Before-Tax Amount

Tax (Expense) Benefit

After-Tax Amount

fo r ei gn cur r en cy t r a ns l at i o n a d j us t m en ts :

Change arising during year

      $

25,667

      $

(1,727)

      $

23,940

u n r e a lized los s es o n s ecu r i t i es :

Unrealized net holding losses arising during the year
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net losses realized in net income

(37,368)
(3,953)

8,759
1,578

(28,609)
(2,375)

Net unrealized losses

(33,415)

7,181

(26,234)

Other comprehensive income (loss)

For The Year Ended December 31, 2005:
(in thousands)

      $

(7,748)

Before-Tax Amount

      $

5,454

Tax (Expense) Benefit

      $

(2,294)

After-Tax Amount

fo r ei gn cur r en cy t r a ns l at i o n a d j us t m en ts :

Change arising during year

       $ (11,802)

       $

3,238

      $

(8,564)

u n r e a lized g a i ns o n s ecu r i t i es :
Unrealized net holding gains arising during the year
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net losses realized in net income

177,772
13,590

(47,701)
(659)

130,071
12,931

Net unrealized gains

164,182

(47,042)

117,140

       $ 152,380

       $ (43,804)

      $ 108,576

Other comprehensive income (loss)
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For The Year Ended December 31, 2004:
(in thousands)

Before-Tax Amount

Tax (Expense) Benefit

After-Tax Amount

fo r ei gn cur r en cy t r a ns l at i o n a d j us t m en ts :

Change arising during year

       $

24,635

       $

15,455

      $

40,090

u n r e a lized g a i ns o n s ecu r i t i es :
Unrealized net holding gains arising during the year
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net losses realized in net income

143,280
29,473

(47,219)
(7,429)

96,061
22,044

Net unrealized gains

113,807

(39,790)

74,017

       $ 138,442

       $ (24,335)

      $ 114,107

Other comprehensive income (loss)

A summary of the components of net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of balances carried at fair value is as follows
(in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2006

2005

ch a n ge i n n e t un r e a lized a p p r eci at i o n o n :

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale
Other investments

       $   (38,774)
2,967

      $ 153,440
(3,949)

ef f ect o f un r e a lized a p p r eci at i o n o n :

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Other
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation)

2,392
–
       $   (33,415)

14,676
15
      $ 164,182

N O T E S T O C O N S O L I D AT E D F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
N ote 2 0

D I S C O N T I N U E D O P E R AT I O N S

Since December 31, 1998, the Company has formally reported
its accident and health division as a discontinued operation.
The accident and health business was placed into run-off,
and all treaties were terminated at the earliest possible date.
Notice was given to all cedants and retrocessionaires that all
treaties were being cancelled at the expiration of their terms.
The nature of the underlying risks is such that the claims may
take several years to reach the reinsurers involved. Thus, the
Company expects to pay claims over a number of years as the
level of business diminishes. The Company will report a loss
to the extent claims exceed established reserves.
At the time it was accepting accident and health risks, the
Company directly underwrote certain business provided by
brokers using its own staff of underwriters. Additionally, it
participated in pools of risks underwritten by outside managing
general underwriters, and offered high level common account
and catastrophic protection coverages to other reinsurers and
retrocessionaires. Types of risks covered included a variety of
medical, disability, workers’ compensation carve-out, personal
accident, and similar coverages.
The reinsurance markets for several accident and health
risks, most notably involving workers’ compensation carve-out
and personal accident business, have been quite volatile over
the past several years. Certain programs are alleged to have
been inappropriately underwritten by third party managers,
and some of the reinsurers and retrocessionaires involved
have alleged material misrepresentation and non-disclosures
by the underwriting managers. In particular, over the past
several years a number of disputes have arisen in the accident
and health reinsurance markets with respect to London
market personal accident excess of loss (“LMX”) reinsurance
programs that involved alleged “manufactured” claims spirals
designed to transfer claims losses to higher-level reinsurance
layers. Additionally, while the Company did not underwrite
workers’ compensation carve-out business directly, it did offer
certain indirect high-level common account coverages to other
reinsurers and retrocessionaires, which could result in exposure to workers’ compensation carve-out risks. The Company
and other reinsurers and retrocessionaires involved have
raised substantial defenses upon which to contest claims
arising from these coverages, including defenses based upon
the failure of the ceding company to disclose the existence of
manufactured claims spirals, inappropriate or unauthorized
underwriting procedures and other defenses. As a result,
there have been a significant number of claims for rescission,
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arbitration, and litigation among a number of the parties
involved in these various coverages. This has had the effect of
significantly slowing the reporting of claims between parties,
as the various outcomes of a series of arbitrations and similar
actions affect the extent to which higher level reinsurers and
retrocessionaires may ultimately have exposure to claims.
The Company is currently a party to three arbitrations
that involve personal accident business as mentioned above.
As of January 31, 2007, the companies involved in these litigation actions have raised claims, or established reserves that
may result in claims, that are $23.4 million in excess of the
amounts held in reserve by the Company. The Company generally has little information regarding any reserves established
by ceding companies, and must rely on management estimates
to establish policy claim liabilities. It is possible that any such
reserves could be increased in the future. The Company
believes it has substantial defenses upon which to contest
these claims, including but not limited to misrepresentation
and breach of contract by direct and indirect ceding companies. The Company cannot predict or determine the ultimate
outcome of the pending arbitrations or provide useful ranges
of potential losses, it is the opinion of management, after
consultation with counsel, that their outcomes, after consideration of the provisions made in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, would not have a material adverse effect
on its consolidated financial position. However, it is possible
that an adverse outcome could, from time to time, have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated net
income in particular quarterly or annual periods.
The calculation of the claim reserve liability for the entire
portfolio of accident and health business requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
claim reserve levels. Management must make estimates and
assumptions based on historical loss experience, changes in
the nature of the business, anticipated outcomes of claim
disputes and claims for rescission, anticipated outcomes of
arbitrations, and projected future premium run-off, all of
which may affect the level of the claim reserve liability. Due
to the significant uncertainty associated with the run-off of
this business, net income in future periods could be affected
positively or negatively. The consolidated statements of income
for all periods presented reflect this line of business as a
discontinued operation. Revenues associated with discontinued
operations, which are not reported on a gross basis in the
Company’s consolidated statements of income, totaled
$2.7 million, $2.5 million and $1.4 million for 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated
St. Louis, Missouri
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company changed its method
of accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans and for certain non-traditional long duration
contracts and separate accounts as required by accounting
guidance which the Company adopted on December 31, 2006
and January 1, 2004, respectively.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on the criteria established in Internal Control –
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
and our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

n eed i m age o f s i gn at u r e

St. Louis, Missouri
February 26, 2007
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management of Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated
and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates
and judgments by management are required to assess the
expected benefits and related costs of control procedures.
The objectives of internal control include providing management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with
management’s authorization and recorded properly to permit
the preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.
Financial management has documented and evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company as
of December 31, 2006 pertaining to financial reporting in
accordance with the criteria established in “Internal Control –
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
In the opinion of management, the Company maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting and on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A. Greig Woodring
President and Chief Executive Officer

Jack B. Lay
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated
St. Louis, Missouri
We have audited management’s assessment, included in
management’s annual report on internal control over financial
reporting, that Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers,
or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company’s board of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
In our opinion, management’s assessment that the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 of the Company
and our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and
included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s
change of its accounting method for defined benefit pension
and other postretirement plans as required by accounting
guidance which the Company adopted on December 31, 2006.

St. Louis, Missouri
February 26, 2007
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Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

First

Second

Third

Fourth

2006
Revenues from continuing operations
Revenues from discontinued operations

    $ 1,199,097     $ 1,242,536     $ 1,282,483     $ 1,469,575
    $
681     $
1,046     $
97     $
847

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

    $

108,200     $

97,434     $

117,569     $

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued accident and health operations, net of income taxes

    $
  

70,580     $
(1,510)   

63,789     $
(158)   

75,574     $
(1,539)   

83,318
(1,844)

Net income

    $

69,070     $

63,631     $

74,035     $

81,474

61,179

61,188

61,367

61,411

Total outstanding common shares – end of period

128,185

bas i c e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

    $
  

1.15     $
(0.02)   

1.04     $
–   

1.23     $
(0.02)   

1.36
(0.03)

Net income

    $

1.13     $

1.04     $

1.21     $

1.33

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

    $
  

1.13     $
(0.03)   

1.02     $
(0.01)   

1.20     $
(0.03)   

1.31
(0.03)

Net income

    $

1.10     $

1.01     $

1.17     $

1.28

Dividends declared per share

    $

0.09     $

0.09     $

0.09     $

0.09

Quarter end
Common stock price, high
Common stock price, low

    $
  
  

47.29     $
49.15   
45.55   

49.15     $
49.15   
46.61   

51.93     $
53.04   
48.07   

55.70
58.65
51.95

2005
Revenues from continuing operations
Revenues from discontinued operations

    $ 1,096,216     $ 1,091,332     $ 1,158,417     $ 1,238,800
    $
354     $
(500)     $
328     $
2,332

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

    $

100,535     $

32,609     $

113,562     $

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued accident and health operations, net of income taxes

    $
  

67,264     $
(707)

25,160     $
(3,343)   

73,519     $
(5,890)   

69,665
(1,488)

Net income

    $

66,557     $

21,817     $

67,629     $

68,177

62,614

62,639

62,641

61,076

d i lu t ed e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e

m a r k e t p r i ce o f co mmo n s to ck

Total outstanding common shares – end of period

109,640

bas i c e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

    $
  

1.08     $
(0.02)   

0.40     $
(0.05)   

1.17     $
(0.09)   

1.12
(0.03)

Net income

    $

1.06     $

0.35     $

1.08     $

1.09

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

    $
  

1.05     $
(0.01)   

0.39     $
(0.05)   

1.15     $
(0.09)   

1.09
(0.02)

Net income

    $

1.04     $

0.34     $

1.06     $

1.07

Dividends per share on common stock

    $

0.09     $

0.09     $

0.09     $

0.09

    $
  
  

42.58     $
48.73   
42.46   

46.51     $
46.62   
41.52   

44.70     $
47.99   
40.76   

47.76
48.21
42.48

d i lu t ed e a r n i n gs p er s h a r e

m a r k e t p r i ce o f co mmo n s to ck

Quarter end
Common stock price, high
Common stock price, low

Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “RGA”. There were 73 stockholders of record
of RGA’s common stock on January 31, 2007. See “Shareholder Dividends” and “Debt and Trust Preferred Securities” in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations – Liquidity and Capital Resources”.
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Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Set forth below is a graph for the Company’s common stock for the period beginning December 31, 2001 and ending
December 31, 2006. The graph compares the cumulative total return on the Company’s common stock, based on the market
price of the common stock and assuming reinvestment of dividends, with the cumulative total return of companies in the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the Standard and Poor’s Insurance (Life/Health) Index. The indices are included
for comparative purposes only. They do not necessarily reflect management’s opinion that such indices are an appropriate
measure of the relative performance of the Company’s common stock, and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of
future performance of the common stock.
C O M P A R I S O N O F 5 Y E A R C U M U L AT I V E T O TA L R E T U R N *

Among Reinsurance Group Of America, Incorporated, The S & P 500 Index and The S & P Life & Health Insurance Index
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* $100 invested on 12/31/01 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.
Copyright © 2007, Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.
www.researchdatagroup.com/S&P.htm

Cumulative Total Return

Reinsurance Group Of America, Incorporated
S & P 500
S & P Life & Health Insurance

12/01

12/02

12/03

12/04

12/05

12/06

100.00
100.00
100.00

82.04
77.90
83.77

117.96
100.24
106.47

148.84
111.15
130.04

147.90
116.61
159.32

173.71
135.03
185.63

Copyright ® 2007, Standard & Poor’s, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.
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Shareholder Information
Transfer Agent:
Mellon Investor Services, L.L.C.
Overpeck Centre
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660
t. 888-213-0965
http://www.chasemellon.com
Independent Auditors:
Deloitte and Touche LLP

Annual Report on Form 10-K:
Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated files with the
Securities and Exchange Commission an Annual Report
(Form 10-K).
The Company has submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange the certification of the Company’s chief executive
officer required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock
Exchange listing standards. Additionally, the certifications of
the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial
officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, have been filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission as Exhibits 31.1
and 31.2, respectively, to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Shareholders may obtain a copy of the Form 10-K without
charge by writing to:
Jack B. Lay
Chief Financial Officer
Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated
1370 Timberlake Manor Parkway
Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-6039
U.S.A.
Shareholders may contact us through our Internet site
at http://www.rgare.com or may email us at
investrelations@rgare.com
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Worldwide Operations
U nited S tates

B ermuda

RGA Reinsurance Company World Headquarters
1370 Timberlake Manor Parkway
Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-6039
U.S.A.
t. 636-736-7000
toll-free 888-736-5445

RGA Global Reinsurance Company Limited
Victoria Hall
11 Victoria Street
Hamilton, Bermuda HM 1
t. 441-292-4402
f. 441-294-1698

RGA Financial Markets
1370 Timberlake Manor Parkway
Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-6039
U.S.A.
t. 636-736-7555
f. 636-736-7554
A ustralia

RGA Reinsurance Company of Australia Limited
Australia Square Plaza Building
Level 9, 95 Pitt Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
t. 61-2-8264-5800
f. 61-2-8264-5999
RGA Asia Pacific Pty Ltd.
Australia Square Plaza Building
Level 8, 95 Pitt Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
t. 61-2-8298-9800
f. 61-2-8298-9850
B arbados

C anada

RGA Life Reinsurance Company of Canada
1255 Peel Street, Suite 1000
Montréal, Québec, H3B 2T9
Canada
t. 514-985-5260
f. 514-985-3066
toll-free 800-985-4326
RGA Life Reinsurance Company of Canada
55 University Avenue, Suite 1100
Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2H7
Canada
t. 416-682-0000
f. 416-777-9526
toll-free 800-433-4326
RGA International Corporation
International Headquarters
BCE Place
161 Bay Street, Suite 4610
P.O. Box 620
Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2S1
Canada
t. 416-943-6770
f. 416-943-0880

RGA Americas Reinsurance Company Ltd.
RGA Reinsurance Company (Barbados) Ltd.
Hampton House
Erdiston Hill
St. Michael, BB11113, Barbados
West Indies
t. 246-437-5431
f. 246-426-8762

W O R L D W I D E O P E R AT I O N S

107

Worldwide Operations
C hina

I ndia

RGA Reinsurance Company
Beijing Representative Office
Unit 3, 11F
Office Tower W1
Oriental Plaza
1 East Chang An Ave.
Dong Cheng District
Beijing 100738
China
t. 86-10-85182528
f. 86-10-85182532

RGA Services India Private Limited
311, Ascot Center
Sahar Road, Andheri (East)
Mumbai 400 099
India
t. 91-22-67092550
f. 91-22-67092551

F rance

RGA International Reinsurance Company Limited
19, Boulevard Malesherbes
75008 Paris, France
t. 33-1-55-27-36-20
f. 33-1-55-27-37-67
G ermany

RGA Reinsurance Company
Germany Representative Office
Kaiser-Wilhelm-Ring 27-29
50672 Cologne
Germany
t. 49-221-569-4173
f. 49-221-569-4200
H ong K ong

RGA Reinsurance Company
Hong Kong Branch
3407-09, Tower Two Lippo Centre
89 Queensway
Hong Kong
t. 852-2511-8688
f. 852-2511-8827
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I reland

RGA International Reinsurance Company Limited
4th Floor, 25-28 Adelaide Road
Dublin 2
Ireland
t. 353-1-605-3000
f. 353-1-605-3010
I taly

RGA International Reinsurance Company Limited
Via Cerva, 18
3rd Floor
Milan 20122
Italy
t. 39-347-751-1134
t. 39-349-891-2767
J apan

RGA Reinsurance Company
Japan Branch
Midtown Tower 41F
9-7-1 Akasaka Minato-ku
Tokyo 107-6241
Japan
t. 81-33-479-7191
f. 81-33-479-7196

Worldwide Operations
M alaysia

S outh K orea

Malaysian Life Reinsurance Group Berhad
3B/21-3 Block 3B
Level 21, Plaza Sentral
Jalan Stesen Sentral 5
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
t. 60-3-2780-6611
f. 60-3-2780-6622

RGA Reinsurance Company Korea Branch
Seoul Finance Center 20F
84, Taepyungro 1-ga
Jung-gu, Seoul, Korea 100-768
t: 82-2-6730-1350
f: 82-2-6730-1370

M exico

RGA Reinsurance Company
Oficina de Representación en México
Pico de Verapaz No. 435, Desp. 701
Col. Jardines de la Montaña
14210 México, D.F.
t. 52-55-5630-3455
f. 52-55-5630-3458
P oland

RGA International Reinsurance Company Limited
Poland Representative Office
Atrium International
Al. Jana Pawła II 23
00-854 Warszawa, Poland
t. 48-22-653-8600
f. 48-22-653-8601
S outh A frica

RGA Reinsurance Company of South Africa Limited
8th Floor, Letterstedt House
Newlands on Main
Cnr Campground & Main Roads
Newlands, 7700
Cape Town, South Africa
t. 27-21-670-5999
f. 27-21-670-5960

S pain

RGA Reinsurance Company
Oficina de Representación
Europa Empresarial, Edificio París, Oficina 11
Ctra. A Coruña, km. 24
28290 Las Matas (Madrid) España
t. 34-91-640-4340
f. 34-91-640-4341
Taiwan

RGA Reinsurance Company Taiwan Liaison Office
Room 1601, 16F
No. 456, Xin-Yi Road, Section 4
Taipei 110, Taiwan, R.O.C.
t. 886-2-8789-2217
f. 886-2-8789-2220
U nited K ingdom

RGA Reinsurance UK Limited
Level 40
The International Financial Centre
25 Old Broad Street
London EC2N 1HQ
United Kingdom
t. 44-20-7448-8200
f. 44-20-7448-8299

RGA Reinsurance Company of South Africa Limited
1st Floor, MPF House
Sunnyside Office Park
32 Princess of Wales Terrace
Parktown, 2193
Johannesburg, South Africa
t. 27-11-484-0577
f. 27-11-484-0734
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Glossary of Terms
Actuary
A specialist in the mathematics of risk, especially as it relates
to insurance calculations such as premiums, reserves, dividends,
and insurance and annuity rates.
Annuity
Contract that provides for income payments to an insured at
regular intervals, either for a specific period or for the lifetime
of the insured, in exchange for premium.
ASEAN
Association of Southeast Asian Nations.

Coinsurance
A form of reinsurance under which the ceding company shares
its premiums, death claims, surrender benefits, dividends,
and policy loans with the reinsurer and the reinsurer pays
expense allowances to reimburse the ceding company for a
share of its expenses.
Critical illness insurance
( also known as dre ad dise ase insur ance )

Insurance that provides a guaranteed fixed sum upon diagnosis
of a specified illness or condition such as cancer, heart disease
or permanent total disability. The policy can be arranged in its
own right or can be an add-on to a life policy.

Asset-intensive reinsurance
A transaction (usually coinsurance or funds withheld, and often
involving reinsurance of annuities) where performance of the
underlying assets, in addition to any mortality, is a key element.

Expected mortality
Number of deaths predicted to occur in a defined group
of people.

Assumed reinsurance
Insurance risk that a reinsurer accepts (assumes) from a
ceding company.

Face amount
Amount payable at the death of the insured or at the maturity
of the policy.

Automatic reinsurance
Reinsurance arrangement whereby the ceding company and
reinsurer agree that all business of a certain description will
be ceded to the reinsurer. Under this arrangement, the
ceding company assumes full underwriting responsibility for
all business reinsured.

Facultative reinsurance
A type of reinsurance in which the reinsurer makes an underwriting decision, to accept or decline, on each risk sent to it
by the ceding company.
Financial reinsurance
( also known as financially motivated reinsur ance ,

Bancassurance
The provision of insurance and banking products and services
through a common distribution channel and/or to the same
client base.
Capital-motivated reinsurance

asset- intensive reinsur ance , capital- motivated reinsur ance
or non -tr aditional reinsur ance )

Reinsurance designed to meet a financial objective of an
insurer. For example, financial reinsurance can aid in an
insurer’s tax planning efforts or can provide capital in order
to support an insurer’s future growth.

( also known as financial reinsur ance , financially motivated
reinsur ance or non -tr aditional reinsur ance )

GAAP

Reinsurance designed to meet a financial objective of an
insurer. For example, financial reinsurance can aid in an
insurer’s tax planning efforts or can provide capital in order
to support an insurer’s future growth.

( gener ally accep ted accounting principles )

Cedant/Ceding company
Direct insurer (or reinsurer) that passes on, or cedes, shares of
its insured or reinsured risks to a reinsurer or retrocessionaire.

Group life insurance
Insurance policy under which the lives of a group of people are
insured in accordance with the terms of one master contract.

Claim
Demand on an insurer or reinsurer for payment under the
terms of an insurance policy.

In force sum insured
A measure of insurance in effect at a specific date.
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A set of financial accounting principles that companies
follow when preparing financial statements for reporting
results to stockholders.

Glossary of Terms
Individual life insurance
Insurance policy that is issued to insure the life of a named
person or persons, rather than that of a group.

Retention limit
The maximum amount of risk a company will insure on one life.
Any amount in excess of the retention limit must be reinsured.

Mortality experience
Actual number of deaths occurring in a defined group of people.

Retrocession
Transaction in which the reinsurer transfers all or part of the
risks it has assumed to another reinsurer (the retrocessionaire),
in return for payment of premium.

Mortality risk reinsurance
Removing some of the major mortality or lapse risk associated
with life insurance from the client company.
Preferred risk coverage
Coverage designed for applicants who represent a betterthan-average risk to an insurer.

Statutory capital
The excess of statutory assets over statutory reserves, both of
which are calculated in accordance with standards established
by insurance regulators.
Treaty

Primary insurance

( also known as a contr act )

( also known as direct insur ance )

A reinsurance agreement between a reinsurer and a ceding
company. The three most common methods of accepting
reinsurance are automatic, facultative, and facultativeobligatory. The three most common types of reinsurance
treaties are YRT (yearly renewable term), coinsurance,
and modified coinsurance.

Insurance business relating to contracts directly between
insurers and policyholders. The insurance company is directly
responsible to the insured.
Premium
Amounts paid to insure a risk.
Production
Refers to new business that was produced during a
specified period.
Portfolio
The totality of risks assumed by an insurer or reinsurer.
Quota share
( also known as ‘ first doll ar ’ quota share )

Underwriting
The process by which a company assesses the risk inherent in
an application for insurance prior to acceptance of the policy.
Variable life insurance
A form of whole life insurance under which the death benefit
and the cash value of the policy fluctuate according to
the performance of an investment fund. Most variable life
insurance policies guarantee that the death benefit will not
fall below a specified minimum.

A reinsurance arrangement in which the reinsurer receives
a certain percentage of each risk reinsured.
Recapture
The right to cancel reinsurance under certain conditions.
Reinsurance
A type of insurance coverage that one company, the ceding
company, purchases from another company, the reinsurer,
in order to transfer risk associated with insurance. Through
reinsurance, a reinsurer “insures” the ceding company.
Reserves
The amount required to be carried as a liability in the financial statement of an insurer or reinsurer, to provide for future
commitments under outstanding policies and contracts.
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